
 
 

TRUST BOARD MEETING AGENDA – PUBLIC 
Date: 30th January 2018 

Time: 10am  
Venue: Conference Room, 2nd Floor, RLH 

 
 Item Lead Page  

PRELIMINARY BUSINESS 

 

1. 
 

Introduction, Apologies & Declaration of Interest 
To note the apologies for absence and any new declarations of interest from Directors 

BG Verbal 

2. 
 

Minutes of Trust Board Meeting held on 28 November 2017  
To approve the minutes of the Board of Directors 

BG 1 

3. 
 

Rolling Action Tracker and Calendar 
To discuss any outstanding actions 

BG 11 

4. 
 

Any Urgent Matters Arising 
To discuss and note any urgent matters arising 

BG/AK Verbal 

5. 
 

Chair’s Update 
To receive an update on the Chair's activities and work streams 

BG Verbal 

6. Patient Story 
To receive and consider the learning from a patient story 

LG Verbal 

 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

7. Committee Assurance Report  
To note the report for information and assurance 

MW/All 16 

8. Trust Executives’ Performance Report 
To discuss and note key issues relating to this report 

All 26 

9. Patient Safety and Mortality Report  

To note the report for information and assurance 
PF 97 

10. Guardian of Safe Working – Exception Report 
To note the report for information.  

PF 104 

11. LCRN Performance Review Quarter 3 2017/18  
To note the report for information and assurance 

PF 108 

12. 2016/17 RL&BUHT Charitable Funds Annual Report & Financial Accounts 
To approve and adopt the 2016-17 Charity annual Report and Accounts 

JHG 127 

13. Safe Staffing December 2017  
To note the report for information. 

LG 203 

14. CQC Inspection Methodology 
To receive a presentation. 

LG Verbal 

15. 
 

Board Assurance Framework  
To receive verbal update. 

MW Verbal 

CONCLUDING BUSINESS 

16. Chair’s Log 
To note items for the Chair’s Log 

BG Verbal 

 
 

Questions from members of the public 
To consider questions from the public 

BG Verbal 

 Code of Conduct, Glossary of Terms & Risk Appetite  
For Information 

All 213 

Finish Time: 12.15pm 

Resolved: that in accordance with the Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 representatives of the press and 
other members of the public are excluded from the remainder of this meeting having regard to the confidential nature of 
the business to be transacted, publicity on which would be prejudicial to the public interest. 
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Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust 

Meeting of the Trust Board: Part 1 held in public 

Held on Tuesday 28 November 2017 at 10.00am 

Conference Room, Royal Liverpool University Hospital 

 

Present:  Mike Eastwood (ME) Vice-Chair/Non-Executive Director 

  Aidan Kehoe (AK)   Chief Executive 

  John Graham (JHG)  Director of Finance/Deputy Chief Executive 

  Lisa Grant (LG)     Chief Nurse/Chief Operating Officer   

  Debbie Herring (DH)  Director of Workforce  

  Malcolm Jackson (MJ)  Non-Executive Director 

  Angela Phillips (AP)  Non-Executive Director 

  Neil Willcox (NW)  Non-Executive Director 

  Peter Williams (PW)   Medical Director 

     

In  James Kingsland (JK)   Assoc. Non-Executive Director  

attendance: Helen Shaw (HS)    Director of Communications and Marketing  

 Susan Young (SY)  Assoc. Non-Executive Director  

 David Walliker (DW)  Director of IT 

   

Officers  Madelaine Warburton (MW)  Assoc. Director of Corporate Affairs  

Attending: Stuart Diggles (SD) Turnaround Director (Item 17/166 onwards) 

 Mercy Mbuyongha (MM) Specialist Screening Practitioner, Gastroenterology 

(Item 17/153 only) 

  Thomasina Afful (TA) Equality & Diversity Manager (Item 17/153 only) 

 Joselito Marinas (JM)  Head of Clinical Education and Learning (Item 

17/153 only) 

 Paul Fitzsimmons (PF) Deputy Medical Director (Item 17/159 only) 

 Andrew Cleary (AC) Directorate Manager, Trauma & Orthopaedics (Item 

17/170 only) 

 Daniel Brown (DB) Consultant, Trauma & Orthopaedics (Item 17/170 

only) 

 Mark Grimshaw (MG) Deputy Corporate Secretary (minutes) 

                              

17/148      Introduction, Apologies and Declaration of Interest  

Apologies were noted from Bill Griffiths and Geoff Stewart. ME welcomed members 

of the public (4) and governors (1).  

   

No interests were declared. 

 

17/149     Minutes of the Trust Board Meeting held on 26 September 2017  

 The minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2017 were agreed as a true and 

accurate record.  

 

17/150 Rolling Action Tracker 

 Action tracker 

 17/120 – Safe Staffing – LG reported that Ward 9X currently had four vacancies. 

Two positons had been recruited to and further interviews had been scheduled. 

Further information on Ward 9X would be provided under item 17/158. 
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 17/117 – GMC National Training Survey – PW confirmed that the Broadgreen site 

was no longer RAG rated as ‘red’ in the latest GMC Survey. 

 

 17/115 – Trust Executive’s Report – DH confirmed that a staff story was 

scheduled under item 17/153. Further thought would be given to the involvement of 

Board members in the presentation of staff star awards. DH added that the 

Workforce Plan would be considered at the January 2018 Board meeting. 

 

 Chair’s Logs Delegated 

17/81 – Safe Staff and Support Services – LG confirmed that work to explore how 

to capture safe staffing information for other staff groups (beyond nursing) 

continued to progress. It was planned to undertake the first stage with Allied Health 

Professionals and then work through other staffing groups. Progress against this 

work would be reported to the Workforce Committee.  

 

17/151 Urgent Matters Arising 

  No issues noted. 

 

17/152 Chair’s Report 

 No issues noted. 

 

17/153 Patient Story 

   

 Mercy Mbuyongha, Thomasina Afful and Joselito Marinas joined the meeting 

  

 DH introduced the item noting that the story would focus on the experience of a 

member of staff from the BME community. 

 

 MM thanked the Board for hearing her story and outlined that the Trust continued to 

demonstrate its commitment to support BME staff. MM continued to outline several 

areas that required further improvement: 

• Supporting BME staff to progress through the organisation which would 

provide more BME role models at a senior level.   

• Fully addressing issues of bullying and expediting the resolution of 

grievances when made. 

• Increasing the number of BME role models in the organisation. 

• Determined focus to ensure equal treatment at all times. 

 

TA explained that whilst Liverpool had a diverse population (14% BME); this was 

not well reflected at senior levels in the organisation. TA asserted that the lack of 

role models for BME staff was a factor for recruitment and retention purposes. JM 

added that it was important that the issue was championed from the top-down in the 

organisation.  

 

AP queried how investigation of grievances could be improved. TA explained that 

not all staff understood the process and therefore did not progress issues as 

required. The Trust ran equality and diversity training to help staff to better 

understand the issues and the relevant processes. TA also explained that there was 
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a high tolerance within the BME staff community of poor behaviour towards them by 

patients, the public and other members of staff. It would be important to rebalance 

this and to also encourage other members of staff to support BME staff. 

 

DH noted that the CQC had provided feedback on the Trust’s approach to 

supporting BME staff. They had reported that whilst the Trust had built a strong 

platform with the development of policies and processes, there was a need to move 

this forward with practical steps. One such initiative had been the appointment of a 

‘Freedom to Speak Up’ champion from the BME staff community. The possibility of 

ensuring that there was a BME staff representative on recruitment panels for 

significant appointments was also being explored. LG added that a number of focus 

groups had been established for staff groups.  

 

SY queried whether the Trust was utilising any of the national leadership 

programmes in place for developing staff from a BME background. DH stated that 

the Trust was aware of the programmes but was challenged in terms of finding BME 

staff to attend. AK stated that this further demonstrated the need for the Trust to 

improve how it supported BME staff to progress in their careers.  

 

The Board discussed the need for the Trust to develop a comprehensive response 

to ensure that the issues raised are addressed in a sustainable manner. It was 

agreed that the Workforce Committee should take the issue forward and ensure that 

progress was monitored. 

 

Chair’s Log – Workforce Committee to ensure that the issues raised 

pertaining to BME staff were taken forward with progress monitored.  

 

 ME extended thanks to MM, TA and JM for attending. 

 

 Mercy Mbuyongha, Thomasina Afful and Joselito Marinas left the meeting 

 

17/154     Assurance Report from Committees 

  The Board considered the report, which summarised the key items discussed, risks 

identified and assurance provided by the Board’s Committees supported by 

updates from the Committee chairs.  

 

 With regards to the Finance and Performance Committee, JHG noted that an 

updated Financial Recovery Plan had been tabled. The phrasing of the recovery 

plan had been updated and a commitment to delivery of the ‘best case’ scenario of 

£14.4m deficit had been provided to NHSI. NHSI had been sighted on the attendant 

risks. An on-going focus for the Committee was on the Trust’s cash position. Cash 

support was currently above the Trust’s I&E position and a detailed discussion on 

this issue would be required at a future Board meeting. A discussion had been held 

on the budget setting process for 2018/19 and the need for strengthened ownership 

by budget holders had been highlighted. In terms of performance, the Trust 

continued to not meet the 95% A&E 4 hour target but improvements had been 

made in recent months. It had also been noted that there was a need for a broad 

discussion on how the Trust escalated and considered high level strategic risk. 
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 SY noted that she continued to chair the New Hospital Committee in Geoff 

Stewart’s absence. The Committee was focusing on the move into the new Royal 

with a particular focus on training and orientation for staff. 

 

 MJ noted that the Quality Governance Committee continued to monitor a number of 

quality issues. Particular attention was drawn to an independent peer review 

undertaken by NHS England on Cold Ischaemic Times in Renal Transplantation. 

Trust performance was below the required level and an improvement plan had been 

developed. An update had been requested for the December meeting.  

 

 NW reported that the Audit & Assurance Committee had considered a review of the 

2016/17 year-end process and improvements to the processes underpinning the 

respective accounting notes had been detailed. Work continued to improve 

reporting on tender waivers to ensure that there was a requisite level of scrutiny 

and oversight.   

 

 The Board noted the report.  

 

17/155     Trust Executive’s Performance Report 

AK highlighted that on 12 October 2017, the Trust welcomed the Prime Minister, the 

Secretary of State for Health and the new Chief Executive of the CQC to the Trust. 

AK noted that he had discussed the pressures on the overall system with the 

Secretary of State and had provided reassurance that patient flow was a significant 

priority for the organisation and the local health economy.  

 

In terms of patient flow, whilst the Trust and the wider system remained under 

significant pressure, improvements had been made against the 4 hour A&E target 

and thanks were extended to the teams involved. Further pressures were expected 

and the importance of improving patient discharges was highlighted. ME queried 

how the Board could effectively monitor the impact of the various programmes 

involved with improving patient flow. AK confirmed that every initiative included 

within the Winter Plan had been linked to an impact measure which would support 

the monitoring process. LG confirmed that she would ensure that the RAG rating 

process was robust and that a monthly update would be provided to the Finance 

and Performance Committee. ME added that it would be important to effectively 

track the additional resource that was being provided to support system wide 

pressures.  

 

The Trust had recently won ‘Best Global Digital exemplar’ at the E-Health Insider 

Awards. Congratulations were extended to DW and his team. 

 

ME invited Board members to highlight issues within the Trust Executives’ 

Performance Report. 

 

LG noted that the Trust continued to make good progress in relation to C.diff and 

remained under the target trajectory for the year. There had been a case of MRSA 

in November (in ITU) and this was currently being investigated. There had been 

three Serious Incidents in the period and particular attention was drawn to an 

incident relating to a patient transfer. Going forward, there was a need to ensure 

that processes were more robust and an increased focus would be placed on 
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education for staff with risk assessments in place. Ensuring that the flu vaccination 

was taken up by staff remained an area of focus. To date, 76.1% of front line staff 

had received a vaccination but there was a continued push for nursing staff to take 

up the opportunity. Whilst there had been slippage in RCA performance in recent 

months, there had been 100% compliance for September. The Trust was 

performing at 95% for the year to date position. This corrected the RCA data 

provided on p.49 of the pack. 

 

SY noted that the Workforce Committee had requested a ‘deep dive’ in January 

2018 to better understand the drivers behind Trust performance for appraisal 

completion and mandatory training.   

 

The Board noted the report. 

 

17/156     Board Assurance Framework – qtr. 2 review 2017/18 

 

MW reported that the Board Assurance Framework (BAF) had last been considered 

by the Board in July 2017. It had been updated to reflect additional 

controls/assurances to address gaps which had been identified as a result of 

continued monitoring and oversight of the delivery of the Trust’s objectives.  

 

MW noted that work continued to improve the clarity of assurance that was available 

to update the BAF. Part of this included improving the quality of risk reporting. 

Whilst the Trust was diligent in the reporting of risk, what was required was 

additional clarity on the nature of the risk in order to develop an aggregate view at a 

corporate level. ME queried how improvements could be made to the Board 

Committee minutes to enhance the clarity of assurance. MW confirmed that the 

majority of Committee secretaries had received training from NHS Providers but that 

the issue was multi-faceted linked to the quality of reporting and discussion as well 

as the quality of the minutes.  

 

MW confirmed that the BAF had been considered by the Executive Team and there 

was no intention to revise the ratings of any of the identified risks. 

 

The Board confirmed that the BAF provided an accurate reflection of the Trust’s 

Assurance Framework and summarised both the work undertaken and planned to 

effectively control the risks to the delivery of the Trust’s strategic objectives. 

 

17/157 Annual Plan – Q2 Progress and 2018/19 Approach 

 

AK introduced the report drawing attention to the assessment of how the Trust was 

performing against each respective corporate objective at the end of quarter two. 

AK continued to highlight the processes and controls introduced to improve project 

governance within the year. 

 

There was agreement that the format of the report was helpful in supporting the 

Board’s understanding of progress. SY drew attention to the workforce and 

leadership objective and suggested that the challenges described therein did not 

fully reflect the most significant challenges in this area. 
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AK summarised the process for developing objectives for 2018/19 and noted that it 

was unlikely that there would be any significant changes as the major projects 

remained pertinent.   

 

ME queried whether AK was content with the progress being made against the 

objectives. AK stated that good progress was being made on patient flow but noted 

that ensuring that system pressures were effectively managed was key to achieving 

the objective. The Trust’s financial position required improvement and reaching a 

stable position was vital over the next two quarters.  

 

ME noted that whilst the report was helpful in joining up the pertinent issues facing 

the Trust, it was still important for Executive Directors to provide assurance at Board 

Committee meetings that issues were being aligned. ME added that the Chief 

Executive’s summary report was useful in drawing attention to long term strategic 

issues.   

 

The Board noted the report. 

 

17/158 Safe Staffing October 2017 

 

The Board considered the monthly report on staffing levels and fill rates in October 

2017. The overall percentage of registered nursing staff against the actual, required 

for day duty, was 82.9% which was similar to the previous month (83.3%). The fill 

rate for registered nurses on night duty remained relatively constant at 90.9% 

(90.0% reported in September).  

 

For the month of October, 30 red flag incidents were raised, all of which had been 

responded to. Action had been taken to ensure that matron cover was in place 

which was helping staff to feel supported. There had been a slight reduction in Datix 

incidents reported in relation to staffing (41 compared to 48 in September). 

 

LG highlighted the two wards that had reported increased staffing pressure during 

the month; 6Y and 9X. For Ward 6Y work had been undertaken to ensure that there 

was enhanced stability in terms of leadership on the ward. For Ward 9X, the safer 

nursing tool had been utilised and this had identified that establishment level was 

appropriate. Work was continuing to recruit to outstanding vacancies.  

 

LG noted that NHSI had recently published a safe staffing document for urgent and 

emergency care. The Trust was one of the pilot organisations involved in informing 

the initial review and this process confirmed that staffing levels in the Accident and 

Emergency Department were fit for purpose. 

 

DH noted that there were high sickness levels in particular areas and stated that the 

Trust’s focus needed to be on these ‘hotspots’ to understand the underpinning 

issues. It was also suggested that the report should enable triangulation with bank 

and agency usage. AP stated that she would welcome links between agency / bank 

and overtime usage and this would enable a better understanding and enhance 

decision-making.  

 

JK highlighted that the correlation between staffing fill rates and untoward incidents 

did not seem to align as might be expected. LG confirmed that this required further 
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exploration and more thought on how the intelligence provided could be utilised 

more effectively. 

 

Action: To explore the relationship between fill rates and untoward incidents 

and to consider how the information could be utilised more effectively. 

 

SY drew attention to Ward 2B noting that it had a high rate of sickness and 4 red 

flags in the period. It was queried whether this ward was a concern. LG confirmed 

that the ward did not currently cause any concern from a care perspective. The red 

flags were responded to effectively and work was underway to improve the stability 

of the leadership on the ward. ME stated that it was encouraging that action was 

being taken to strengthen leadership on the wards but noted that this was not fully 

reflected in the report. 

 

Action: To amend the format of the safe staffing report to ensure that action 

relating to leadership development was included. 

 

The Board noted the report. 

 

17/159 Patient Safety and Mortality Report 

  

 Paul Fitzsimmons joined the meeting. 

 

PF introduced the quarterly update regarding mortality and patient safety. Mortality 

as measured by SHMI and HSMR was within the expected parameters. The stroke 

mortality rate was lower than expected which was the third year it was consistently 

below range. PF explained that every death that occurred within the Trust was 

subject to an independent peer review. In terms of the completion of these reviews, 

the Trust compared favourably with other organisations (92% compared to a 

national average of 40-45%).  

 

The Trust currently reported around 1% of deaths as being avoidable. This was 

compared to an expected range of 3-4%. PF explained that the reason for the 

variance would be explored as part of the peer review process.  

 

From Quarter 4 2017/18, the Trust was required to implement a mortality peer 

review process compliant with the 2017 National Quality Board ‘National Guidance 

for Learning from Deaths’. This would result in some key changes which included: 

• Use of evidence based Structured Judgement Case Review (SJCR) 

methodology 

• Introduction of a two stage peer review process 

• Increased transparency with reports being made available on the Trust 

website. 

 

PF continued to highlight key Board responsibilities relating to the Learning from 

Deaths Guidance. This included ensuring that mortality reporting was regularly 

considered by the Board in a public meeting and that a Non-Executive Director took 

oversight of the learning from deaths process. 
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Work was continuing to improve sepsis care and it was noted that the Trust was 

currently ranked the highest in the Advancing Quality footprint in terms of its 

appropriate care score. The Trust had also won an EHI award for the 

implementation of E-Sepsis. 

 

The Trust remained below the 95% target for VTE assessment. A new online VTE 

risk assessment tool had been rolled out Trust wide on the 30th October in order to 

improve compliance. A VTE strategy had also been developed which would be 

presented to a future Quality Governance Committee. There were no significant 

trends in terms of falls but toileting was associated with over 33% of incidents. 

Targeted work was being undertaken on this. There had been an increase in 

prevalence in pressure ulcers and an external review had been commissioned. 

Initial feedback from this had been positive about the Trust’s processes and the 

increase in prevalence seemed to reflect a national trend. 

 

DH queried the increase in the crude mortality figures. PF explained that there were 

often cyclical trends in mortality, for instance due to winter months. The Trust was 

also seeing an increased acuity of patients who were presenting with co-morbidities. 

The Trust was working with care homes to help to prevent avoidable admissions. If 

successful this would help to reduce the crude mortality rate. 

 

ME commended the Trust on its work relating to Stroke care. ME made reference to 

the terminology used in the report. PF confirmed that the terminology reflected that 

used in the national guidance and work was progressing with the communications 

team to seek improvements.   

   

The Board noted the report.  

 

 Paul Fitzsimmons left the meeting. 

 

17/160    LCRN Performance Review Quarter 2 2017/18  

The Board considered the summary of the Network’s performance in Quarter 2 of 

2017/18 in meeting the nationally agreed High Level Objectives for the region. 

PW highlighted an improved position in terms of the figures for total recruitment to 

studies. However, PW acknowledged that improvements were required in general 

practice and particularly in terms of recruitment into commercial trials. 

The Board noted the report.  

 

17/161 Health and Safety Quarterly Update 

 

The Board considered the latest quarterly update report from the Health and Safety 

Sub-Committee on activity within the Trust during the period 1st July 2017 – 30th 

September 2017.  

 

JHG explained that the Trust had a well-established Health and Safety sub-

committee and the terms of reference for this meeting were currently being 

reviewed. The work of the sub-committee demonstrated that strong engagement 

across the Trust was in place. SY queried the omission of the Trust’s response 
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following the Grenfell Fire in the report. JHG confirmed that this had been reported 

to the New Hospital Committee but acknowledged that a reference should have 

been included within the report. 

 

DH queried how health and safety issues raised by staff were triangulated with other 

workforce issues. JHG confirmed that the sub-committee used the Chair’s Log 

system. PW noted the CAS alerts which had been included within the report and 

stated that those relating to patient safety should be included within the Patient 

Safety and Mortality Quarterly update reports. 

 

Action: To include the CAS alerts relating to patient safety within the Patient 

Safety and Mortality Quarterly update reports  

 

AP highlighted the various walkabouts undertaken. LG stated that walkabouts were 

a useful way to increase visibility but acknowledged that there might be an 

opportunity to consider improved alignment. 

 

HS suggested that it would be useful if future reports could provide an overall 

assessment of health and safety activity and whether expected progress was being 

made. 

 

Action: For Health and Safety Quarterly Update to include a summary 

statement on health and safety activity and the progress being made against 

the set objectives. 

 

The Board noted the report. 

 

17/162 Review of Standing Orders / SFIs / Scheme of Reservation and Delegation 

  

MW explained that the Standing Orders (SOs), Standing Financial Instructions 

(SFIs) and Scheme of Reservation and Delegation (SORD) had been reviewed by 

key leads in the Corporate Governance and Finance Teams. The updated 

documents had been reviewed by the Audit & Assurance Committee on 12th 

October 2017 and a recommendation was made for the approval of the amended 

documents. 

 

The SFIs and SORD had been reviewed and amended to reflect changes in the 

regulator, capital regime for Trusts and alignment with revised expenditure 

authorisation limits implemented as part of financial recovery measures in 

September 2017. This included an amendment which would mean that any 

business case with a cost in excess of £50k would require consideration and 

approval by the Finance and Performance Committee. 

 

 The Board approved the updated SOs, SFIs and SORD. 

 

17/163 Board Champions and Nominated Leads 

 

MG introduced the report which provided a summary of the statutory and other 

guidance that identified a requirement for a Champion or Board Lead. The report 

identified a potential allocation of Non-Executive Directors against the respective 

roles which based on an alignment with Committee memberships. MG added that 
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the identified roles should be viewed within the context that the Board retains 

collective responsibility for discharging its statutory duties.  

 

A discussion was held on the principle of appointing Board champions and/or Leads 

and it was suggested that if appointments were made, it would be vital that the 

unitary nature of the Board remained protected. It was agreed that further clarity 

regarding role and responsibilities would be developed and the responsibilities it 

would bring onto the respective individual 

 

Action: To develop role requirements for Board champion and/or leads.  

 

17/164 Chair’s Logs 

 

 The following Chair’s Log was noted: 

 

• For the Workforce Committee to ensure that the issues raised pertaining to 

BME staff were taken forward with progress monitored.  

 

17/165   Questions from members of public 

 

A member of the public questioned whether an Equality Impact Assessment and 

Disability Audit had been carried out for the new Hospital. It was also queried when 

it would be possible to view the drop off point and pick up points to see if these 

areas were fully compliant in terms of access. 

 

For the latter query, JHG noted that these areas had yet to be completed by 

Carillion. JHG undertook to provide a written response to former query. 

 

Action: To provide a written response to a public question relating to whether 

an Equality Impact Assessment and Disability Audit had been carried out for 

the new Hospital. 

 

Exclusion of the Public 

The Board of Directors resolved to exclude the press and public from the meeting at 

this point on the grounds that publicity of the matters being reviewed would be 

prejudicial to public interest, by reason of the confidential nature of business.  

Members of the public were requested to leave the meeting room at this point. 

 

 

………………………………………   …………………………………… 

Next meeting open to the public: 30 January 2018   
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Action Tracker       Report owner: Madelaine Warburton 

ACTIONS INCLUDED ON THE PUBLIC AGENDA 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Item Action Owner Action Taken 

Nov-17 
17/161 

Health and Safety 
Quarterly Update 

To include the CAS alerts 
relating to patient safety 
within the Patient Safety 
and Mortality Quarterly 

update reports 

PW Patient Safety and Mortality Report 
includes Trust response to National 
Patient Safety  Agency CAS Alerts 

Nov-17 
17/158 
  

Safe Staffing 
October 2017 

To amend the format of 
the safe staffing report to 

ensure that action 
relating to leadership 

development was 
included. 

LG Included within the Safe Staffing Report. 

Apr-17 
17/9 

 

Safe Staffing March 
2017 

 

To review the ward 
quality dashboard report 
to incorporate impact of 

acuity and how assurance 
provided. 

LG Included within the Safe Staffing Report. 

 

ACTIONS COMPLETED & CLOSED SINCE LAST MONTH 

Meeting 
Date 

Item Action Owner Action Taken 

None noted. 

 
 

 

Trust Board rolling action tracker        Report owner: Madelaine Warburton 

PUBLIC ROLLING ACTION TRACKER OF OUTSTANDING ACTONS  

Items in Red are overdue 

Items requiring verbal update highlighted  

Meeting 
Date 

Item Action Owner Action Taken Due Date 

Nov-17 
17/165 
  

Questions from 
members of public 

To provide a written 
response to a public 
question relating to 
whether an Equality 

Impact Assessment and 
Disability Audit had been 
carried out for the new 

Hospital. 

JHG 

Meeting to be arranged with 
Trust E&D Manager to discuss 
the issues raised. 

Jan-18 

Nov-17 
17/163 

Board Champions 
and Nominated 

Leads 

To develop role 
requirements for Board 
champion and/or leads.  

MG 
 Mar-18 

Nov-17 
17/161 

Health and Safety 
Quarterly Update 

For Health and Safety 
Quarterly Update to 
include a summary 

statement on health and 
safety activity and the 
progress being made 

against the set objectives. 

JHG  Feb-18 
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Nov-17 
17/158 
  

Safe Staffing 
October 2017 

To explore the 
relationship between fill 

rates and untoward 
incidents and to consider 

how the information 
could be utilised more 

effectively. 

LG As part of the February Acuity 
Audit, the review will examine 
incidents and harms reported 
within each clinical area and 
undertake some analysis of any 
linkage with fill rates. This will 
be reported to Board in April 
2018 

Apr-18 
(Jan-18) 

Sep-17 
17/115 
 
 
  

Trust Executive's 
Performance 

Report 

To undertake an analysis 
of whether the RLB 

Nursing Programme had 
had a beneficial impact 
on the recruitment and 

retention of the 
participating staff groups. 

LG A second survey has been sent 
to all staff who have undertaken 
the RLB programme although 
results are not due back until 
end January. Findings from this 
feedback will be reported to 
Board next month within the 
staffing paper. Additional 
questions to capture this 
feedback have also been 
included within leaver forms. 

Feb-18 
(Nov-17) 

Sep-17 
17/115 
 
 
  

Trust Executive’s 
Performance 

Report 

To explore Board 
involvement in the 

presentation of staff star 
awards and the potential 
for including a ‘staff story’ 

item on the agenda. 

DH ‘Staff Story’ item received in the 
November 17 meeting. 
 
Non-Executive Directors to be 
invited to Reward & 
Recognition’ events (held 
quarterly) 

Jan-18 
(Nov-17) 

Jul-17 
17/73 

Trust Executive’s 
Performance 

Report 

For an update on the 
alignment between the 
workforce plan and the 
LTFM to be provided to 

the next scheduled Board 
meeting. 

DH Planned for February 2018 
Board meeting  

Feb-18 
(Sep-17) 

Jan-17 
16/237 

Risk Management 
Policy 

 

Work to be undertaken to 
reflect approach to 

address aggregate risk, 
the metrics used to 

assess severity of risk and 
continued focus on 

improved definition of 
controls. Consideration to 
be given to the impact of 

missed opportunities 
when mitigating risk. 

LG A paper will be produced for the 
Board that looks at the 
aggregation of risk over the next 
2 years. Future presentation of 
this reporting can be agreed by 
the Board and then monitored 
going forward. 

Mar-17 
(Nov-17) 
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Calendar of ad hoc reports     Report owner: Madelaine Warburton 

What will be coming to the board in the next three months? 

Date Ad Hoc Report  

  

 

February 

Integrated Financial Improvement Plan (Monthly) 

Safe Staffing (Monthly) 

Quarterly Health and Safety Update 

Staff Survey 

Orthopaedics consultation report 

Outline Business Case to Final Business Case – Process 

GDPR Update 

Workforce Plan 

Clinician presence 

 

March 

Integrated Financial Improvement Plan (Monthly) 

Safe Staffing (Monthly) 

Board Champions 

National Inpatient Survey 

Succession Planning 

Innovation – Strategic Approach 

Corporate Objectives Plan 2018/19 – including assessment of risk, risk appetite and 

resources. 

 

April 

Integrated Financial Improvement Plan (Monthly) 

Safe Staffing (Monthly) 

Annual review of committees / Committee TOR 

Patient Safety and Mortality 

Board Assurance Framework 

LCRN Performance 

Junior Doctor Safe Working 

Annual Plan 

Declaration of Interests 
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Chair’s Log & Attendance Record       Report owner: Madelaine Warburton 

Chair’s Logs Received 

Committee Issue  Recommendation/Action  Due Date  Action   
New Hospital 
Committee 
18 January 2018 

Staff capacity/pressures 
 
Lead Officers: Debbie 
Herring and Susan Young 

Staff pressures to be discussed at 
Trust Board. Relating to the 
following action at New Hospital 
Committee: 
(05/17/05d) Examine service 
move in terms of staff capacity 
relating to other key projects (i.e. 
merger) at Communications and 
Engagement Group. 

Feb-18  

New Hospital 
Committee 

Workforce Plan 
 
Lead Officers: Stella 
Clayton/Debbie Herring 

Workforce plan to be presented 
at September Trust Board. 

Feb-18 
(Sept-17) 

Workforce Plan 
scheduled for 
consideration at the 
February 2018 Board. 

 
Chair’s Logs Delegated 
 

Trust 
Board 
Date 

Issues and 
Lead Officer 

Receiving 
Body 

Recommendation/ 
assurance / mandate to 
receiving body 

Due Date Action 

Nov-17 

17/153 

Patient Story – 

BME staff 

experience 

 

Debbie Herring

   

Workforce 
Committee 

To ensure that the issues raised 
pertaining to BME staff during 
the ‘staff story’ item were taken 
forward with progress 
monitored. 

Jan-18 Scheduled for discussion on 
the January 2018 Workforce 
Committee agenda. 

Sep-17 

17/121 

Emergency 

Preparedness, 

Resilience and 

Response 

John Graham 

Finance and 
Performance 
Committee 

To receive an update on 
progress made to engage with 
teams across the Trust with 
their respective local level 
continuity plans.   

Nov-17 The F&P Committee continues 
to oversee this issue until all 
areas have local plans in 
place. 

Sep-17 

17/120 

 

Safe Staffing 

Lisa Grant 

Quality 
Governance 
Committee 

For the Quality Governance 
Committee to consider the 
development of safe staffing 
reports for staffing groups 
other than nursing. 

Nov-17 Discussed at the December 
2017 meeting. Agreed that LG 
would consider AHP staff and 
PW to consider medical 
workforce. 
 
Closed 

 

Jul-17 
17/81 

Safe Staffing 

and Support 

Services 

Debbie Herring  

Workforce  
Committee 

To explore the impact that 
support services have on safe 
staffing and whether 
improvements can be made. 

Feb-18 Confirmed (Nov-17) that work 
to explore how to capture 
safe staffing information for 
other staff groups (beyond 
nursing) continued to 
progress. It was planned to 
undertake the first stage with 
Allied Health Professionals 
and then work through other 
staffing groups. Progress 
against this work would be 
reported to the Workforce 
Committee. 

April 17  Patient Story 
Lisa Grant  

Exec Team To explore the approach used 
for patient stories and consider 

January 
2018 (July  

Reported (Jul-17) that 
discussions had been held 
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alternative options. 2017) with both the Chair and the 
Executive Team. Endeavours 
would be made to ensure that 
a patient was in attendance. 
This efficacy of this approach 
would be reviewed in six 
months. 

Feb 17  Corporate 
Objectives 
2017/18  
Peter Williams 

All 
Committees 

Corporate objective success 
measures to be presented to all 
relevant Committees  

April 2017  Reported to F & P June 2017. 
Also reported to the New 
Hospital Committee in August 
2017.    

Feb 17  FIP Phase 2 
work – John 
Graham 

F&P 
Committee 

A summary of the agreed 
scope, proposed schemes, Trust 
response, savings secured and 
rationale for deviation from the 
FIP phase 2 work to be remitted 
to F & P  

Dec 2017 Once phase 3 complete 
composite report to be 
produced. 

 
 
 

Executive Director/NED No of Board Meetings Attended* 

Bill Griffiths 5/6 

Aidan Kehoe 6/6 

Mike Eastwood 5/6 

John Graham 6/6 

Lisa Grant 5/6 

Debbie Herring 4/5 

Malcolm Jackson 4/6 

James Kingsland 6/6 

Angela Phillips 4/6 

Helen Shaw 5/6 

Geoff Stewart 1/6 

David Walliker 4/6 

Neil Willcox 6/6 

Peter Williams 6/6 

Susan Young 5/6 
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RLBUHT BOARD PACK

Assurance Report from Committee 
 

  
 

Assurance report from Committees  
Mark Grimshaw  

GENERAL PURPOSE: REFERENCE INFORMATION 

Purpose of paper Key facts 
X For assurance 
 

Sponsor: Madelaine Warburton, Associate Director of Corporate 
Affairs 

☐ To note 
☐ For decision (no budget requested) Service line affected: Trust 
☐ For decision (budget requested) Date of board meeting to discuss this paper:  30/01/2018 

Budget:   Security marking:  None 
Funding source:   Please note, this report could be subject to FoI disclosure 

Other forums where this has/will be discussed:  Summary of committee minutes 
 

Has this paper considered the following?                                                                                                      

Key stakeholders: Our compliance with: 
x Patients x Regulators (NHSI, CCG,  CQC etc) 

x Staff x Legal frameworks (HSE, NHS Constitution etc.) 

☐ Other (Students, Community, other HCPs) x Equality, diversity & human rights 
 

Have we considered opportunity & risk in the following areas?                       

x Clinical x Financial  ☐ Reputation  
   

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

1. STRATEGIC CONTEXT                  

The Board has formally approved the delegation of powers to be exercised by formally constituted 

committees. The terms of reference of the committees and their specific powers are formally approved by 

the Board in accordance with para 4.3 of the Trust’s Standing Orders.    

 
2. QUESTION(S) ADDRESSED IN THIS REPORT             

Committees are responsible for providing assurance to the board in relation to the conduct of its business. 

The committees are also responsible for managing the strategic risks relevant to its area of responsibility and 

to provide assurance that the risks are being managed. 

 
This report summarises the key items discussed, decisions made and linkages to key risks discussed by the 

Committees.  This includes the most up-to-date minutes available as at 19 January 2018.  Copies of the 

minutes are available electronically for all Board members on Virtual Boardroom/Trust Board/Supporting 

Documents.      

 
3. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION        

The Board is asked to discuss and note items considered, decisions made, key risks discussed by the 

Committees and assurances obtained/required.  
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Assurance Report from Committees 
 

  
 

Assurance report from Committees  Mark Grimshaw  

MAIN REPORT:  

Committee / Date: Finance and Performance Committee – 24th November 2017 
Quorate: Yes 
Minutes Reviewed by 
Chairman: 

Yes 

Considered: • Corporate Performance Update – The Committee was informed that improvements were expected prior to year-end 
from a range of actions to support patient flow. The importance of being clear around the impact of the initiatives 
against a baseline was asserted. Also noted that the backlog around diagnostic waits for Endoscopy/Gastro had started 
to reduce and noted that the introduction of internal targets would be useful for driving further improvements. 

• Liverpool Orthopaedic and Trauma Services – The Committee considered the payment options for the upgrade of two 
of the laminar flow theatres at Broadgreen Hospital. Following review, the Committee stated that further work was 
required to strengthen the options.  

• Verbal update provided on non-clinical accommodation for IT. Solicitors have been instructed to progress in line with 
the Heads of Terms. Agreed that if the review fell within the assumptions/costs element, the matter would be 
progressed via Executive Directors. 

• Equipment for the new Hospital – items within Batch 4 received approval. Due to time constraints and unforeseen 
circumstances some items previously identified within Batch 4 were not ready for approval. These items would form a 
final Batch 5 and would be brought for the Committee’s consideration once ready. 

• 2018/19 Budget Setting Timetable – Reported that key assumptions and principles had been shared with budget 
holders. Opportunities for challenge were being provided and it was expected that there would be a number of 
iterations. Approval of budgets was expected before the end of March.  

• RedX Update – Noted that the Trust had received formal notification that the period of Administration for RedX had 
ended.  The financial implications for the Trust’s LTFM were being explored. 
 

Key Risks / Negative 
Assurances: 

• Discussion held with regards to the finance risk register. Suggested that if the Trust was not delivering against plan at 
Month 8 then the score of 16 would need to be increased.  

• Discussion held on the management of corporate risk. It was suggested that the issue could be discussed as part of a 
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Assurance Report from Committees 
 

  
 

Assurance report from Committees  Mark Grimshaw  

Board development session. 

• Update on the Trust’s financial position provided. For Month 7, the Trust had an overall deficit position of  

• £18.9m - £8.1m worse than planned but an improvement compared to Month 1 – 6 trend. There had been significant 
improvement in terms of agency spend. It was noted that further data dashboards were in development with the 
support of KPMG and that this would help to support the reporting of the Trust’s financial position. The work of the 
turnaround director was highlighted in relation to providing enhanced assurance around the deliverability of the 
various recovery schemes. It was noted that work was continuing to develop a list of potential further actions for 
consideration by Executive Directors. 

• Reported that the Trust’s cash position continued to be challenged. It was agreed to raise this issue with the Board. 
 

Positive Assurances • None noted in the meeting 
 

Committee / Date: Charitable Funds Committee – 2nd October 2017 
Quorate: Yes 
Minutes Reviewed by 
Chairman: 

Yes 

Considered: • Fundraising Update Report – Highlighted that alternative models for supporting major donor fundraising were being 
pursued with the Head of Fundraising  assuming responsibility for the area. It was agreed that a discussion be held at 
the next meeting about how the Trust Board, executive team and senior managers could support work with major 
donors. A review of fundraising and effective methods was suggested.  

• The draft budget for 2018-19 was discussed. The addition of KPIs was requested, particularly relating to fundraising 
expenditure as a % of fundraising income generated. Agreed that this would be included in future reports. 

• Management of Charitable Funds - A discussion was held around amending the threshold for delegated authority for 
expenditure to £5,000 or 10% of the fund value for grant requests. It was noted that there needed to be a balance 
between freedom to spend and retaining adequate balances. A review of the respective governance documents would 
be held and if the revised processes were adopted, the Trust’s SFIs and Standing Orders would be amended 
accordingly. 
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Assurance report from Committees  Mark Grimshaw  

• Approval between meetings schedule – A discussion was held relating to the use of funds to support the Staff Awards 
Ceremony and that alternative sources of funding would need to be identified.  

Key Risks / Negative 
Assurances: 

• Investment Update Report – Update on the Statement of Financial Activities for the period ended 31st August 2017. 
Overall there had been a decrease of £180k in the year to date position which included the impact of gains on 
investments. 

Positive Assurances • Investment Update Report – There had been an over-performance against the benchmark index in the reporting 
period. 

 

Committee / Date: Workforce Committee – 20th November 2017 
Quorate: Yes 
Minutes Reviewed by 
Chairman: 

Yes 

Considered: • Modern Slavery Act 2015 – Update received on progress against the action plan established following the approval of 
the Trust’s statement for 2015/16. An updated statement for 2016/17 was considered and approved for publication.  

• Recruitment – Noted that vacancies continued to be reviewed by the Executive vacancy scrutiny panel. A query was 
raised in relation to the time taken from advert to unconditional offer. Noted that whilst this had increased during the 
implementation of the scrutiny panel, it was expected to revert to expected levels as the process became embedded. 

• Draft Workforce Plan For New Hospital And Wider Workforce – Reported that the ‘opening position’ draft workforce 
plan for the new hospital and wider workforce had been developed over the last 18 months by the operational 
divisions using a quality led ‘bottom up’ workforce planning model and clinical challenge. It was agreed that further 
work was required on the plan to reflect different ways of working had been fully considered, including maximising the 
use of IT solutions. 

• OBC – Workforce Chapter – Reported that next steps would explore the opportunities from the proposed merger and 
the efficiencies that would occur.  

• Junior Doctors Banding Root Cause Analysis – Reported that the extent of the financial risk had crystalized and would 
be included within December 2017 staff payments.  Under new controls, exception reporting regarding safe working 
time and issues would feed into the Junior Doctors forum.  Going forward, exception reports would be considered by 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 r

ep
or

t

Page 19 of 218



RLBUHT BOARD PACK

Assurance Report from Committees 
 

  
 

Assurance report from Committees  Mark Grimshaw  

Workforce Committee prior to the Board. 
 

Key Risks / Negative 
Assurances: 

• Appraisal - A slight improvement was seen against the June 2017 data.  Reported that managers had been asked to 
confirm their Care Group / Departmental position by the end of November 2017. 

• Reported that further work was required regarding the potential financial implications of the draft Workforce Plan 
compared to the workforce assumptions in the current LFTM. 

• Haematology Services – A risk was noted in relation to service provision due to staffing issues following the citywide 
reconfiguration of services and due to existing gaps within the medical workforce. This was also resulting in a 
significant agency spend. Locum doctors were being used to cover gaps as necessary, and a workforce review was 
taking place as part of the new models of care being developed.  LCL looking at staffing model and agency spend.    
 

Positive Assurances • Sickness Absence - reported that sickness absence had decreased in month 6 to 3.99%, from 4.04% in Month 5.  This 
was the lowest in-month sickness rate in over a decade.  Month 6 rolling rate at 4.99% was a 30% reduction in sickness 
absence over the 9 months to September 2017. Further clarification around sickness targets was requested and it was 
noted that this would be provided at the next scheduled meeting. 

• Bank and Agency - reported that spending had continued to reduce and at Month 6 was within the NHSI target.  
Challenge and review meetings continued with areas of high usage along with additional monthly Executive scrutiny. 
Total staffing spend rose by £100k in Month 6 due to a 1% growth in the overall workforce, as well as a 0.5%  increase 
in medical staffing payments. 

• Education & Learning Strategy Annual Report - Reported that there had been significant progress in most areas, most 
notably in training and opportunities for clinical and support staff on the “Great Place to Learn” Strategy, pre-
employment, work experience and apprenticeship opportunities. It was suggested that the 2014/18 strategy should be 
refreshed. It was also suggested that learning from incidents and errors should be considered in terms of feeding into 
Education and Learning Plans. Agreed that a draft proposal would be scheduled for the March 2018 meeting.  
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Committee / Date: Remuneration Committee – 28th November 2017 
Quorate: Yes 
Minutes Reviewed by 
Chairman: 

No 

Considered: 
 
 

• Board Succession 
 

 

Committee / Date: Research Development & Innovation Committee – 11th December 2017 
Quorate: Yes 
Minutes Reviewed by 
Chairman: 

No 

Considered: • Future Collaboration with West China Hospital – Work is progressing alongside the University of Liverpool to develop a 
relationship with West China Hospital.  

• Feasibility of observation studies – Reported that the possibility of undertaking observation studies at the Trust was 
being explored. Noted that this could potentially benefit the Trust’s performance in terms of recruitment into 
research. 

• Department of Health targets – The Trust’s performance in terms of recruiting into trials was discussed. Agreed need 
for strengthened forward planning with regards to numbers and recruitment and assurances were sought at a future 
meeting. 

• Liverpool Health Partners (LHP) / Industry Gateway Office (IGO) - stated that there is on-going work through a task and 
finish group with regards to the development of an IGO. Work was also underway to review LHP in terms of its 
structure, processes and objectives. 

• Clinical Research Unit – The CRU phase 1 unit will have an inspection by MHRA. This was initially going to be delayed 
until May 2018 with the opening of the new Royal, but would now progress on the existing site. 
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Committee / Date: New Hospital Committee – 16th November 2017 
Quorate: Yes 
Minutes Reviewed by 
Chairman: 

Yes 

Considered: • Clinician Presence – It was agreed that the option appraisal for an automated solution to identify when a clinician was 
in a bedroom with a patient be brought to the Committee for review together with the outcome of the tender. 

• Training and Orientation Update – welcomed the extensive training and orientation plan for the new Royal to support 
staff in understanding the new equipment and building systems. A high-level training and orientation breakdown and 
risk register was requested to be presented to the January committee meeting. 

• Programme Funding Group – Noted that future meetings would take place immediately after the Committee. 

• New Hospital Implementation Group – Agreed that a summary of the key issues from this meeting would be reported 
to future Committee meetings. 

• Communications and Engagement Working Group – Agreed that a monthly forward plan would be developed detailing 
upcoming events relating to the new Royal. 

• Digital Oversight Committee - Reported that EPR (Electronic Patient Record) had been approved by NHSI. 
 

Key Risks / Negative 
Assurances: 

• Construction Update – Committee informed that Carillion continued to report a handover date of the 28th February 
2018. Work continued to provide sufficient assurance to the independent tester that structural and remedial works 
had been completed to a satisfactory level. Random inspections had been carried out in the period to assess the 
quality of the rooms within the new Royal. Noted that a verbal update on the potential impact of construction risks 
would be provided to the Trust Board. 

• Implementation Update - Reported that a number of equipment risks previously raised through the Committee were 
close to reaching a conclusion.  

• Master Programme – Concern reported pending re-inspection of the exemplar theatre. 

• Risk Register – Reported new risk relating to delay with the delivery of the external circuits. 
 

Positive Assurances • None noted in the meeting. 
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Committee / Date: Quality Governance Committee – 6th December 2017 
Quorate: Yes 
Minutes Reviewed by 
Chairman: 

Yes 
 

Considered: • Quality Performance Report considered. Key issues identified were as follows: 
o Falls causing moderate to severe harm have increased slightly from September. The draft Falls External Report 

and the National Falls Audit would be submitted to a future meeting. 
o The number of hospital acquired pressure ulcers has decreased compared against last month. 
o The Trust is marginally underperforming in relation to response rates for complaints 

• VTE Report – Noted that an action plan had been developed to improve VTE performance. VTE Performance will be 
monitored by the Patient Safety Sub-Committee. 

• Discharge Information and Transfer of Care Documentation – The Committee was informed of the actions undertaken 
in relation to the review of the discharge and transfer of patients and associated documentation. 

• Smoking in the New Build - New Hospital Committee Chair’s Log – Arrangements for fire safety and smoking on the 
new Royal site were outlined. It was queried whether  a risk assessment of the whole site had been conducted in 
terms of smoking. It was agreed that this would be carried out. 

• Winter Plan – The updated winter plan was considered. 

Key Risks / Negative 
Assurances: 

• From the Clinical Effectiveness Assurance Report 
o There is an on-going risk in relation to non-compliance to Quality Standard 104, gallstone disease, in that the 

arrangements in place to mitigate the risk may lead to an increase in mortality. The Clinical Ethics Sub 
Committee has requested further information in order to provide an independent review. 

o A key risk highlighted related to Quality Standard 120, Medicines Optimisation, statement 1. This statement 
relates to people being given the opportunity to be involved in making decisions about their medicines. The 
patient representative at the meeting felt this did not reflect her experience. The need to involve patients will 
be communicated to the consent group and through other internal communications methods.  

• From the Patient Safety Assurance Report 
o Key risks highlighted related to VTE risk assessment performance/backlog of RCAs and implementation of 

EPMA in the Emergency Department. A VTE report was scheduled elsewhere on the agenda which detailed 
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how actions would be taken forward. In relation to EPMA, IT were to be invited to attend the Patient Safety 
Sub-Committee to discuss progress on implementation. 

• From the Scheduled Care Assurance Report 
o A key risk related to compliance with Basic Life Support (BLS), Immediate Life Support (ILS) and Advanced Life 

Support (ALS) training targets. Work was planned to be undertaken to improve compliance and will be 
monitored at divisional governance. 

• From the Unscheduled Care Update Report 
o Key risks highlighted related to the achievement of the QEP target, an increase in number of pressure ulcer 

and falls within the division and compliance with BLS, ILS and ALS training targets.   

• From the LCL Assurance Report: 
o Committee informed that going forward the risks identified within the report would be reviewed to ensure 

they had been placed on risk register. 

Positive Assurances • From the Patient Safety Assurance Report 
o Assurance was given in relation to the decrease in the number of overdue RCAs, with 11 outstanding. All 

action plans for PSA alerts were on track for completion within the required timeframe. Significant 
improvements had been made with the Duty of Candour process. 

• From the Scheduled Care Assurance Report 
o Cancelled operations had improved by 50%, with the main driver being the adherence to the Critical Care Step 

Down Policy. Two way texting was introduced two months earlier and there had been a significant reduction 
in the number of DNAs. 

• Infection Control Report and Action Plan Quarter 2 – Reported that the Trust remained under trajectory for CDI 
infection. Also noted that the Trust was in the top 10% in the country for vaccinating front line staff. 

• Emergency Department Survey Report and Action Plan – Noted that the action plan had been developed to address 
areas of underperformance. Actions included ambulance handover times in ED, 4 hour waiting target, communication 
and food & hydration. The Committee commented on the improvements made on the ground floor and thanked staff 
for their hard work.  
 The Patient Experience sub-committee will continue to monitor the action plan. 

• Duty of Candour Report - The Committee was given assurance that the new daily Datix process for reporting was 
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working well. 

 

 

CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION  

  

The Board is asked to discuss and note key items, decisions made and linkages to key risks.      
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Trust dashboard: At a glance, how are we performing? Report owner: Aidan Kehoe

Commentary

Executive Summary

There have been significant developments across all four of the Trust’s key 2017/18 objectives since the
last board.

Most fundamental of these has been the liquidation of Carillion PLC, which will undoubtedly lead to a
further delay on the completion of the new hospital. However, at this point in time the focus is on what
can be done to support the staff and sub-contractors of Carillion, who have been left devastated by the
situation. As Board members are aware, assurance has been received from the Hospital Company
(Liverpool) that resources are available to ensure completion of the new build. We will, therefore,
continue to plan for the move in to what will be one of the finest hospitals to be found anywhere in the
world.

With regard to winter pressures and patient flow, I can report to the Board that our staff have responded
magnificently to the challenges they have faced. In common with all NHS acute Trusts we have been
under immense pressure. We have, however, managed this much better than most and this has been
recognised by NHS Improvement and NHS England in our regular tele-conferences. We have also lent
significant support to the Southport system which has been under greater challenge.

The financial position of the Trust remains a massive challenge, but we have seen some notable
improvements in trends around both pay and non-pay spend. The pay spend is partly masked by the
seasonal impact we see every year over the winter months, but we have managed our costs very well this
year when compared with previous years.

Finally, we have recently had a very positive meeting with NHSI following the submission of the outline
Business Case (OBC) for the merger with Aintree University Hospital. This is an important part of our aim
to create a sustainable health system for the City Region that will deliver better services and outcomes
for patients, as well as delivering greater value for taxpayers. We are working with NHSI to agree next
steps.

What has gone well?

As stated in the summary above the Trusts response to winter pressure has been magnificent in the lead
up to the winter period . Staff worked hard to ensure that arrangements were put in to place that would
enable us to optimise patient flow and keep our patients as safe as possible. This included, amongst many
initiatives the introduction of the SAFER care bundle (appendix 1) on the wards; the development of the
frailty unit and clinical decisions unit on the ground floor; the introduction of ‘fit to sit’ to improve
ambulance turnaround times; and a huge push on flu vaccination for staff. We are also grateful to our
colleagues in the Local Authority and other agencies and NHS organisations for their support. System
collaboration has been better than ever before, and there are numerous examples of this work and how it
has helped in managing pressures. Examples include examples of the Home First initiative; Core 24
support for patients with mental health issues; the development of the Integrated Community
Rehabilitation and Assessment Unit (ICRAS); the provision of beds by Liverpool Heart and Chest Hospital
for respiratory patients; and staff provided to Southport by the Walton Centre and Liverpool Women’s
Hospital to help support them.
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Trust dashboard: At a glance, how are we performing? Report owner: Aidan Kehoe

Commentary

Facilities Management

Carillion provided ‘hard’ facilities management (FM) services including maintenance and repairs to the
estate. They did not provide soft FM services such as porters and cleaners. Staff in the FM service have
already been told that their jobs are secure and that they will continue to be paid. We do not, therefore,
anticipate any disruption in service provision.

The Official Receiver has provided a guarantee for payment of these staff up to the end of the month. At
such time as these payments cease then staff will transfer to a new company set up by The Hospital
Company to ensure work can continue and staff continue to be paid. Should there be any delay in
transferring staff to the new company, then they will transfer to our staff bank until the transfer to the
new company has been successfully completed.

Site Security

Again Hospital Company (Liverpool) are contractually obliged to ensure the construction site remains
secure and have established a new contract with the site security team to ensure the construction site
remains safe and secure.

Paying for the new Royal

The agreed fee for construction of the new Royal is £335m. This figure, as well as the timescale for
repayments, is fixed.

Any additional costs due to remedial works, or costs incurred by the overrunning of the project are not
met by the Trust.

Also, the Trust will not start making the Unitary Payment (annual repayment costs) for the hospital until it
takes handover and the building’s completion has been confirmed by the independent tester.

So while this handover is deferred the overall cost to the Trust will be less.

Staff Star Awards

Congratulations to all of Our Staff Stars who I had the pleasure in presenting with awards over the past
few months.

Our Employee of the month for August was Claire Whittaker from Ward 11 at Broadgreen who was
nominated for her hard work, dedication and contribution to the service provided under the Trusts value
of ‘Patient Centred’.
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Trust dashboard: At a glance, how are we performing? Report owner: Aidan Kehoe

Commentary

Employee of the month for September was Geraldine Lloyd from the Frailty Unit who was also nominated 
for her hard work, dedication and contribution to the service provided under the  Trusts  value of ‘Patient 
Centred’.

Employee of the month for October was Fiona Scanlon from Ward 3 at Broadgreen who was
nominated for her hard work, dedication and contribution to the service provided under the Trusts
value of ‘Patient Centred’.

Our Volunteer of the month for July was Jim Daly who volunteers in the Linda McCartney Centre.
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Trust dashboard: At a glance, how are we performing? Report owner: Aidan Kehoe

Commentary

Volunteer of the month for August Paul Dixon who volunteers in the main foyer.

Volunteer for the month for October Joyce Carter  who volunteers in the physiotherapy department

New Consultants

The following Consultants have been appointed to the Trust since the last board meeting.

Some of the Board members will have been on the Interview Panels and will have had the opportunity to
meet with the candidates prior to the panel. I would like to take this opportunity to welcome these highly
skilled individuals to our Trust;
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Trust dashboard: At a glance, how are we performing? Report owner: Aidan Kehoe

Commentary

Where have we been challenged?

Emergency Access - 4 Hour Standard:

The Emergency Department has been under increased pressures which has had a direct effect on the
National 4-hour Trust Access Target. For December 2017 the Trust achieved 89.8%.

Quality, Efficiency and Productivity (QEP) and delivery of the financial plan

The Chairman and I continue to have our meetings with our colleagues at NHS Improvement regarding
the Trust’s financial position. We have submitted a recovery plan to NHSI, and will need to continue to
develop new proposals in the coming months. Further meetings with NHSI are scheduled over the coming
months, and it is essential that we demonstrate an improving position.

New Hospital/Carillion Update

As stated in my summary, on Monday 15 January Carillion ceased trading and went in to liquidation.

The Hospital Company (Liverpool) are contracted to deliver the project and have a range of provisions to
ensure the construction is completed. These provisions cover a variety of events that could impact on
the delivery of the project, including insolvency. The Hospital Company is empowered to terminate
existing contracts and engage a new contractor to complete construction should it be necessary to do so,
and they have access to sufficient insurance funds to ensure completion.

At the current time the Hospital Company is working with the Official Receiver, PWC and Carillion staff
and sub-contractors with a view of getting work on the new Royal under way again as soon as possible.
Whilst guarantees have been given about payments being made for work between the date of liquidation
and completion of the scheme, this does not resolve the issue of amounts owed to sub-contractors at the
date of liquidation. We are acutely aware of the anxiety this situation will be causing for sub-contractors
and Carillion staff and will do all that we can to support them.
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Commentary

The SAFER patient flow bundle

S - Senior Review. All patients will have a senior review before midday by a clinician able

to make management and discharge decisions.

A – All patients will have an Expected Discharge Date (EDD) and Clinical Criteria for

Discharge (CCD), set by assuming ideal recovery and assuming no unnecessary

waiting.

F - Flow of patients to commence at the earliest opportunity from assessment units to

inpatient wards. Wards routinely receiving patients from assessment units will ensure the first

patient arrives on the ward by 10am.

E – Early discharge. 33% of patients will be discharged from base inpatient wards before

midday.

R – Review. A systematic multi-disciplinary team (MDT) review of patients with extended

lengths of stay (>7 days – also known as ‘stranded patients’) with a clear ‘home first’

mind set.

S - Senior Review. All patients should have a senior review before midday

Appendix 1
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Trust dashboard: At a glance, how are we performing? Report owner: Aidan Kehoe

Values:  Patient centred, Professional, Engaged, Collaborative, Open and engaged
Corporate objectives:  Ensure that as many patients as possible receive the best care
Indicator Target Actual Period
‘care for Pats . i s  priori ty’ +ve s taff survey response 67% 73% Annual

‘happy with care provis ion’ +ve s taff survey response 77% 80% Annual

‘incident reporting’ +ve s taff survey response 90% 90% Annual

Fa l ls  per 1,000 bed days , moderate to severe harm 0.12 0.14 Month

C. di ff cases  (Hospita l  Acquired) 4 2 Month

C. di ff cases  (Hospita l  Acquired) 33 24 YTD

MRSA cases  (Hospita l  Acquired) 0 0 Month

MRSA cases  (Hospita l  Acquired) 0 2 YTD

Patients  with Pressure Ulcers  per 1,000 bed days  (Hosp Acq) 0.34 0.36 Month

Patients  with Grade 3/4 Pressure Ulcers  per 1,000 bd (Hosp Acq) 0.00 0.00 Month

VTE assessments  conducted 95% 88.1% Month

Serious  Untoward Incidents 1 Month

Never events 0 Month

NHS Safety thermometer - Harm Free Care 90% 92.3% Month

Inpatient Experience Survey - Pos i tive Responses 91% 98.6% Month

SHMI (most recent quarter avai lable) 1 1.050 Month

18 Weeks  RTT - Admitted 90% 74.7% Month

18 Weeks  RTT - Non-Admitted 95% 81.7% Month

18 Weeks  RTT - Active Pathways 92% 83.8% Month

18 Weeks  RTT - Patients  waiting longer than 52 weeks 0 0 Month

Cancer - 14 day wait - Urgent Suspected Cancer 93% 96.5% QTD

Cancer - 14 day wait - Breast Symptoms 93% 97.6% QTD

Cancer - 31 day wait - diagnos is  to fi rs t treatment 96% 97.0% QTD

Cancer - 31 day wait - subsequent treatment (surgery) 94% 96.1% QTD

Cancer - 31 day wait - subsequent treatment (drugs) 98% 100.0% QTD

Cancer - 62 day wait - Referra l  to Treatment (Urgent GP) 85% 86.1% QTD

Cancer - 62 day wait - Referra l  to Treatment (Consultant) 85% 98.1% QTD

Cancer - 62 day wait - Referra l  to Treatment (Screening) 90% 87.0% QTD

Cancel led Operations 0.6% 0.83% QTD

A&E 4-hour s tandard (a l l  days) 95% 90.2% Month

A&E 4-hour s tandard (weekdays) 95% 90.2% Month

A&E 4-hour s tandard (weekends) 95% 89.1% Month

Same sex accommodation breaches 0 0 Month

Ready for discharge 155.7 Month

'Trust acts  on concerns ' +ve s taff survey response 71% 73% Annual

Inpatient Survey - Discharge Planning 90% 100.0% Month

Dai ly Average Discharges  (week days) 144.8 Month

Dai ly Average Discharges  (weekend days) 96.9 Month

Mortal i ty (HSMR) 100 101.7 Month
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Trust dashboard: At a glance, how are we performing? Report owner: Aidan Kehoe

Values:  Professional, Open and engaged, Collaborative, Creative
Corporate objectives:  Launch and implement coaching leadership
Indicator Target Actual Period
Staff F&F. Recommend Trust for care 70% 86% Quarter

Staff F&F. Recommend Trust for work 62% 66% Quarter

Sickness  absence 4.5% 4.8% Rol l ing12Month

Sickness  absence 5% 4.2% Month

Staff turnover 0.69% Month

Actual  s taffing vs . establ ishment Month

Nurs ing & Mid.Wif. s taffing (WTE) levels  vs . establ ishment Month

Annual  appra isa l  YTD against target 95% 74.2% Month

Mandatory tra ining 100% 86.7% Month

'Reporting incidents '  +ve s taff survey response 90% 90% Annual

Values:  Profesional, Open and engaged
Corporate objectives:  Establish and embed an accredited nurse training program
Indicator Target Actual Period
# enrol led onto the Nurse Tra in. Prog. (Trust) 200 141 6monthly

# graduated from Nurse Tra in. Prog. (Trust) 233 219 6monthly

Values:  Professional, Collaborative, Creative
Corporate objectives:  Establish the  Bio Medical  Research Centre
Indicator Target Actual Period
# of new staff appointed 2 Quarter

# of themes  developed 2 Quarter

Completed commercia l  s tudies 10 Month

Time from study open to fi rs t recrui t (days) 70 68 Month

Patients  recrui ted to NIHR tria ls 3,450 2,387 YTD

Information governance breaches 0 44 YTD

Values:  Professional, Open and engaged, Collaborative
Corporate objectives:  Launch and implement coaching leadership
Indicator Target Actual Period
Key project progress  report aga inst timel ines Month

Progress  against key migration path objectives Month

Use of resources  metric YTD

EBITDA margin YTD

Surplus/defici t YTD

Cash forecast accuracy assessment Month

Cash Balance Month

QEPs  del ivery - approved PIDs 90.0% Month

QEPs  del ivery - savings  del ivered YTD (£k) YTD

Total  income actual  vs  plan 100 YTD

% RCAs  completed (previous  months  data) 100% 64.2% Month

% RCAs  completed (year to previous  month) 100% 92.0% YTD

Under-

review

Finance data is now part of Finance Report Section
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TRUST PMO DASHBOARD MONTH 9          1 
 

PROGRAMME: New Hospital  Author: Jenny Jowett 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: Prepare a safe and successful move into the new hospital    

    On target 

    At Risk 

    Behind Plan / Over budget / Not delivering benefits 
 

Work-stream / Exec 
Sponsor 

RAG Rated 
Progress made in the last month Return to “Green” Actions 

Progress Cost Benefits 

Bed Migration 
Programme  
(P. Williams) 

 
Amber 

 
Amber 

 
Amber 

 
 
 
No programme report received for month 9. For 
completeness, month 8 RAG ratings have been carried 
over to this month’s report. This matter has been 
escalated to the programme’s Senior Responsible 
Owner. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Construction 
(J. Graham) 
 

 
Red 

 
Amber 

 
Amber 

Design 
(J. Graham) 

 

 
Amber 

 

 
Amber 

 
Amber 

Equipment 
(J. Graham) 

 
 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 
Green 

Service Move Plan 
(P. Williams) 

 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 
Green 

Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs) 
(P. Williams) 

 
Green 

 

 
Green 

 
Green 

Non-Clinical Office 
Accommodation 
(J. Graham) 

 
Red 

 
Amber 

 
Amber 

Sterile Services 
(J. Graham) 

 
 

 
Red 

 
Red 

 
Amber 
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TRUST PMO DASHBOARD MONTH 9          2 
 

Work-stream / Exec 
Sponsor 

RAG Rated 
Progress made in the last month Return to “Green” Actions 

Progress Cost Benefits 

New Models of Care 
(L. Grant) 

 
 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 

PROGRAMME: Financial Improvement  Author: Chris Graney 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: 
Delivery Quality, Efficiency and Productivity initiatives (QEPs) required to 
improve patient care, deliver best value and the financial plan 

   

    On target 

    At Risk 

    Behind Plan / Over budget / Not delivering benefits 
 

Work-stream/Exec 
Sponsor 

RAG Rated 
Progress made in the last month Return to “Green” Actions 

Delivery Cost Benefits 

Electronic Stock 
Control – Genesis 
(J. Graham)  

 
Amber 

 
Green 

 
Amber 

No highlight report received for month 9. Month 8 RAG 
rating carried over to this month. Escalated matter to 
project’s Executive Sponsor. 

Followed up with PM on 05/01. The PMO has also 
asked PM to confirm QEP savings achieved in M9 
because project was expected to deliver £40k 
saving in December.  

Theatres 
Effectiveness 
(L. Grant) 

 
Amber 

 

 
Green 

 
Amber 

Following a request by the Trust’s Executive Team, the 
project’s PID is being updated to include scope 
expansions, milestone re-profiling and the updated pre-op 
clinic utilisation data.  
 
Unused Theatre Session paper has been drafted. An initial 
meeting has been held with T&O to discuss the principle 
of the project expanding to include closer working with 
specialties to work towards addressing the issue of unused 
theatre sessions. The Project Team have also started to 
identify interdependencies with existing Workforce and 
Leadership projects.  
 
Invitations have been sent out for the Process Mapping 
Session scheduled for Thursday 1st February 2018. 

Project schedule and benefit plan updated once the 
expansion of the Theatre Effectiveness PID has been 
approved by Divisional Cabinet and Executive 
sponsor.  
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TRUST PMO DASHBOARD MONTH 9          3 
 

Work-stream/Exec 
Sponsor 

RAG Rated 
Progress made in the last month Return to “Green” Actions 

Delivery Cost Benefits 

Hospital Pharmacy 
Transformation Plan 
#2209 (A. Kehoe) 

 
Amber 

 
Green 

 
Green 

Outsourcing of outpatients at BGH is now being explored 
in conjunction with LHCH. A workgroup is set up and a 
space has been identified to host the outsourced 
outpatient pharmacy. The volume and finances are now 
being assessed to ensure the proposal is viable.  
 
An extension to the existing outpatient contract is secured 
for the first 12 months into the new hospital. At the point 
of being moved and settled into the new hospital the 
tender specification and process needs to be started.  
 
STP program for aseptics has been moved to a national 
program of work. There is a Data collection template that 
must be submitted to NHS-I by the 26th of January 2018. 
 
Finance are in receipt of the drug related coding issues. 
Pharmacy and finance to arrange a meeting to discuss the 
report and how to improve performance.  

Update project plan to reflect delays to the project 
schedule. Monitor progress against the tolerances 
agreed with the Executive Sponsor. 

Cost Recovery For 
Overseas Visitors 
#2011 (J. Graham) 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 
Green 

Following the arrival of the OSV Manager, the Project Lead 
is waiting to meet with a number of key stakeholders to 
progress scheme. Due to lack of engagement there may be 
a delay in the full roll out of this project. In the meantime 
we endeavour to start capturing EHIC cards in the A&E 
Department. Nicola Shaw to meet with A&E 9/1/2018 to 
deliver training to reception staff. In order to achieve this 
we will need access to a scanner/camera/device in order 
to upload EHIC cards; submitted a request to IT to see 
whether they have any devices that are fit for purpose that 
could be reallocated/recycled.  
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PROGRAMME: 

Patient Flow  Author: Chris Graney/Paul Evans 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: 
Optimise patient flow to deliver safe, caring, responsive and effective care for 
all patients 

   

    On target 

    At Risk 

    Behind Plan / Over budget / Not delivering benefits 

Work-stream/Work 
Stream 

RAG Rated 
Progress made in the last month Return to “Green” Actions 

Delivery Cost Benefits 

Pillar 1: Emergency 
Department  
(L. Grant) 

 
Green 

 
 

 
Green 

 
 

 
Green 

The second programme of work has been approved by 
the Patient Flow Steering Group. In January, a new 
Quality Impact Assessment will be completed and final 
amendments will be made to the Benefits Realisation 
Plan before the PID is approved by our Executive 
Sponsor. 

 

Pillar 2: Inpatient 
Flow 
(L. Grant) 

 
Green 

 

 
Green 

 

 
Green 

 

Progress has been limited due to winter pressures. 
Programme due to be restarted in February. 

 

Pillar 3: H&S Care 
Services Reducing 
DTOC 
(L. Grant) 

 
Green 

 

 
Green 

 
Green 

Currently reviewing the communications strategy for the 
patient choice policy, following feedback from command 
and control meetings during winter pressures.  
 
Following November’s Design Authority meeting, Carers 
Academy project team met with Finance, HR and Service 
Improvement to discuss and agree the projects finance, 
resource and benefits plan. To showcase collaborative 
working, RLBUHT is working with LCC to develop a joint 
operational policy. 

 

Outpatients and 
Ambulatory Care 
Programme 

 
Red 

 
Green 

 
Green 

RLB Leader Event took place. 
Red status reflects a delay due to the issues outlined in 
programme report and a risk that has been identified in 
relation to Offsite Clinics that will hamper progress. 
Programme Brief and Steering Group Terms of Reference 
prepared for agreement at Steering Group but meeting 
on 18th Dec was not quorate so need to go to 29th Jan 
meeting and Feb Patient Flow 
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TRUST PMO DASHBOARD MONTH 9          5 
 

PIDs prepared for 18 Dec but meeting not quorate so will 
be agreed at 22nd Jan meeting 
Communications Strategy in review with Comms and will 
be circulated for 22nd Jan Steering Group (although a 
delay to original deadlines these did not reflect prior 
approval by Comms Team and therefore the original 
timescales were ambitious, revisions are more realistic). 
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PROGRAMME: 

Reconfiguration  Author: Chris Graney 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: 
Play a lead role in the reconfiguration of services across the city and 
enhancing the R&D profile of Liverpool 

   

    On target 

    At Risk 

    Behind Plan / Over budget / Not delivering benefits 

Work-stream/Work 
Stream 

RAG Rated 
Progress made in the last month Return to “Green” Actions 

Progress Cost Benefits 

Transaction 
Programme  
(P. Williams) 

 
Green 

 
 

 
Green 

 
Green 

Approach for FBC and CMA Patient Benefits Case is 
being developed; 
PMO team vacancies currently on hold;  
Executive Summary OBC & Briefing paper 
communicated  to staff  w/c 18th December;  
NHSI provided initial feedback on OBC – they have 
made a recommendation to continue developing the 
business case and work on the patient benefits case; 
Challenges have been highlighted of meeting timelines 
for merger whilst delivering new Royal and EPR 
programmes. NHSI has proposed some changes to the 
current timeline and will now conclude its OBC review 
in summer 2018 with the recommendation that the 
Trusts submit a Full Business Case (FBC) by the end of 
2018;   
The proposed merger date has moved from 1 October 
2018 to 1 April 2019. 
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Collaborative 
Orthopaedic Project 
(P. Williams) 

 
Green 

 
 

 
Green 

 
Amber 

The Public Consultation report has been finalised and is 
awaiting CCG authorisation before wider circulation. 
Now the Public Consultation has concluded a Final 
Feasibility Study is required to be submitted to NHS 
England, CCGs and Local Authorities for final approval 
of the plans. The Final Feasibility Study requires the 
following updates: 
 

 Completed workforce modelling for all effected 
staff groups. 

 Inclusion of the finding from the Public 
Consultation including concerns and mitigation 
plans. 

 Detailed financial analysis including anticipated 
savings and project costs. 

 Updated EIA 

 Updated activity and infrastructure data. 
 
The Workforce Modelling work is currently outstanding 
and requires completion before the document can be 
approved at the January Executive Oversight Group.     

Make final changes to the project’s Feasibility 
Study before submitting it for approval. 

Community 
Anticoagulation 
Therapy Service 
(L. Grant) 

 
Green 

 
 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 

Paused. Two elements of the plan are dependent on the 
outcome of the Sefton Community anti-coagulation 
tender. Contract award expected to be announced on 5 
January 2018. 

 

LCH Service 
Transaction – Non 
Core Bundle 
(J. Graham) 

 
Green 

 

 
Green 

 
Green 

IT and Informatics Merseyside continue to address the 
issues/snags associated with the IT transaction plan, post 
transfer.  
 
Trust PMO are facilitating discussions between 
Pharmacy and Patient Access to agree long-term solution 
to community drug deliveries using the HPN delivery 
team. 
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PROGRAMME: 

Workforce & Leadership  Author: Chris Graney 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: 
Develop an empowered, skilled and motivated workforce which is efficient 
and agile to meet the changing needs of the organisation 

   

    On target 

    At Risk 

    Behind Plan / Over budget / Not delivering benefits 

Work-stream/Exec 
Sponsor 

RAG Rated 
Progress made in the last month Return to “Green” Actions 

Progress Cost Benefits 

Project Shape - 
Clinical and 
Corporate Services 
Review (L. Grant) 

 
Green 

 

 
Green 

 
Red 

Finances are still being reviewed and will be available next 

month with potential savings. 
Update project benefit profile on the QEP tracker 
at the end of M10. 

Workforce 
Efficiencies 
(D. Herring) 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 

 
Green 

Spend at the end of M8: £4.9m against an NHSI ceiling 
of £5.7m  
 
Key work-streams progressing this month: 
HCA for close obs/specials. The risk assessment tool 
continues to be developed and results validated. 
Ultimately, the plan is that the tool will reduce the 
involvement of the senior nurses in some decisions. 
Ongoing challenge is taking place for all HCA close obs 
requests and this is making a considerable reduction in 
the outcome.  
 
Regarding the highest spends consultants within the 
Trust, the Gerontologist and Urologist have end dates 
pending before the end of 17/18. The pathologist 
vacancies continue to prove difficult to recruit to and 
therefore ongoing agency usage continues in this area. 
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Rostering Shift 
Harmonisation 
(L. Grant) 

 
Amber 

 
Green 

 
Amber 

After receiving a challenge from staff-side regarding the 
roll out of the project, the project team has engaged with 
staff-side to work through their concerns. A joint group 
has been visiting wards on all shifts to gauge the opinions 
and feedback from staff. This has identified some issues 
which need to be addressed, however, overall the 
feedback from staff supports the move to   long day 
hours. The project team continue to work with staff-side 
to develop a mitigation plan.  

Project benefit profile and milestones need 
updating on the QEP tracker once a mitigation plan 
has been agreed with the project’s key 
stakeholders. 

Effective Nurse 
Specialist Job 
Planning 
(L. Grant) 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 
Green 

Three new QEP sub-projects have been created to 
capture the CNS NR unfilled vacancies. This is forecast for 
approx. £282,475 for year end. This will be amended 
when NR vacancies can be turned R with agreement and 
support from the GM's in each care groups. QEP scheme 
#1965 has been amended to reflect the shift in financial 
profiling. KPMG are supporting this project and have 
focused on skill mix, activity coding and patient 
productivity. We are reviewing Urinary Tract and 
Medicine in the first tranche of their plan. Good 
engagement has been received from GM's. We have also 
engaged with HR and staff-side to ensure open 
communication with stakeholders is maintained. The list 
of EPR vacancies has been shared with GM's and Finance 
to understand the operational pressures of these 
vacancies. We are jointly working towards turning these 
vacancies into recurrent savings.   
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PROGRAMME: Global Digital Exemplar  Author: Kate Warriner 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: Deliver digital excellence    

    On target 

    At Risk 

   
 Behind Plan / Over budget / Not delivering 

benefits 

 
 

RAG Rated 
Progress made in the last month Return to “Green” Actions 

Progress Cost Benefits 

GDE Programme 
Summary 
(D. Walliker) 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 
Green 

Overall progress is very good. Major Milestone 2 
payment received in 2017.   
 
In term of key highlights: 
• Mersey Internal Audit Agency Review 
undertaken on GDE governance and programme with a 
recommendation of High Assurance  
• 5G Bid Submitted with Local Authority, SMEs and 
industry partners with Royal as a proposed test bed for 
clinical test bed innovations 
• Assistive Technology on discharge ‘Telehealth in 
a Box’ plans starting to be worked through with 
commissioning and community partners 
• Progress good with international partnerships, 
specifically MIT planning for Hack in July 2018 as part of 
ILINKS  
• External profile is good with presentation 
delivered at Kings Fund sharing event  
• Digital Pathology Clinical Model developed in 
Draft  
• RLBUHT has been selected as the lead provider 
nationally for pilot blueprint on e-sepsis 
• Fast Follower developments are ongoing, LWH 
funding agreement has been developed, visit with North 
Tees arranged for 5.1.17 
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Digital Innovation 
(D. Walliker) 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 
Green 

Work stream progressing well, all projects delivered or 
on track against expectations for major milestone 2. 
• Sensium – awaiting approval to proceed 
• Bed Management – on track against deadline, 
system has been made available to users to provide 
UAT, positive discussions with Local Authority and CCG 
with regards to progression 
• Blood Tracking - upgrade completed against plan, 
currently in UAT validation and awaiting development 
works from 3rd party suppliers, issue with obtaining 
Apple developer licence is being progressed 

 

New Royal Hospital 
IT 
(D. Walliker) 

 
Green 

 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 

New Build - plans aligned to construction plans, all 
digital work on track for delivery.  
• Telephony –ARC switch board handed over to 
service. Replacement programme for telephones 
commenced. Line migration planned for Feb 2018.  
• Departmental move plans – Mapping of asset at 
room level continues. Drafts being shared with 
departments. Estimate of additional PCs and VDI 
discussed at Programme Funding Group. 
• Digital signage – Phase 1 – completed. 
Interoperability with patient call through discussed with 
supplier. 
• Bleeps - contract awarded to existing supplier. 
Engagement with Carillion for building works prior to 
clinical commissioning period. 
• Local area network – Cloud ready network 
installed in the new hospital. 
• Fax server – Statement of Works signed. Project 
kick off due Feb 2018. 

 

Electronic Patient 
Record 
(D. Walliker) 

 
Amber 

 
Green 

 
Green 

A number of risks with regards to EPR are being managed 
by the EPR programme board. Outline business case has 
been signed off by NHSI. 

Progress with NHS Improvement regarding 
contract. Management of programme risks. 
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Clinical 
Transformation 
(D. Walliker) 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 
Green 

A number of projects are in development, links to R&D 
have been established and test bed proposals are in 
place. Priority projects for 2018 are in development and 
likely to include Virtual Reality in Palliative Care 
Experience, further work on sensors and predictive 
modelling. International learning programme for 2018 
agreed and in the process of being implemented. 

 

Digital 
Transformation 
(D. Walliker) 

 
Green 

 
Green 

 
Green 

New Workstream added to programme report for 
oversight of digital programmes/projects that are not 
linked to GDE payment milestones but are contributing 
to overall Digital Liverpool strategy. Programmes / 
Projects will be added to this following internal processes 
through Execs and Design Authority.   
 
Progress with Digital Pathology. Project Initiation 
Document developed and submitted to NHS England, 
clinical model in development, project groups in place. 
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Report owner: John GrahamCapital expenditure: Are our investment projects on track?
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How are we progressing with our major investment projects (>£1m)?

How are we progressing with our smaller investment projects (<£1m per project)?

P
R
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C
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N

D
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1

M

Area Project / Investment description
Total 
cost 

(£000s)

2017-18 
cost

(£000s)

On 
time

On 
budget

On 
benefit

Corporate PFI Prepayment PDC 94,000 complete n/a n/a n/a

Corporate PFI Prepayment – Trust Contribution 24,000 16,804 n/a n/a n/a

Corporate Liverpool life Sciences Accelerator 23,348 5,639 n/a n/a n/a

Corporate Backlog /Building/Equipment replacement 3,598 3,598 n/a n/a n/a

Corporate New Hospital Equipment 8,400 8,400 n/a n/a n/a

Corporate University Embedded Accommodation 8,000 8,000 n/a n/a n/a

Corporate IT Investments 4,805 4,805 n/a n/a n/a

Corporate Helipad 2,500 2,500 n/a n/a n/a

Corporate Trauma & Orthopaedics 2,000 2,000 n/a n/a n/a

Area Overview of projects
Total 
cost

(£000s)

2017-18 
cost 

(£000s)
Activity update and any concerns

Corporate Endoscopy 997 997 On Hold

Corporate Diagnostics 990 990 On Hold

Corporate Demolitions 350 50
Planning process not yet underway due 

to delays in construction of New 
Hospital. Minimal spend in 17/18

Corporate Enabling works CCC 254 254
Works still being developed. No 

planned spend in 17/18

Corporate LMCC Alterations 250 250 Estates team still developing proposals
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Safety: Are we keeping patients safe? Report owner: Peter Williams / Lisa Grant

Executive Summary :

• The annual trajectory for 2017-18 is no more than 44 Trust attributable cases of Clostridium Difficile

Infection (CDI). A total of five CDI cases were reported in December 2017 which is an increase on the

monthly internal target of four. YTD the trust had had 27 cases of CDT against a trajectory of 44.

• There were no reported MRSA positive blood cultures during December 2017.

• There were 0 never events and 1 SI declared in the Month of December 2017 (Discrepancy in pathology

reporting by locum).

RLB Programme : Cohort 6 graduated in December 2017 and to date, there are 1550 members of staff who

have been through the programme. The following work groups were included:

• Registered nurses

• AHP (including radiographers)

• Dental nurses

• Assistant Practitioners

• HCA (band 2 & 3)

• Volunteers

Carbapenemase Producing Enterobacteraeciae (CPE) One trust attributable CPE colonised patient was

identified through screening during December 2017, which is a significant reduction on previous months.

Combined Quality and Infection control audits have focused on preventative measures and education to

ensure staff adhere to and improve trust processes

Flu : The Trust achieved the national CQUIN for 2017/18 with 80.1% of frontline staff receiving the 

vaccination (as of November submission to NHSE). The flu vaccination programme project team is 

continuing  to improve the uptake of flu vaccinations across the Trust. 

RCA completion rates: Completion rate for November is 67% (6/9) which is an increase from the previous 

month (64%). Year to end of November, the trust is performing at 93% (66/71) previously 77%.  Performance 

is monitored regularly through the Weekly Safety Meeting and escalated to the Chief Nurse. 

Falls: 149 falls to inpatients were reported in December 2017. 3 patients suffered falls resulting in moderate

to severe harm on wards 8y, AIFU and A&E. There is continued support to staff to encourage the use of

FRAD and falls care plans which are now located within PENS. We have recently identified a significant

increase in risk assessment completion rates when transferred to PENS.

VTE: The Trust has achieved 88% compliance in undertaking VTE Assessments during December, resulting

in non-compliance against our target of 95%. This is an increase on last months 86%. Progress on VTE

prevention and the various improvement initiatives are monitored quarterly through Quality Governance

Committee. A new VTE assessment was introduced Trustwide on 30th October 2017. The new tool is intuitive

and provides the clinician with a specific outcome on what was input, based upon national guidelines. Since

its introduction, there has been incremental improvement.

Hospital acquired pressure ulcers (HAPU): In December, there were 9 hospital acquired pressure ulcers

reported. These were made up of 8 grade 2 and 1 grade 3 pressure ulcers across seven patients. This is an

increase on last months HAPU of 5. RCAs will be conducted to understand themes and lessons learned

which will be discussed at the PU steering group.

Mandatory Training: Current compliance stands at 78% which is a slight increase on the previous month of

77%. There has been improved availability and accessibility of mandatory training with this now being

available via the ESR portal and the staff app. It is anticipated that this will enable continued further

improvement.

RIDDOR: Two RIDDOR reportable incidents were reported in December; of the two RIDDORs, one occurred

within unscheduled care and was classified as an injury relating to a fall, the second RIDDOR occurred within

unscheduled care and was classified as a back injury.

CAS Alerts: All alerts that have been issued to the Trust in December are currently compliant within the

defined timescales.
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Safety: Are we keeping patients safe? Report owner: Peter Williams / Lisa Grant

Month Month Months

Target Actual vs. r3m

Process: % patients assessed for risk & measures put in place to reduce risk
Process: # unhealed pressure ulcers reported to GP on discharge 100% 100.0%

Outcome: # falls per 1,000 bed days 6.62
Process: # falls (moderate/severe harm) per 1,000 bed days 0.12 0.14

% adult patients risk assessed for falls 98%
% with care plan in place if at risk 98%

YTD YTD Month

Target Actual vs. r3m

# MRSA Cases - Zero tolerance 0 2
# Clostridium difficile toxin cases 33 24
# MSSA cases 15
# E. coli cases 48
# VRE cases (target = full year target) 10
# ESBL cases (target = full year target) 0
% CAUTIs (Catheter Associated UTIs) 2% 0.2%
Ratio MRSA Screens: Elective admissions (Latest Month) 1.0 8.3

Outcome: # medication incidents

Month Months

Actual vs. r3m

Outcome: # RIDDOR incidents 2
# staff-related H&S incidents (inc. contacted staff) 159
# visitor H&S incidents 4
# MDA alerts 4
# MDA alerts in breach of compliance 0
# PSA alerts 0
# PSA alerts in breach of compliance 0
# EFA/EFN alerts 6

# EFA/EFN in breach of compliance 0

Process: % staff attended/enrolled for mandatory training 100% 86.7%
% staff who attended mandatory training 77.4%
% planned mandatory training courses provided 100.0%

Month Month Months

Target Actual vs. r3m

Outcome: % RCAs completed (previous months data) 100% 64.2%

% RCAs completed (year to previous month) 100% 92.0%

Month Month Months

KPIs for Risk Management Strategy Target Actual vs. r3m

Process: Risks scoring 15+ reported to Board 100% 100%
Risks scoring 10+ reported to Subcommittees 100% -
Risks scoring 10+ reviewed at Pat. Saf. Com. 100% -
Risks within review dates (Red - monthly) 80% 100%
Risks within review dates (Orange - Quartley) 80% 73%
Risks within review dates (Yellow/Orange - Biannualy) 80% 62%
Risks within review dates (Green/Yellow - Annually) 80% 67%
Risks not more than 6 months out of date 80% 97%
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Are we investigating why incidents took place?
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Are we delivering harm-free care?
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Did we have any H&S incidents, and are we following the right processes?
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Effectiveness: Are we treating patients effectively?

Commentary

Report owner: Lisa Grant/Peter Williams

Executive Summary

Mortality

The most recent SHMI published in December is 105.39 which is ‘as expected’.

There were 2033 in patient deaths and deaths within 30 days of discharge against a

statistical prediction of 1929 deaths. It is notable that the actual number of deaths in the

year has remained virtually the same.

The top 5 causes of mortality remain pneumonia, sepsis, acute cerebrovascular disease,

Aspiration pneumonitis and COPD. AKI is no longer in the top 5 causes probably a

consequence of focussed quality Improvement work. There has been an increase in sepsis

deaths (266 deaths) which we believe represents a change in coding. There has been a

great focus on the early identification and treatment of sepsis but a continued focus on

training is essential.

As in previous reports the themes for avoidable mortality have been identified and

presented to execs. These breakdown into; delayed diagnosis, poor diagnostic clarity,

delay in escalation, delay in definitive treatment, and medication errors. In particular, early

detection and treatment of sepsis is the main intervention we can make to reduce mortality

and optimise care in the top three causes of death in the trust. A focused programme of

work is expected to further improve our position against avoidable mortality.

Our mortality peer review process has been revised resulting in the publication of the

‘Learning from Deaths’ policy which outlines the new process, due to commence in January

2018. Trust wide care groups have reviewed 84% of their deaths.

CQC

Since our last CQC inspection in March 2016 and published report from July 2016, we have

been tracking a 43 point action plan. An update was last provided to the CQC in December

with a positive discussion regarding progress.

A CQC action plan surgery was held in December with compliance, governance and action

leads to review and scrutinise all evidence and update compliance scores, with a view to

closing the action plan within January. We are continuing to progress an assurance

framework for those services that were recently hosted by the trust to offer greater

assurance on quality performance and patient experience, a cultural barometer and

evidence of staff well being.

A system wide review focussing on delayed transfers of care for patients over 65 will be

conducted throughout January and February, with the CQC on site w/c 19th February.

Preparatory meetings with Liverpool Council , Liverpool CCG and other local providers are

taking place to ensure this is well represented and is a successful project.

Are there any questions for the board? 

None 

H
ig

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

ar
e

Page 49 of 218



Effectiveness: Are we treating patients effectively? Report owner: Lisa Grant/Peter Williams

Do we have an acceptable relative risk of mortality?

Which of our procedures has a higher than expected mortality risk ratio?

* Please note that HSMR data has a lag of 2 months and SHMI data has a lag of 5 months Month Month Months

Are we providing effective treatment? Target Actual vs. r3m

Staff Effectiveness
Ward Quality Assessment 90% 76.7%
Service Quality Assessment 90%

Following care pathways YTD YTD Month

Advancing quality pathways: Target Actual vs. r3m

AMI 95.00%
Hip & Knee 95.00% 52.10%
Heart Failure 77.60%
Pneumonia 84.90% 63.60%

No Data

% stroke patients spending at least 90% of stay on a stroke unit 80% 88.8%

Treatement effectiveness
PROMS: Hip Replacements 80% 100.0%

Knee Replacements 80% 100.0%
Hernia 80% 100.0%

Readmittance Rates
% elective patients readmitted as an emergency w/in 30 days* 2.2%
% non elective patients readmitted as an emergency w/in 30 days* 14.6%
*NB: 30 day lag in the data available Month Month Month

Target Actual vs. r3m

% A&E patients reattending on an unplanned basis within 7 days 5% 8.7%
New to follow-up ratio 2.23 2.25
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NB: 3 month lag time in data.

Now based on Appropriate

Care Score (ACS)

Current reporting based on 

response rates. Most recent 

completed quarter shown.
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HSMR and SHMI per quarter

Crude % Al l
(exc daycase)

2.98 2.66 2.68 2.92 3.65 2.77 2.58 3.09 3.2 3.33 2.87 3.7

Expected %
(exc daycase)

3.27 3.09 2.95 2.66 3.67 2.8 2.78 3 3.61 3.18 2.73 3.49

Diagnoses / Procedures Where Audit / Investigation Required

KEY:
SHMI
HSMR
Target
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Effectiveness: Are we treating patients as quickly as possible? Report owner: Lisa Grant

Commentary

Executive Summary 

The Trust did not achieve the 99% standard for Diagnostic waiting times for December

The Trust did not achieve the 95% standard for 4hour emergency care access in December

The Trust did not achieve the 92% 18 week RTT national standard for December

The Trust achieved the Cancer targets for Q2

The Trust did not have any 12 hour trolley breaches in December

There were no patients who breached the 28 day re admission standard within the quarter to date

No patients waited longer than 52 weeks.

Diagnostic Waits: The Trust did not achieve the 1% Target for 6 week Diagnostics (19.9%). This is an

improvement on the previous month (22.55%). There were 1,071 breaches, broken down below.

The endoscopy tender has been complete and a detailed action plan has been shared with the CCG and NHSi.

MRI, CT and US are operating within all diagnostic imaging targets of 6 weeks.

2 week rule patients are currently being imaged within 2 weeks.

Emergency Access - 4 Hour Standard:

The Emergency Department has been under increased pressures which have had a direct effect on the National 

4-hour Trust Access Target 

A scoping exercise has been undertaken and 7 projects were identified that will assist the Trust in achieving the 

4-hour target. The projects are as follows;

• City Centre Pilot – “In-Reach”

• Winter Planning 

• Primary Care/Secondary Care Development & Collaboration

• Inner City “Place Of Safety”

• Safer/AMU

• Mental Health Frequent Fliers (CQUIN) 

• Workforce Planning

Current performance December 2017 – 89.8% 

12 Hour Trolley Waits

There were no 12 hour trolley waits

18 weeks

The Trust did not achieve the 92% incomplete Referral to Treatment (RTT) target, (84.68%). The issues were in

various areas including Ophthalmology (80.94%), Gastro (84.1%), Dermatology (87.04%). There have been a

number of actions identified which will reduce demand and increase activity. Within Dermatology, the team are

working closely with commissioners to improve this, however, the decline in performance is as result of service

closures across the city. Advice and guidance has now been rolled out to a number of specialities, as part of the

national CQUIN. The team are also monitoring increases in referrals as a direct consequence of certain Trusts E-

referral polling ranges being extended to reduce the number of slot issues.

.
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Effectiveness: Are we treating patients as quickly as possible? Report owner: Lisa Grant

Month Month Months

Target Actual vs. r3m

How quickly can patients access care?

Appointment Access: # slot issues per booking Unsheduled 7% N/A

Scheduled 7% N/A

% patients who did not attend (DNAs) 10% 10.1%

Diagnosis: % patients waiting > 6 weeks for diagnostic test 1% 20.0%

A&E: Trolley waits in A&E 0 0

Quarter Quarter Quarter

Target Actual vs. r3Q

# operations cancelled by hospital and not rebooked within 28 days 0

% operations cancelled by hospital and not rebooked within 28 days 0% 0.0%

# operations cancelled by hospital 105

% total operations cancelled by hospital 0.6% 0.83%

Month Month Month

Target Actual vs. r3m

Initial A&E assessment: # minutes to initial assessment (95th percentile) 15 35

A&E treatment decision: # minutes (median) from arrival to treatment decision 60 75

A&E treatment: % patients treated within 4 hours of arrival (new only) 95% 90.2%

% patients who left A&E without being seen 5% 0.1%

Transfers of care: % patients whose discharge is delayed once medically fit 2.1% 5.1%

Are we treating patients quickly?
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E When care is delayed or cancelled, are we rebooking patients quickly?

Are we diagnosing and treating emergency patients quickly?
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Report owner: Lisa GrantExperience: Are we delivering a positive patient experience? 

Executive Summary :

Complaints (Level 2 & 3) – October data Board Pack

Compliance with response times for level 1 concerns remains on target at 100% in December 2017.

Complaints - How are we performing ?

The Trust received 36 formal complaints in October 2017 compared to 27 formal complaints in September 

2017.

• The Trust compliance rate for formal complaints (25 & 35 day) in October 2017 was 89% (31/35) an 

increase from September.

• Delays were at directorate level. 

• The Trust had 1 Cross Boundary complaint for October 2017, nil in August 2017, which is still being 

addressed but remains within the agreed timescale.

• The overall Trust compliance is 89% in October and increases from 85% for September 2017 (23/27). 

For October 2017 complaints, the following compliance was recorded:

• Unscheduled Care:   (22/26) 85% an increase from 83% (10/12) last month 

• Scheduled Care:  (9/10) 90% an increase from 86% (12/14) last month 

Internal Inpatient Surveys:

In December 49 surveys were undertaken by volunteers and the number of surveys undertaken was low as

a result of the christmas period. However, plans are in place to increase the number of surveys completed

and more volunteers have been asked to support this process.

97.82% of patients recommended our hospital to friends and family which has been an increase of 1% from

last months survey results.

100% of patients felt they were involved as much as they wanted to be in their care, a 4% increase on last

month’s survey result this is the second consecutive month an improvement has been made.

97.96% of patients reported feeling safe as an inpatient, which is consistent on last months survey result.

97.96% of patients felt they were kept informed of their discharge plans which has seen a 10%

improvement from the previous months responses.

Friends and Family: - Friends and Family Test (FFT):

During the month of December a total of 8,198 responses were received:

A&E 1008

Inpatient 732

Outpatient 6458

Inpatient performance response rates are recorded at 32% with the Accident & Emergency department

recording a response rate of 19%.

93% of all respondents reported that they would be extremely likely or likely to recommend our hospital to

friends and family.

Listening weeks have been arranged for dates throughout the year focusing on a variety of different topics.

The findings from these events, including themes and any actions required will be shared via Patient

Experience Sub Committee and an overview provided within the board pack when undertaken.
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Experience: Are we delivering a positive patient experience? Report owner: Lisa Grant

Month Month Months

Target Actual vs. r3m

% patients who had a positive experience when asked:

Were you involved as much as you wanted to be in decisions about your care? 90% 100.0%

Were you given enough privacy when discussing your condition or treatment? 95% 100.0%

Did you find someone to talk to about your worries and fears? 90% 97.9%

Have your medications and possible side effects been discussed with you? 90% 95.9%

Have you been kept informed of your discharge plans? 90% 100.0%

Do you feel safe on this ward? 95% 97.9%

Was your pain was managed effectively? 95% 97.9%

Process: Are we doing what we can to provide a positive patient experience?

Month Month Months

Target Actual vs. r3m

Comms: Is the Trust meeting the standard for electronic discharge summaries?

- inpatient ward areas 95% 70.2%

- assessment & observation units 80% 84.3%

- 2 week standard for EPRO 95% 79.7%

Meals: % patients assessed using the Malnutrition Universal Screening Tool* 95% 62.9%

% plans of care in place for patients at risk of malnutrition* 100% 47.0%

Cleanliness: Cleanliness performance audits - RLH ward areas 95% 95.0%

Cleanliness performance audits - BG ward areas 95% 98.2%

Accom: # mixed sex accommodation breaches 0 0

Pain: Pain Management Nursing Quality Audit Score 90%

*Audit data for directorates Gastro and SSOP only as dictated by the CQUIN. 

Are we giving people cause to complain and are we responding appropriately?

YTD YTD YTD

Month Month Month

Responding to complaints: Target Actual vs. r3m

Level 1: Response < 5 days 98% 100.0%

Level 2: Response within timeframe 90% 88.5%

Are patients placed on the appropriate ward?

Month Month Month
Percentage of patients on inappropriate wards: Target Actual vs. r3m

Medical patients on surgical ward 1.2%

Surgical patients on medical ward 4.2%

Perception: Do patients perceive their experience to be positive?
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Regulatory compliance: Are we meeting our regulatory obligations? Report owner: Lisa GrantRegulatory compliance: Are we meeting our regulatory obligations? Report owner: Lisa Grant

Area covered: National regulator Focus of regulator: Governance and quality

What does the regulator track? 28 outcomes, each of which is based on a number of specific elements with 
evidence required for each.

Are we confident we are compliant with this regulator? The Trust underwent its CQC inspection between 
the 15th – 18th March 2016. The Trust  received the outcome of the report in July and we were given an 
overall  rating of ‘Good’. The report contained  the continuous theme throughout the report that our staff 
are caring, compassionate and professional . An action plan on areas requiring improvement has been 
submitted to the CQC. An internal action plan on other advisory actions received within the feedback. Has 
also been produced and will be managed through the Trust’s governance processes.

Are we appropriately responding to feedback from the regulator?     
Last visit: March 2016                           Last report:

Feedback Action taken in response: Outcome: 

Area covered: National Mandate to publish nurse 
staffing. 

Focus of regulator: Governance and safety. 

What does the regulator track? Performance against the National Quality Board requirements to publish staffing 
data. 

Following the publication of the Hard Truths recommendations there is a requirement for all trusts to publish
monthly data on staffing. This is applicable only to inpatient areas where patients stay overnight.

The trust is required to and is publishing the following:
• Day shift and night shift staffing plan against the actual staff available.
• A percentage staff availability score will be provided.
• Data will be submitted by site and each site will have every inpatient ward staffing availability provided.
• Data will be submitted by UNIFY and uploaded to the NHS Choices website.
• The Trust will also be required to publish this data on their own web page.

For December, the overall average percentage of registered nursing staff against the actual required for day 
duty,  was 84.4% which is similar to the previous month when we reported 85.8%. The fill rate for registered 
nurses on night duty, 91.6%.

The average fill rate for unregistered staff during the day in December is 87.2%, which is a slight decrease to 
November when we reported 92.6%. This is due to short term sickness and vacancies. The fill rate for 
unregistered staff on night duty is 107.1% in December.

Monthly recruitment events are taking place and a recruitment strategy has been introduced to use a wide 
range of initiatives to promote working within the Trust. The next Trust open event is January 2018, whilst 
specialised individual areas are holding their own recruitment events.
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Regulatory compliance: Are we meeting our regulatory obligations? Report owner: Lisa Grant

Plan Month 8 RAG Month 8 RAG

Clostridium difficile Clostridium difficile

Scheduled: 44 

Unscheduled: 

44

0 0

All cancers: 31-day wait Diagnosis to first treatment >=96%

Surgery >=94%

Anti cancer drug treatments >=98%

Urgent GP referral to treatment >=85%

Screening service referral >=90%

Admitted >=90% 70.8% 89.1%

Non-admitted >=95% 82.6% 89.0%

Incomplete >=92% 83.1% 93.3%

Urgent suspected cancer referrals >=93%

Breast symptomatic (not susp cancer) >=93%

A&E % patients waited ≤ 4 hours >=95% 99.1% 89.9%

All cancers: 31-day wait for 

second or subsequent 

treatment

All Cancers: 62-day wait for first 

treatment

Referral to treatment waiting 

times

Cancer: two week waits

Scheduled Unscheduled

Key Service Performance Score indicators By Division

The following dashboard illustrates Divisional performance against the key Governance Risk Rating 

Indicators

Thresholds Weight Sep-17 Oct-17
Risk Score (based 

on Weighting)
RAG

P
ro

g
re

s
s

All Cancers: 31-day wait 31 day diag to treat (first treatment) >=96% 1 97.2% 97.1% 0

Surgery >=94% 97.6% 96.5%

Anti cancer drug treatments >=98% 100.0% 100.0%

Urgent GP referral to treatment >=85% 86.2% 86.7%

Screening service referral >=90% 91.9% 90.1%

Urgent suspected cancer referrals >=93% 96.2% 96.8%

Breast symptomatic (not susp cancer) >=93% 95.1% 98.4%

Thresholds Weight Oct-17 Nov-17
Risk Score (based 

on Weighting)
RAG

P
ro

g
re

s
s

Admitted >=90% 1 70.3% 72.8% 1

Non-admitted >=95% 1 83.8% 83.4% 1

Incomplete >=92% 1 84.6% 84.6% 1

A&E % patients waited ≤ 4 hours >=95% 1 90.4% 90.3% 1

Clostridium difficile Clostridium difficile YTD <=44 1 19 22 0

N/A 0.5 0.5

4.0 4.5

Indicators

Self-certification - access to healthcare for people with a learning disability

Service Performance Score Total: 4.5 (Red)

Governance Concerns

A&E 4-hour wait - The Trust met the conditions for a governance concern in Q4 2013/14, and continues to fall below target.

All cancers: 62-day wait for first 

treatment
1 0

Referral to treatment waiting times

Cancer: two week waits 1 0

Monitor Risk Assessment Framework - Service Performance Score Month 8 (November 2017)

Indicators

All Cancers: 31-day wait for second 

or subsequent treatment
1 0

Within tolerance

Outside tolerance

Tolerance not met

Not Applicable

RAG Key

Better

Same

Worse

Not Applicable

Progress KeyKey: Service Performance Score Service Performance Score

<1 Green

>=1 Amber-Green

>=2 Amber-Red

>=4 Red

A governance concern will be triggered by a Red rating on 

the Service Performance Score, or a persistent failure of an 

individual indicator.

H
ig

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

ar
e

Page 56 of 218



Ward Quality Dashboard: Are we delivering high quality care in every ward? Report owner: Lisa Grant

The ward based dashboard provides a snapshot of performance each month. The KPIs are

categorised to provide an overall RAG rating and risk score for the ward. A new Quality Safety and

Assurance Tool (QSAT) Ward audit framework has been introduced since 1st June 2017. This

programme is now coordinated and delivered by the Quality team with the full engagement of the

Ward teams as a consistent process in line with CQC methodology.

RED rated Areas

Areas that achieve a RED rating will undergo a ‘Deep Dive’ to support the area to improve their

status. The ‘Deep Dive’ will be coordinated by the Quality Team.

A meeting will also be held with the Chief Nurse, Divisional Chief Nurse and the Assistant Chief

Nurse for Quality and End of Life Care and to agree what support and action is appropriate.

The area will be re-assessed in 4-6-8 Weeks’ time.

AMBER rated Areas

Areas that achieve an AMBER rating will be given an appropriate level of support to improve their

status. The support or interventions required will be coordinated by the area Matron and Quality

Team. If an area fails to make significant improvements following reassessment, meeting will be held

with the Chief Nurse, Divisional Chief Nurse for that area to agree what further support is appropriate.

The area will be re-assessed in 3/4 months’ time.

GREEN rated Areas

Areas that achieve a GREEN rating will be identified as being able to demonstrate good, safe care

and management of staff and will be invited to demonstrate to colleagues/peers how they achieve this

success at Perfect Ward.

The area Manager and Matron will collate/review the action plan and the area Manager be given

support from the Matron to maintain the green rating and make required improvements identified.

The area will be re-assessed in 6 months’ time.

There are 46 areas on site to be audited. To date 100% have been audited. 78% of these areas are

Rag rated green and 22% rated Amber. There are no Red ward areas to date. Themes and trends

are being collated. The audits, process and outcomes have been well received by staff across all

areas. A monthly dashboard is disseminated and outcomes and action plans tracked by the Quality

Team and presented at Perfect Ward Meetings.

The second element of assurance is the monthly Quality Indicator Check (QIC). Every ward is

audited in month by the Quality Team against key parameters for quality and safety to cover key

themes from our CQC inspection and prior MIAA ward quality audits.

15% of areas were Rag rated Red in December. An overall red scoring is attained when 4 or more

red elements are noted across the 32 domains. Main themes related to Medicines Management at

ward level and the accurate recording of fridge temperatures. An action plan has been drafted with

pharmacy and a small task and finish group has been assembled to tackle the problem. A wider

group has also been established to review the Trust audit process including QSAT and QIC.

Time out engagement events have occurred with various staffing groups across all clinical areas to

understand what is working well, what could be improved and to also highlight and update on specific

workstreams.
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Overall risk scores for the Quality Dashboard are calculated as follows:
QIC: 0 if Green, and 1 if Red.
Hospital Acquired Pressure Ulcers: 0 if none, 0.5 if any grade 2 and 1 if any grade 3 or 4.
Falls Moderate to severe harm: 0 if no falls and 1 if falls reported with harm.
MRSA/CDT: 0 if none reported 1 .
Complaints: 0 if none, 0.5 if 1 and 1 if more than one complaint.

Ward level RAG rating is based on: 0 - 1= Green, 1.5 – 3 = Amber and 3.5 or above = Red risk rating.

46 areas are audited. In August there were no Red areas, 39% of areas were Amber and 61% were

Green across all parameters.

We are currently looking at robust mechanisms for triangulating data across these audits and patient
safety walkabouts to determine the optimum lessons learned and how an updated model can be
disseminated over the coming months.

H
ig

h 
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

ar
e

Page 58 of 218



Ward Quality Dashboard: Are we delivering high quality care in every ward? Report owner: Lisa Grant

Specialty
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A&E / EAU A&E 3 41%

Ward 4 (BG) Dermatology 0 95%

9X Clin Pharm/Inf Dis 0 75%

9BDW Medical day ward 0 0%

3X Infectious Diseases 0 88%

3Y Infectious Diseases 0 75%

6A Nephrology 0 42%

6B Nephr (Dialysis) 0 100%

6X Respiratory 2 71%

6Y Respiratory 0.5 82%

7A Diabetes 2 78%

7B Diabetes 1.5 74%

9ADU Nephrology HDU 0

AMU Acute Medicine 0 62%

SRU (W8 BG) Clinical Gerontology 0 8%

2B Clinical Gerontology 0 67%

Ward 9 (BG) Clinical Gerontology 0 100%

Ward 11 (BG) Clinical Gerontology 1 100%

SU & 2Y Stroke Unit 0.5 82%

2A Clinical Gerontology 1 100%

APCU Palliative Care 1 100%

ESAU ESAU 0 69%

AIFU AIFU 1 60%

Ward 2 (BG) Urology / Gen Surg 0 0%

3A Cardiology 0 80%

5A General Surgery 1 82%

5B General Surgery 1 75%

8X / ACRU General Surgery 0 64%

8Y Vascular / Urology 2 79%

9A Renal Transplant 0 71%

8A Vascular Surgery from July 1 82%

9Y Breast Surg/Ophthalmology 1 79%

ACU Cardiology 1 87%

ITU Anaesthetics 0 50%

POCCU Anaesthetics 0 0%

RCCU Coronary Care 0

8HDU Anaesthetics 0 50%

Ward 1 (BG) Orthopaedics 0 80%

4A Orthopaedics 1.5 77%

4B Orthopaedics 1.5 74%

5X Gastroenterology 0.5 0%

5Y Gastroenterology 0 83%

Ward 5 (BG) MTC Rehab (Ortho) 0 75%

DCU (BG) Day Case Unit 0 90%

Ward 3 (BG) Orthopaedics 0 93%  

7Y Clin Haematology 0

10Z Clin Haematology (BMT) 0
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Report owner: John GrahamR&I: Are we a leader in research and innovation?

Please note: Data for this report began to be collected in Sep 2012 – historical data will become available as time progresses.

Contracts in pre trial set up Contracts signed Contracts signed this time last year

*Please see commentary for further information

Are we delivering research to plan, and is it positively impacting patient care?
Last 

Month 

Month 

Actual

Month 

vs. r3m

% research studies closed (delivered 'on time to target') 58% 46%

% studies failing to recruit a patient in first 70 days* 52% 50%

Time from full document set to RD&I approval: Local LCRN (Target 15 Days) 15 16

Time from full document set to RD&I approval: All Studies (Target 30 Days) 25 25

Time (Days) from study open to 1st patient recruited (Target within 70 Days) 67 68

Are we attracting research & innovation?
Last 

Month

Month 

Actual

Month 

vs. r3m

# commercial studies open 83 85

# non-commercial studies open 321 319

# feasibility studies requested by pharma or CLRN 9 6

# feasibility studies awarded (updated biannually) 5 3

# feasibility studies declined by our clinicians 1 2

NIHR league table ranking (1-4) 2 2

What is the impact of our research & innovation? Year Quarter

Plan Plan

Finances: Commercial income from research studies (£m) 4.3 1.1

Non Commercial income from research studies (£m) 5.8 1.4(Updated 

quarterly)
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Executive Summary
Our focus remains on providing an optimal environment for translational and clinical research. To achieve 
this, we are focusing on our relationships with strategic partners in academia including Liverpool Health 
Partners, the NHS, the National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) and commercial partners. We have a 
strong capability for research with a number of areas of excellence, and our commercial portfolio is 
growing well.  

Update
• On the RD&I dashboard we have a continual small fluctuation of studies (Commercial & Non-

Commercial) opening and  closing each month but remain on green for the Month vs. r 3m. 
• NIHR plan to visit all NIHR awarded Clinical Research Units this year and will be coming to the Trust on 

the 24th January 2018 where we will showcase our MHRA Phase 1 accredited unit, our current early 
phase portfolio and share the plans for the new build CRU.

• RD&I are a partner on the LHP Industry Gateway Office Task & Finish Group where progress is being 
made with processes and procedures for Commercial Research.

• RD&I is fully engaged with the redevelopment team and move to the new hospital. We have allocated 
move leads for the CRU and RD&I Office, on going work on “Dump the Junk” and archiving of clinical 
research.

• We are working with Covance on a new proposal for the new CRU for continued partnership
• On the 28th November RD&I held a Research Forum for Chief Investigators and Principal Investigator in 

the Education Centre .  The event was not well attended but those that did attend engaged and raise a 
number of points that RD&I will take forward.  

• The CRU Phase 1 unit  has been served its MHRA inspection and the dossier was submitted on the 11th

December 2017 and we await a date for the inspection sometime in Mar/Apr 18.
• The CRU has been awarded its 2nd AME oncology study that will start next year  following the success of 

the 1st study, we are the only NHS Trust undertaking such first in human studies.
• The CRU showcasing events  are in parallel advertising on face book, twitter and blogging which is 

proving to be extremely successful and encouraging our patients and visitors to enquire about research. 
The CRU has recently appointed a volunteer who is based in the foyer on a Monday afternoon recruiting 
into the C4C programme, in 6 hours our volunteer recruited 67 potential trails patients.   

• RD&I are supporting innovation /research projects that come from the GDE and the Accelerator and 
getting involved in how the digital work can support and enhance research capabilities.

The Board is asked to confirm their understanding of the position reported and advise of 

any areas where greater clarity is required.

Commentary

Report owner: John GrahamR&I: Are we a leader in research and innovation?
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Executive Summary

Key Highlights for the Month are:

Sickness – Sickness absence reduced in M9 to 4.67%, from 4.68% in M8. 

Appraisal – although the appraisal rate in ESR remains at 74%, the first iteration of the National NHS Staff 

Survey indicates that over 91% of staff have had an appraisal. Work to improve appraisal, both the process 

and the recording mechanism, will be undertaken for this year’s appraisal window.

Medical Appraisal has improved from 83% to 91%

What has gone well?

Medical Locums- Focussed work continues to contract locums directly or through the TemprE system 

rather than through off framework or non TemprE agencies, reducing spend on VAT and agency 

commission.

Sickness – The impact of the agreed Managing Sickness Absence Policy is being closely monitored by the 

Business HR through weekly sickness huddles to ensure best practice and it is being applied consistently by 

operational  managers. Long term sickness cases are being reviewed and the team have recorded  773 

members of staff on live stages of the policy. The focus on ‘Hot Spots’ is continuing with areas of high 

sickness levels receiving additional scrutiny and support. A return to work audit is shortly due to conclude 

and the results will be analysed and followed up with appropriate action plans and a review of the Top 40 

staff with highest number of episodes/calendar days lost is being undertaken. HR administrative was 

established in nominated areas for a number of months and has shown a positive tangible impact on the 

sickness rate e.g. Theatres. This support  was extended for further areas for additional support. The 

Communications plan continues to be reviewed  following the release of the staff sickness video  with a 

renewed focus on promoting areas of best practice as case studies to use for areas which are well above 

the Trust target. The Stay Well in Winter booklet was produced and distributed and featured lots of practical 

advice for staff during the Winter months. ‘Back to Health’ campaign has also commenced highlighting 

awareness of training and support for musculoskeletal problems.    

Recruitment & Pay scrutiny – The weekly Exec scrutiny panel continues to cover all pay affecting changes 

ie ACC payments, MALS requests, Recruitments and Contractual Changes. Posts identified through 

recruitment that can be withdrawn are logged and removed from budget. ACC requests (WLI’s ) are 

received prior to work being undertaken and are robustly challenged.  

Agency – The reduction in agency spend has increased. The latest figs for December show that Year to 

date we are £1.264m under the NHSI ceiling and £848,771 under our internal target. Challenge and review 

meetings continue with areas of high usage along with additional monthly Exec scrutiny, particularly in areas 

of highest and longest usage. Requests for Close Observation support have been virtually eradicated but 

this will be closely monitored over the winter pressure months.

Service Improvement - the team continues to work closely with operational teams to drive forward key 

portfolios of work which includes: 

• Patient flow - specifically leading on the Winter Plan and continued rollout of SAFER

• Workforce & leadership – driving forward all workforce efficiencies as a programme

• CQUINs – primary focus has been flu for which we have achieved our target for Winter

• New hospital – development of Ambulatory model, releasing inpatient and outpatient capacity

• Improvement Academy – continuing to deliver courses every other month across RLBUHT & AUH

Report owner: Debbie HerringOur people: Do we have the engaged and motivated people that we need?
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Where have we been challenged?

Mandatory training – the anticipate drop in compliance has been realised in line with predictions and 

stands at 81%. A review of mandatory training has been undertaken and presented at January’s Workforce 

Committee with an accompanying action plan. A recent MIAA inspection has resulted in confirmed report 

rating the Trust has having “significant assurance” however further work is required to improve compliance.

Medical Staffing Pay Challenge

• Review of on call payments continues

• Analysis and reconciliation of  job plan PAs (pay) for assurance/ recovery continues

Worry List.  

Workforce Planning – Divisional Teams have detailed Operational Workforce Plans drilled down by staff 

group and band for the New Hospital showing current and expected numbers using clinical modelling, 

different ways of working and reduced bed capacity. Plans have been subject to challenge and reduced 

where possible, however the workforce is currently predicted to increase.

The Trust wide workforce plan has been confirmed taking into account the increased requirements for the 

new hospital, the wider associated workforce, and the impact of required efficiency savings under 

Carter. The projections are consistent with the workforce plan in the OBC submission.

The numbers in the workforce plan are under discussion at Executive Directors. The next step is to cost 

agreed numbers to aid discussions on affordability and agreement on options to reduce cost whilst 

maintaining safe service delivery. This is due to go to the November Trust Board.

Emerging issues on the horizon

Agency use – The Streamlining project, in conjunction with NHSI, is looking at a collaborative bank 

approach across the STP footprint. The most immediate work stream is with providers of a Direct 

Engagement tool and the whether a working together on a joint, revised contract will give us a better return. 

Report owner: Debbie HerringOur people: Do we have the engaged and motivated people that we need?
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Report owner: Debbie Herring

Heads WTE By Division : Month Ending 31st December 2017

420 385.56 6.44%

1118 996.40 16.64% Heads WTE

1556 1395.16 23.30% 835 758.50

486 428.15 7.15% 551 522.33

129 118.27 1.98% 604 550.48

291 274.56 4.59% 524 461.07

629 577.89 9.65% 2507 2248.59

1968 1812.06 30.26% 1576 1447.09

6597 5988.05 6597 5988.05

*WTE excludes bank, agency and overtime.

Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17

2 3 1 17 17 17

0 0 0 0 0 0

3 4 4 25 23 23

1 1 0 3 3 3

1 2 1 7 7 6

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 4 2 2

0 0 0 3 2 1

0 1 2 4 5 5

7 11 8 63 59 57

Medical
11 4 5 4 14 15 3 7 11 17 20 0

Non-Medical
13 3 4 4 11 11 4 4 6 12 1 0

Medical
11 16 13 8 17 7 8 107 28 13 5 1

Non-Medical
106 136 147 169 145 143 155 132 171 135 97 0

Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17

90

New Recruits

Honorary Contracts

Number started before 

checks confirmed or 

completed (December 17)

Safer checks completed before 

start (December 17)

3

May-17

6

Actual

Oct-17 Dec-17Nov-17

Corporate Services

Clinical Support Services

Scheduled Care

Unscheduled Care

Allied Health Professionals

On Going Case

Equal Pay

Estates and Ancillary

Healthcare Scientists

Totals

Liverpool Clinical Labs

Operations

Actual Establishment

Grievance

Staff Group

Add Prof Scientific and Technic

Additional Clinical Services

Administrative and Clerical

TRUST BOARD WORKFORCE SUMMARY

December 2017

% 

Workforce

Employee Relations Activity

Medical & Dental Procedures

Bullying & Harassment

Discipline

Medical and Dental

Nursing and Midwifery Registered

Totals

New Cases Logged

Capability (Formal Process)

Qualified nursing sickness absence was 4.97% in December 2017, and 6.66% for the 12 months previous. As you can see from the data above, sickness absence is influenced by seasonal change and although during 2015 the Trust suffered 

with higher than average sickness over the summer months. The highest reason for absence in the rolling 12 month period was Anxiety, Stress or Depression equating to (23.59%) of all absence in the period, 'Musculoskeletal Problems' 

(10.14%) was second and 'Gastronintestinal problems' (9.57%) third. Managers selecting 'Other known causes' are being challenged by the HR team to provide more accurate reasons for absence.

Total

Organisational Change

Employment Tribunal

10

Jan-17

Redundancy

Sep-17Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

5.50%

6.00%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August September October November December

Rolling and Monthly Sickness Absence

In Month - 2016-17 In Month - 2015-16 Rolling Target %

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

9.00%

10.00%

Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17

Monthly Turnover

Add Prof Scientific and Technic Additional Clinical Services Administrative and Clerical Allied Health Professionals
Estates and Ancillary Healthcare Scientists Medical and Dental Nursing and Midwifery Registered

70.00%

75.00%

80.00%

85.00%

90.00%

95.00%

100.00%

Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17

Mandatory Training

Actual Planned Target (95%)

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

5.50%

6.00%

6.50%

7.00%

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August September October November December

Qualified Nursing Sickness Absence

2014/15 2015/16 2017

STAGE 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5

Average time for recruitment authorisation

Average time to receive recruitment and publ ish advert

Optimal  minimal  advertis ing period

Average time to longl is t and send to manager

Optimal  time for recruiting manager to shortl i s t

Average time to invi te to interview

Optimal  time to interview date

Optimal  time for manager to inform of interview outcome

Average time to issue conditional  offer

Conditional  to unconditional  offer (safe employment 

checks)Unconditional  offer to s tarting in post

WEEK 17WEEK 13 WEEK 14 WEEK 15 WEEK 16WEEK 1 WEEK 2 WEEK 3 WEEK 4 WEEK 5 WEEK 6 WEEK 7 WEEK 8 WEEK 9 WEEK 10 WEEK 11 WEEK 12
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Report owner: Debbie Herring

AGENCY USE REASONS (HOURS) Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17

Bank Annual leave requests   10.75 25.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Close obs 2735.75 3478.66 3954.25 662.25 518.30 52.05 0.00 0.00 54.50

Escort a patient   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.50 0.00

Maternity   0.00 0.00 0.00 22.50 0.00 0.00 11.50 0.00 0.00

Sent staff to ward for escalation   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sickness long term   60.25 0.00 0.00 19.00 130.00 125.08 110.50 88.92 39.25

Sickness Short term   4559.92 3244.25 3012.17 1889.92 2895.80 2785.75 735.08 869.63 766.33

Unfilled funded vacancy   5670.00 8003.17 6129.17 5643.25 3696.10 3138.92 4931.25 4753.67 5020.92

Grand Total 13036.67 14751.28 13095.59 8236.92 7240.20 6101.80 5788.33 5724.02 5881.00
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Trust Board Finance Report  
 

Month 09 December 2017 

Responsible officer John Graham, Director of Finance 

Period Financial year 2017/18 Month 09 
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Director of Finance Overview 
 

The Month 9 position shows a deficit of £21.5m, with a £8.5m adverse variance against plan.  
 
  

Month 9 Income and 
Expenditure position 
 

1 The Trust is reporting a draft income and expenditure deficit to month 9 of £21.5m compared to a planned deficit of £13.0m, and 
therefore has an £8.5m adverse variance against plan.  The key driver for the adverse variance is a shortfall against QEP delivery 
(£6.2m).  
 

Forecast position for year-
end 
 

2 The Trust has developed an organisational recovery programme, in order to stabilise the financial position – and to ensure a more 
sustainable position going forward.  The Trust has commissioned the support of KPMG and appointed a Turn Around Adviser to 
support this process.   
 
The forecast position the Trust has reported to the F&P Committee over recent months has been maintained at £14.4m, although 
this is dependent on delivery of a range of recovery actions – as set out in the recovery programme trajectory.   
 
As an update to the forecast – the Trust is set to receive two tranches of winter pressure funding, a value of £1.5m has been 
allocated, and schemes have been identified to this value to improve flow and access to services – so it is anticipated that this value 
will be spent.  There is a further amount of £0.95m which is intended to support existing winter pressure costs.  On this basis  -- 
NHS Improvement has requested that the current forecast is improved by the equivalent value.  On this basis – the revised forecast 
position would be £13.5m. 

QEP performance against 
target 

3 At Month 9 the QEP achieved is  £7.1m against the month 9 year to date target of £13.3m resulting in an adverse variance to plan 
of £6.2m.  

Cash position  4 Cash Balances at the end of Month 9 were £3.8m compared to the revised plan of £3.0m.  The cash position includes a net £50.2m 
of cash support received during 2017/18.  Further updates to the cash plan will need to reflect agreed actions as part of the Trust 
recovery plan.  Cash support will be continue to be required on an ongoing basis until the underlying income and expenditure 
position is resolved.  The management of cash is becoming increasingly difficult, both in terms of securing the cash support from 
the Department of health, and also in managing / prioritising creditor payments. 
 

The NHSI use of resources 
metric 

5 The Trust would attain an overall risk rating of 3 in the reported position against a planned position of 3, the scale is from 4 and 
lower numbers reflect lower risk.  2 

Overview QEP Expenditure Income & Activity Cash Flow 

F
in

an
ce

Page 67 of 218



Financial Overview 

Key Issues 
 

The cumulative position to month 9 shows an adverse 
variance of £8.5m.  The key elements included within this 
are summarised as follows;   
 

• Shortfall on QEP (£6.2m) can be broken down as 
follows; 

o Pay QEP delivery is £4.1m below plan;  
o Non Pay QEP delivery is £3.6m below plan;  
o The balance to bring the overall under delivery 

back to the reported position (£6.2m) is made 
up of  revenue generation schemes (£1.5m); 

• Other Pay over spends (Excluding QEP) include;  
o Premium costs associated with agency, bank 

and over time (£2.1m); 
o Premium costs associated with additional 

clinical capacity spend (£0.4m); 
o Back pay of junior medical  out of hour 

payments (£0.9m). 
• Other adverse movements against plan include; 

o Net additional cost above plan relating to EPR  
(£2.0m) – relating to a phasing across income 
and expenditure,  and net costs of 
apprenticeship levy above plan (£0.8m); 

o Income is reduced by £1.0m relating to reduced 
CQUIN payments; 

o Other above plan costs including accrued FIP 
costs (£0.7m) and costs associated with MALS / 
Payments in lieu of notice (£0.7m); 

• Adverse movements against plan have been offset in 
part by slippage against reserves and developments.     
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Plan Retained Surplus/(Deficit) Actual Retained Surplus/(Deficit) 3 

 

The Month 9 position shows a deficit of £21.5m, with a £8.5m adverse variance against plan.  
 
  

Plan Actual Var Plan Actual Var Plan Actual Var

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income 42,030 42,040 11 392,151 386,949 (5,202) 522,921 523,873 0

Expenditure (41,117) (44,087) (2,970) (387,236) (390,646) (3,410) (513,369) (513,369) 952

Pay (23,919) (25,896) (1,977) (231,002) (232,275) (1,273) (304,400) (304,400) 0

Non-Pay (17,198) (18,191) (993) (156,234) (158,370) (2,136) (208,969) (208,969) 952

EBITDA 913 (2,047) (2,960) 4,915 (3,697) (8,612) 9,552 10,504 952

Other Costs (1,996) (2,102) (110) (17,681) (17,809) (128) (23,575) (23,575) 0

Operating Surplus (1,083) (4,149) (3,066) (12,766) (21,506) (8,740) (14,023) (13,071) 952

Retained Surplus/(Deficit) (8,275) (4,149) (3,066) (34,898) (42,469) (7,571) (99,571) (98,996) 575

NHS reported performance (1,052) (4,121) (3,070) (13,049) (21,506) (8,457) (14,400) (13,448) 575

Cash 2,992 3,760 768 2,992 3,760 768 2,774 2,774 0

QEP 1,848 1,127 (721) 13,355 7,124 (6,231) 20,785 12,821 (7,964)

Current Month Year-to-date Forecast

Overview QEP Expenditure Income & Activity Cash Flow 
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Income 

4 

Key Issues 

and Risks 

Total income is below plan by £5.2m.  The key components of this are 
summarised as follows: 
• There has yet to be a formal contract change to reflect the move of 

Haemato-oncology services to Clatterbridge Cancer Centre (£5.2m) 
this is largely offset by corresponding expenditure reductions for 
the service. 

• Further reductions income relating to hosted services (£0.3m), the 
transfer of services from Liverpool Community Health (£1.6m).  

• Included in the cumulative position is the proceeds from the 
transfer of Haemato-oncology services to Clatterbridge Cancer 
Centre (£10m) and credit notes issued to Liverpool CCG which total 
£5.4m. 

• The position includes a reduction of £1.0m CQUIN income (0.5%) 
following guidance received from NHS Improvement.   

Included within the position is the Trust wide impact of Acting as One 
agreement equating to a reduction of £4.3m.  Had the Trust not signed 
up to the agreement it is estimated that the KPI contract sanctions of 
£6.4m would have been applied by commissioners. 

 

 

Cause 

The main areas of over-performance are: 
Nephrology £1.1m (See detailed exception summary) 
Infectious diseases £461k (HCD part of Gastro Exception summary) 
ITU £432k (Critical Care bed days) 
Renal Transplant +£652k (Cadaveric transplants and High cost drugs – 
linked to immunosuppressant repatriation) 
Diabetes/Endocrinology +£471k.                                              
The main areas of under-performance are: 
Dental -£204k (Paed Dentistry & Special Care dentistry) 
Trauma & Orthopaedics- £1.3m (see detailed Exception summary) 
Rheumatology -£412k- (Anti TNF drugs, income matched to spend) 
Allergy/Dermatology -£225k (Anti TNF drugs, income matched to 
spend) 

 

 

Mitigation 

The overall income position is being closely monitored, and particularly 
in view of the acting as one contract, and the operational pressures 
currently facing the Trust.  The Finance Department are working closely 
with the care groups to ensure that any significant movements in 
activity and income are identified and escalated at an early stage – 
both as a result of acting as one arrangements, and winter pressures. 
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Trust-wide Income is £5.2m under plan 
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Pay Costs  
Trust-wide pay costs are over spent by £1.3m in the year to date  
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Staff Costs - Plan Staff Costs - Actual

 

Key 

Issues 

and Risks 

The Trust is £1.3m below planned pay costs at Month 9,  
This includes a continued improvement in the trend for bank, agency and overtime 
(illustrated in the temporary staff cost table). 
The position does include a reduced level of spend relating to the transfer of 
Haemato-Oncology services to Clatterbridge – and this is matched by a reduction in 
income, the same  also applies to movements across hosted services and also 
slippage on developments. 

 

 

Cause 

The pay budget position includes a shortfall against QEP delivery of £4.1m.  Over 
spends against pay budgets include;  
 

• ACC payments £0.4m (albeit at a reduced rate); 
• Net additional premium costs associated with agency usage £1.0m; 
• Other premium costs associated with overtime and bank payments £1.1m.; 
 

A range of actions have been taken to reduce the levels of premium staffing spend, 
with a steady improvement in recent months.  Whilst the year to date premium 
spend on bank and agency remains a key part of the year to date position, it has 
been at a much improved trajectory – particularly over the last 3 months.    
 

Additional above plan expenditure has been incurred of £0.4m on MALs payments.  
Over spending areas have in part been offset by slippage on reserves and 
developments. 

 

 

Mitigation 

The Trust has developed a recovery programme with a number of actions to reduce 
staffing costs within the organisation, this programme is supported by KPMG and 
through the appointment of a turn around adviser. The effectiveness of these 
actions will be managed through the agreed governance process – which will 
include oversight by the FIP Board and F&P Committee. 
The Trust agency steering group continue to meet regularly to challenge and 
reduce agency costs  where-ever possible.   As part of the recovery programme – a 
vacancy review process has been established – to provide further challenge in the 
recruitment to posts. 

5 

Temporary Staff Costs £'000 Sep Oct Nov Dec

Bank - Plan 1 (1) (2) (2)

Bank - Actual (766) (870) (924) (945)

Variance (767) (869) (767) (944)

NHSI Agency - Plan (735) (644) (745) (725)

Agency - Actual (605) (360) (375) (272)

Variance 130 284 130 453

Agency - Premium estimate (105) (63) (65) (47)

Overtime - Plan 0 0 0 0

Overtime - Actual (260) (237) (221) (197)

Variance (260) (237) (221) (197)

Overtime - Premium estimate (122) (111) (104) (93)

Locum - Plan
(19) (19) (19) (19)

Locum - Actual (186) (249) (233) (239)

Variance (167) (230) (167) (220)
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Non-Pay Costs  
Trust-wide Non-Pay Costs are over spent by £2.1m in the year to date  

Please note analysis excludes non operational transactions and reserves 

Key Issues 

and Risks 

The Trust is £2.1m over spent at Month  9. 
The position does include a reduced level of spend relating to 
the transfer of Haemato-Oncology services to Clatterbridge – 
and this is matched by a reduction in income, the same  also 
applies to movements across hosted services and also slippage 
on developments. 

 

 

Cause 

The non-pay budget position includes a shortfall against QEP 
delivery of £3.6m. 
Additional expenditure has been incurred above plan across the 
following areas;  
 

• Net additional cost above plan relating to EPR  (£2.0m) – 
relating to a phasing across income and expenditure; 

• Assumed costs linked to the FIP programme £0.7m; 
 

These over spending areas have in part been offset by slippage 
on reserves and developments. 

 

 

Mitigation 

 
The Trust has developed a recovery programme with a number 
of actions to reduce non staff costs within the organisation, this 
programme is supported by KPMG and through the appointment 
of a turn around adviser.  The effectiveness of these actions will 
be managed through the agreed governance process – which 
will include oversight by the FIP Board and F&P Committee. 
Specifically the values to which budget holders can now 
authorise has been reduced, there is an increased requirement 
for Executive level sign off of expenditure, and specific 
restrictions have been placed on discretionary elements of 
expenditure. 

YTD Plan YTD Actual Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Non-Staff expenditure YTD (156,234) (158,370) (2,136)

Clinical Services & Supplies (94,874) (95,679) (805)

General Supplies & Services (12,956) (12,404) 552

Establishment and Premises (25,436) (28,421) (2,985)

Services from other NHS Bodies / Purchase of Healthcare (4,721) (4,578) 143

Other (18,248) (17,288) 960

Clinical Services & Supplies expenditure YTD (94,874) (95,679) (805)

Appliances & implants (8,131) (8,113) 17

Drugs & blood products (19,131) (21,327) (2,196)

High cost drugs (35,730) (33,419) 2,311

Equipment (30,492) (31,556) (1,065)

Other (inc. dressings) (1,390) (1,263) 127

6 
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Trust QEP Reporting 
2017/18 Month 9 position Progress from 

the previous 

month 

• The 2017/18 year to date QEP position of £7.1m has been achieved through £4.1m 
(57%) recurrent projects and £3.0m (43%) non recurrent projects.  

 
• The Trust has identified in year savings of £12.8m, a decrease of £0.8m from Month 

8 and full year recurrent  savings of  £7.8m, a full year  increase of £0.1m compared 
with Month 8. 

 
• The 2017/18 Quality sign off is 64% at Month 9  a deteriorate compared to Month 8 

(69%) it is regularly discussed at FIP Board  to emphasis the importance of the 
project approval process. 

 
• The full value of projects in stages Delivery, Close Out or Completed is 80% at Month 

9 compared with 82% at Month 8. Projects in completed stage  have increased to 
22% at Month 9 compared to 19% at Month 8 as the initiatives have been 
developed. 

 
• KPMG is working with the Trust exploring opportunities, for example  in areas  of 

workforce planning and the review of VAT arrangements. Schemes have now been 
added to the QEP tracker. 

Current issues • Identification of additional opportunities to reduce shortfall in year of £8m and 
£13m full year and to build the plan for 2018/19.  

 
• Review schemes with a risk rating above 4 (currently 3). 

 

Actions and 

deliverables for 

next month 

• Ensure ideas resulting from both the benchmarking exercise  and ideas workshop are 
added to the QEP tracker.  
 

• Ensure QEP schemes are reviewed and SharePoint is updated to show accurate 
position. 
 

• Focus on the  completed Quality sign off of 2017/18 schemes. 
 

• Actively identifying 2018/19 QEP initiatives 
 

• Further work is being undertaken to fully align improvements in the QEP position 
with the income & expenditure run rate, this follows phasing issues identified at 
Month 9. 
 

2017/18 Month 9 Year to Date (£m) 
End of Year Forecast 

(£m) 

YTD % rec In Year  Full Year 

QEP Target 13.355   £20.785 £20.785 

Pay £2.711 52% £4.930 £2.515 

Non Pay £2.962 64% £5.266 £3.862 

Income £1.450 51% £2.625 £1.421 

Subtotal budgeted QEP savings £7.124 57% £12.821 £7.799 

Variance to budgeted target -£6.231 -£7.964 -£12.986 

Prudent view budgeted QEP savings £10.363 £6.374 

Cost Reduction £1.587 £2.983 £1.538 

Quality/Efficiency £1.150 £1.595 £1.240 

Subtotal non budgeted QEP savings          £2.738                                 £4.579       £2.778 

TOTAL QEP £9.861   £17.400 £10.577 
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Month 9 Cash Balances are £3.8m, £0.8m ahead of Plan 

Key Issues 

and Risks 

• Month  Cash balances are higher than the revised plan by 
£0.8m.  

• The cash position upto Month 9 includes a total of £50.2m of 
cash support received to date.  Cash support will be continue to 
be required on an ongoing basis until the underlying income 
and expenditure position is resolved.  The management of cash 
is becoming increasingly difficult, both in terms of securing the 
cash support from the Department of health, and also in 
managing / prioritising creditor payments.. 

• The adverse performance on cash is driven by the income and 
expenditure performance. 

Cause • The Trust is behind its EBITDA plan by £9.0m, but bullet 
payments to Project Co  are also £5.2m behind plan.  The 
second tranche of GDE Funding, £2.5m, has been received as 
part of PDC, supporting cash balances and loan requirements. 
New hospital and IT schemes subject to prompt payment 
contribute to the capital outflow variance of £10.6m.      

• Cash balances have been reduced by higher than anticipated 
debtors mainly related to 2015-16 & 2016-17 related activity.  

• The Trust has received cash support of £5.814m in December, 
and is not due to receive any support in January as part of the 
revised arrangements to support equipment lease payments for 
the new hospital. The cash position includes a net £50.2m of 
cash support received during 2017/18. 

Mitigation • The Trust is in regular dialogue with NHSI and DH regarding the 
need for a revolving working capital facility, to support future 
cash flow projections. The Trust is forecasting £18.659m 
working capital support for February. This includes £10.559m to 
support payments in respect of equipment leases for the New 
Royal. A net £8.2m is also forecast for March 2018 

8 

Cash-Flow £'000 - Month 9 Plan Actual  Variance 

Opening Cash  24,457 24,457 0 

EBITDA  5,274 (3,718) (8,992) 

Gain from reducing stocks  273 1,713 1,440 

Cash gain/(loss) from changes to debtors/prepayments  1,667 (8,062) (9,729) 

Cash gain/(loss) from changest to 

payables/accruals/deferred income  

(20,024) (9,560) 10,464 

Bullet Payment to Project Co  (18,776) (13,532) 5,244 

Decrease in provisions  (296) (160) 136 

Cash outflow related to capital  (23,994) (34,567) (10,573) 

PDC received  1,250 5,150 3,900 

PDC Dividend payments/movements in receivable/payable  (5,590) (5,589) 1 

Interest payments (net of interest receivable)  (1,632) (1,645) (13) 

Net Loans accessed  40,276 50,200 9,924 

Loan Repayments (finance Leases)  107 (949) (1,056) 

Donated income  0 22 22 

Total Cash Movement  (21,465) (20,697) 768 

Closing Cash  2,992 3,760 768 

Indicators Plan - Month Plan - Actual 

Cash balance 2,992  3,760  

Undrawn cash facilities -    -    

Liquidity ratio 1  1  

Liquidity ratio days 11 12  

Cash days of op. expense 2  3  
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Cash Flow Forecasting 

9 

Key Issues 

and Risks 

• Going forward, cash balances to the end of March are 
expected to decline, based on current  trends for cash 
payments and receipts  

 Trust cash balances are forecast to show a negative 
balance of £25.9m prior to deficit funding/working 
capital support in February and March 2018. 

 The Accelerator account  showed a zero  balance by 
the end of May 2017 

• Cash projections going forward rely on trend and take into 
account the Trust’s updated financial plan which assumes a 
deficit of £14.4m. The Trust’s NHSI forecast in November 
2017 includes capital investment loans of £22.3m and 
interim revenue support loans of £35.3m.  

Cause • Operating cash flows are the main driver of the projected 
negative cash  balance, as a result of the Trust’s expected 
I&E deficit of £14.4m, and adverse performance against the 
income & expenditure plan in year.  

Mitigation • The Trust received £5.8m of support from NHSI in 
December. The Trust is forecasting £18.659m cash support 
for February. This includes £10.559m to support payments 
in respect of equipment leases for the New Royal.  It is also 
forecasting an initial £24.7m in March, of which £16.5m  
relates to new hospital equipment leases which will be 
repaid before the end of March - a net required support of 
£8.2m. Interest payments are made every six months on 
each loan; these now total £0.5m to the end of December. 

• The Trust has been in regular dialogue with NHSI and DH 
regarding the need for a revolving working capital facility. 
The application will made for February, £18.659m, subject 
to internal governance processes and any further 
discussions with NHSI  on the  February application. 
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Cash Flow Forecasting 

10 
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Commentary

Report owner: David WallikerOur IT: Do we have the IT systems and devices we need?

Key highlights for this month are:

Overall, progress with the GDE Programme is good. The first 2 Major Payment Milestones have

been achieved with £5M received from NHS Digital.

Key digital highlights include:

• MIAA assurance review on GDE programme has been undertaken and awarded a 'High

Assurance' rating

• 5G Bid Submitted with Local Authority, SMEs and industry partners with Royal as a test bed

partner

• Telehealth in a Box plans starting to be worked through for respiratory patients

• Good progress with international partnerships, specifically MIT planning for Hack in July 2018 as

part of ILINKS

• Good engagement and working with C&M STP on A&E app and interoperability proof of concept

• Presentation delivered at Kings Fund information sharing event

• Digital Pathology Clinical Model in Draft - presentation delivered with LCL at Cancer Alliance

Programme Board

• Proposals in place to establish design board to oversee operational system developments

moving forward

• 3 members of staff have submitted applications to participate in the NHS Digital Academy

In terms of specific GDE workstream highlights:

• Digital innovation - Workstream progressing very well, all projects delivered or on track against

expectations. Blood Tracking, Sensors and Bed Management next key milestones. More broadly,

digital VTE and theatre stackers have gone live. E-Handover, and digital ECGs will be delivered

in the next reporting period. Work progressed on patient portal.

• New Build - plans aligned to construction plans, all digital work on track

• EPR: Programme - NHSI OBC signed off, FBC due for submission Jan 18. A number of risks with

regards to EPR are being managed by the EPR programme board.

• Clinical Innovation: A number of projects are in development, links to R&D have been

established. International partnership plan for 2018 being mobilised.

• Broader Digital Liverpool Programmes: Good progress with digital pathology, PID signed off,

clinical model being developed. Research informatics progressing, workshop scheduled for

January.

With regards to national GDE expectations:

• Fast Follower discussions continue. Visit held with North Tees; LWH Funding Agreement

submitted in draft

• RLBUHT selected as blueprinting lead for e-sepsis

• Plans in place to commence a HIMSS Assessment with current digital capabilities and systems

IT
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Report owner: David WallikerOur IT: Do we have the IT systems and devices we need? (1/2)

Freedom of Information
Indicator Target Actual

# FOI requests 41

# FOI requests not responded to within 20 days 0 12 3

Security

Indicator Target Actual
vs. 

r3m

% Staff who have received mandatory info gov training (YTD) 80.00% 59.74% 5

Number of Information Governance Breaches (YTD) 0 44

Information governance breaches (YTD) Baseline scale 1 0 0 1

Information governance breaches (YTD) Baseline scale 2 0 0 5

Systems Availability, Core Platform and Core Clinical

Indicator Explanation Target Actual
vs. 

r3m

Network
Intranet homepage down - Microsoft Access Database Engine error '80004005' -
Software Development resolved the issue with a restart.

99.80% 99.27%

3

Unity 99.80% 100.00% 5

PENS 99.80% 100.00% 5

WiFi
User advised they can't connect to Wi-Fi in the LMC, Princess Suite-Networks visited 
and rebooted the Access Points.

99.80% 99.56%
1

MS Exchange 99.80% 100.00% 5

IPM 99.80% 100.00% 5

PACs
99.80% 100.00%

5

ICE 99.80% 100.00% 5

JAC 99.80% 99.89% 5

ADT Whiteboard
99.80% 100.00%

5

CyberRen (Renal) W4GLRUN.EXE Exiting - Services Restarted by Tech Services 99.80% 99.44% 1

Bluespier
99.80% 100.00%

5

A&E Whiteboard 99.80% 100.00% 5
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Stakeholders:  Are we engaging with our stakeholders?* Report owner: Helen Shaw
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Please note, patient and staff engagement is covered in the Performance sections of the pack.

Priority: 2018 Lead: John Graham

Carillion went into liquidation on Monday, 15  January 2018. Contingency plans are being put into place to ensure 
that the new Royal will be completed and that we will continue to have a hard FM service. The Hospital Company 
(Liverpool) is contracted to deliver the project and is responsible for ensuring it is completed   They have a range 
of provisions to ensure the construction is completed and has access to insurance funds to enable it to complete 
the project. The Hospital Company (Liverpool) has confirmed to sub-contractors that they will be paid for their 
work from 15 January until the end of their contract. Any money owed from Carillion for work prior to this is 
subject to insolvency proceedings and discussions are underway between sub-contractors and PwC, the special 
managers involved in Carillion’s liquidation.  We have written to key local stakeholders including staff, local MPs, 
councillors and health and education partners and will continue to keep them updated.
The grand opening ceremony for Accelerator is now planned for March 2018 and will be attended by the 
Northern Powerhouse Minister Jake Berry MP and British biotech entrepreneur Professor Sir Chris Evans.
The contract with Liverpool City Council and their contractor, Willmott Dixon, for the provision of a new sterile 
services department at Broadgreen Hospital was signed in December 2017.  Work has now commenced on site 
with construction expected to be complete by the end of December 2018.

Priority: World Class Workforce Lead: Stella Clayton

Members of the Trust won awards from the Liverpool & Sefton Chamber of Commerce Award and Wirral 
Chamber of Commerce for Empowering People for work on responsible business, winding participation and 
volunteer work in recruiting people to the organ donor register.
Teams from the Trust have also been involved in a range of events aimed at promoting skills and careers in the 
NHS and wider health sector. These include participating in the Health Sector Skills Show and Discovering Health 
Day. Recently we have recruited eight cadets who are studying health and social care at the UTC to our cadet 
programme and 17 people to our traineeship programme. These trainees have started placements in Liverpool 
Clinical Laboratories, as well as admin and health care assistants roles.

Priority: Sustainable Health System Lead: Aidan Kehoe

The outline business case (OBC) for merger was submitted to NHS Improvement last year and a summary of the 
OBC was published on the websites of both Trusts and a briefing to stakeholders was issued. The Trusts intend to 
work with NHSI on the next steps. In due course, a Patient Benefit Case will be submitted to the Competition and 
Markets Authority, the Government agency which reviews mergers which could potentially restrict competition. 
Work will continue to develop the Full Business Case, which will be much more detailed than the Outline Business 
Case. The staff and public engagement programme will continue, with staff involvement including medical, 
nursing, Allied Health Professional and support staff, now that the Outline Business Case has been approved by 
the two Trust boards. As part of this, the two Trusts will produce regular, joint briefings for all staff and 
stakeholders.  Formal consultation on any proposed service change will take place as required, as will 
employment consultation with staff. 

RD&I Lead: John Graham/Peter Williams

Nothing to update this month
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Stakeholders:  Are we engaging with our stakeholders?* Report owner: Helen Shaw
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Patients Patient Experience Nil return
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R Charity

Progress against YTD fundraising target (M5) Target: £667,124 (M9)
£952,200 ( annual)

Actual: £390,917

Major Donor income has reached an impressive £49,000 at the end of the year. The fundraising team continue to 
develop a future strategy for this area of fundraising. A grant has been agreed in principal to the value of 
£214,000, final decision will be the end of January. The team are focussing on internal engagement with staff, and
planning events during 2018 for the internal staff. An appeal strategy is being developed to take fundraising up to 
2020. This involves consultation with divisions across the Trust. Details to be rolled out in April.

Media Protecting our reputation This month in the media there were 15 positive media stories 
and 4 negative. The main negative story focused on there 
being fewer beds in the new Royal following an interview with 
our medical director. Positive stories included one of our 
consultant transplant surgeons speaking on local radio about 
organ donation and a local school raising money for R Charity. 
Our social media continues to gain high levels of engagement. 
Messages throughout December focused on highlighting 
alternatives to A&E and advice around flu and norovirus in line 
with our winter communications plan. There was also a 12 
Days of Christmas social media campaign promoting the new 
Royal and recruitment. Throughout December these messages 
on social media were seen around 730,000 times. 

Stakeholder Priorities identified Update on response taken

Governors 
& Members

Governor Involvement One of the shadow governors visited the new Royal site in 
December 2017. Further site visits will be arranged as the 
building work progresses.

The shadow Council of Governors meeting took place on 5 
December 2017 and issues considered included the new 
Royal, Winter Planning, the financial position and service 
reconfiguration across the health economy.
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Risk management: Are we mitigating risks effectively? Report owner: Lisa GrantWhat are the biggest risks (15+) on Risk Registers?

Risk Source Exec Lead Risk Owner Risk
Date 

added
Risk * 
rating

Target Risk Main Controls
Review 

Date

Link to a 
Strategic
Objective

Debbie
Herring

Debbie 
Herring

ID4011: Corporate –Human Resources
Affordability of the Trust Workforce Plan.
The Trust has a detailed operational workforce plan led by the 
Divisions drilled down to staff group and band to ensure safe 
staffing for the new hospital.  The workforce plan has been 
developed using clinical modelling, benchmarking and scrutinised 
for efficiencies.

Cause: Required workforce for the new hospital is a higher cost 
than the workforce assumptions in the LTFM.  
Effect:  Adds to the financial challenge in ensuring an affordable 
workforce.   
Impact: Increases the demand for further efficiencies  in corporate 
services at a time when clinical teams need more input from 
corporate services as they progress through significant change for 
the new hospital/potential merger.  

Sept 
16

20
4 x 5
(16)

4  
Extended 
to 31 July 

2018 
from 31 

December 
2017

• Divisional Teams have detailed Operational Workforce Plans 
drilled down by staff group and band for the New Hospital 
showing current and expected numbers using clinical modelling , 
different ways of working and reduced bed capacity.  Plans have 
been subject to challenge and reduced where possible, however 
the workforce is currently predicted to increase.    

• A Trust wide workforce plan has been confirmed taking into 
account the increased requirements for the new hospital, the 
wider associated workforce, and the impact of required 
efficiency savings under Carter.  The projections are consistent 
with the workforce plan in the OBC submission.  

• The numbers in the Trust Wide plan were presented and 
considered by the Workforce Committee in December 2017. 
These numbers are under further scrutiny by Executive 
Directors. The next step is to cost agreed numbers to aid 
discussions on affordability and agreement on options to reduce 
cost whilst maintaining safe service delivery. This will be 
discussed at the January 2018 Trust Board.

16/02/18

Risk 
Assessment

John
Graham

Paul 
Bradshaw

ID3793:  Corporate - Finance      
Insufficient cash to Support Trust Objectives
Cause - Failure to perform against key assumptions in LTFM may 
result in lower than planned cash reserves
Effect - Lower than planned cash reserves may lead to failure of 
financial duties or the inability to finance strategic objectives, 
particularly capital
Impact - Trust will require DH cash support for 2016/17 (based on 
December Plan submission)of £18m for revenue and £22m for 
Capital

Jan
2016

20
4 x 5

12 
(unable to 

predict)

• Monthly Reports to FPC
• Cash flow forecasting arrangements in place
• National cash support mechanisms in place and being accessed.

17/02/18

Redevelopme
nt Project
Risk

John 
Graham

John 
Graham

ID4081: Project Board Risk
A successful compensation claim against the Trust
Cause: Failure to secure power to the new facilities by the 
programme date as a result of Trust actions or inactions
Effect: Compensation claim against the Trust
Impact: Financial impact on scheme.

Dec
2016

16  
4x4
(20)

0
by 31 

January 
2018

• Investigation ongoing into the chain of events. The Trust has 
completed the construction of its defence. Issue may be 
superseded by a commercial arrangement with Carillion.

09/02/18

Analysis of 
incidents, 
complaints 
and claims

Lisa Grant Jo Henshaw

ID4201: Scheduled Care – Ophthalmology
Patient safety compromise due to outpatient demands being 
greater than capacity for clinical appointments
Cause: Gap between outpatient capacity and demand 
Effect: Inability to see all patients in a timely manner 
Impact: Cancellations, growing waiting lists, increased clinical risk 
through loss to follow-up, complaints and serious incidents, 
potential loss of vision for patients lost to follow-up

June 
2017

16
4 x 4

6 
by 1 June

2018

• Community optometrists follow–up launch October with the 
plan to begin February/March 2018. This will result in 60% of 
routine cataract follow-ups being undertaken within the 
community. 

• Additional clinical capacity sessions where possible. Failsafe 
system to identify and prioritise high risk patients. 

• Task and Finish Group led by Deputy Medical Director to review 
other sources of reducing  demands and preventing delays to 
clinical treatment and disease progression

01/02/18

Key: <8 = Low risk (green) 8 - 14 = Moderate risk (amber) 15+ = High risk (red)                             * Previous risk rating shown in brackets
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Risk management: Are we mitigating risks effectively? Report owner: Lisa GrantWhat are the biggest risks (15+) on Risk Registers?

Risk Source Exec Lead Risk Owner Risk
Date 

added
Risk * 
rating

Target Risk Main Controls
Review 

Date

Strategic 
Objective Risk

Lisa Grant Lisa Grant

ID3792 - Corporate - Risk of failing the 4 hour
performance standard and the impact this has on patient 
experience and outcome
Cause: Increased number of ready for discharge patients 
due to lack of social care funding  impacting on 
intermediate care beds and care packages.  There has 
therefore been an increase in medical patients across the 
trust that has impacted on flow through the Emergency 
Department.  Increased acuity over winter has also 
impacted on patient flow through the hospital that has 
increased A/E waiting times. 
Effect:  Reduced capability to treat patients within 
operational timescales.
Impact:  Poor patient experience and potential impact on 
patient safety from increased waiting times. Potential CCG 
contract enquiries.

Jan 2016
16
4x4 
(20)

12 
by March 

2018

The Trust has set a trajectory with NHS E to achieve the 90% for Quarter 3 
and Quarter 4. This was achieved in October.
Q3 achieved 90.3% ; Q4 achieving 89.02% for the first 3 weeks of Jan. The 
risk around the ability to achieve 90% for the full quarter is due to the 
higher acuity of patients attending the department that go on to require 
admission. This is mitigated by:
• daily MADE meetings being in place throughout January to reduce the 

number of RFD patients and by undertaking a whole system leaders 
RFD event on the 16/17th Jan.

• The winter plan is now fully operational 
• Trust Ops oversees DTOC, Occupancy Levels, Ambulance Turnaround, 

cancelled Ops, Patients with LOS>7days, Staffing Levels and the 
number of medically optimised patients weekly as an indicator to how 
the hospital is performing to ensure the 90% is achieved

• Quality checks continue to be carried out within the emergency floor 
by the nursing staff

• GP streaming is operational 5days a week and additional days have 
been requested from UC24

• DTOC is low around 1.5% and plans are in place to escalate to CCG and 
LA if this >1.5%

• Additional capacity open now on 2a and 4x as per winter plan
• New ECIP team commenced Jan focussing on patients delays >7days
• Direct streaming to frailty operational
• Direct ambulatory streaming operational
• Reconfiguration of emergency floor to improve time to secondary 

triage completed
• Appointment of 8 staff grade now agreed and appointments have 

commenced
• Development of sepsis cubicle implemented
• Flu activity has been high within the ED and also in terms of 

admissions to the Trust. The flu plan is operational, and activity is 
monitored and reported daily via sitrep to NHS England. The ID team 
are in reaching 3 times a day to ED, to support clinicians in ED 
managing attendances

Divisional Risk 4022 Scheduled care links to this risk and has a risk rating of 
15.
Divisional Risk 3818 Unscheduled care links to this risk and has a risk rating 
of 16.

17/02/18

Risk 
Assessment

John 
Graham

Paul 
Bradshaw

ID3953: Corporate – Finance
Assumed Receipt of Monies From Redx Pharma
Cause : Trust has made payments to Redx Pharma  which 
are expected to be matched with future cash inflows
Effect : If risk is attached to future return of cash flows this 
will need to be reflected in financial position in year 
recognised (i.e. potentially 2017/18)
Impact : Total value of prepayment awaiting future cash 
inflow at the 31/3/17 accounts is c. £1.8m - in addition the 
Trust will be invoicing RedX for fees and charges incurred to 
date. 

Escalate
d June 

17

16
4x 4

0 
By  31 
March 
2018

• Cash flow agreement is in place which supports the cash flow 
assumptions between the Trust and Redx Pharma

• Quarterly Updates requested by FPC from Director of Finance
• Trust understands that Redx has entered administration

17/02/18

Key: <8 = Low risk (green) 8 - 14 = Moderate risk (amber) 15+ = High risk (red)
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Report owner: Lisa GrantRisk management: Are we mitigating risks effectively? What are the biggest risks (15+) on Risk Registers?

Risk Source Exec Lead Risk Owner Risk
Date 

added
Risk * 
rating

Target Risk Main Controls
Review 

Date

Strategic 
Objective Risk

Lisa Grant Lisa Grant

ID4147 - Corporate - Risk of the 18 weeks performance 
standards and impact this has on patient experience and 
outcome

Cause: Multiple factors resulting in non compliance with 18 
week referral to treatment target. These include:
- Increased number of ready for discharge patients due to 

lack of social care funding  impacting on intermediate 
care beds and care packages.  

- Increase in medical patients across the trust that has 
impacted on surgery’s ability to maintain surgical flow 
through theatre.  

- Lack of theatre capacity and the ability to effectively 
move patients through critical care is also impacting on 
national targets 

- Increase in patient complexity resulting in the growth in 
the  waiting list for patients requiring surgery at RLH site

- Increase in demand for a number of the sub specialties 
- Workforce challenges within specific services
- Inability to run ACC sessions to respond to shortage in 

capacity, this results in a loss of capacity (be it premium).
- Poor performance in some diagnostic waiting times  

resulting in extended waiting time before proceeding to 
surgery

- Winter planning has resulted in elective activity being 
cancelled which has exceeded the initial anticipated 
levels . 

Effect:  Reduced capability to treat patients within 
operational timescales.
Impact:  Poor patient experience and potential impact on 
patient safety from increased waiting times. Potential CCG 
contract enquiries.

Jan 
2016

16
4x4 
(20)

12 
by 31 
March 
2018

• Implementation of Critical Care step down policy reducing the patient 
delayed discharge from ITU.

• Capacity and demand review undertaken of each specialty utilising 
NHSI model – supporting Care Group to understand service 
capacity/demand shortfalls

• Ward 11 at BGH now open to support patient throughput from RLH
• Action plans in relation to  challenged specialities,  have been shared 

with CCG  and NHS England. Further discussion at this months CQPG.   
• Theatre effectiveness programme underway to improve patient 

throughput, theatre productivity and review pre-op service
• Review of workforce, look to support with locums or short term 

agency
• Prioritisation based on waiting time and clinical need for RLH patients 

managed within specialty, to ensure most clinically appropriate 
patient is listed first

• Specialties working with CCGs to work together to reduce demand, 
including Advice & Guidance, Demand management schemes in 
primary care and telemedicine

• Waiting lists reviewed frequently within specialty and patient category 
(urgent/routine) updated should the patient condition deteriorate 
whilst awaiting review or intervention Insourcing in place as short 
term plan for endoscopy, long term plan in place to increase service 
core capacity

• 8 specialities that are challenged and consistently failing to meet the 
RTT standard of 92%. Each of those specialities has an action plan 
that has been shared with LCCG as some of them include demand 
management schemes which are under the umbrella for delivery 
against LCCG.  Each General Manager will report back to the 
operational delivery meeting on a weekly basis. 

Divisional Risk 4022 Scheduled care links to this risk and has a risk rating 
of 15.
Divisional Risk 3818 Unscheduled care links to this risk and has a risk rating 
of 16.

17/02/18

Redevelopme
nt Project
Risk

John 
Graham

John 
Graham

ID4376: Project Board Risk
Uncertainty of Handover Date Compromises Service Move
Cause: Uncertainty of Handover Date, 
Effect: Planning for commissioning period and service moves 
compromised.
Impact: Commissioning period and service moves affected by 
external factors, i.e. junior doctors handover, winter 
pressures, etc.

Oct 
2017

16
4 x 4

Not yet 
assessed

Construction programme closely monitored. IT views obtained re: 
readiness for handover. Continual engagement with wards/departments.  
Clear Messages provided by Redevelopment Team.

09/02/18

Redevelopme
nt Project
Risk

John 
Graham

John 
Graham

ID 4377: Project Board Risk
Uncertainty of Handover Date Causes Lack of Motivation
Cause: Uncertainty of Handover Date, 
Effect: Lack of motivation of organisation.
Impact:: Planning for commissioning and service moves is 
compromised.

Oct 
2017

16
4 x 4

Not yet
assessed

Clear messages provided and strong leadership demonstrated, particularly 
at Executive Team level.

09/02/18

Key: <8 = Low risk (green) 8 - 14 = Moderate risk (amber) 15+ = High risk (red)
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Risk management: Are we mitigating risks effectively? Report owner: Lisa GrantWhat are the biggest risks (15+) on Risk Registers?

* reported on the last board report 
Key: <8 = Low risk (green) 8 - 14 = Moderate risk (amber) 15+ = High risk (red)

Risk Source Exec Lead Risk Owner Risk
Date 

added
Risk * 
rating

Target risk Main Controls
Review 

Date

Link to a 
strategic 
objective

John 
Graham

Paul 
Bradshaw

ID4318:Corporate – Finance
Delivery of Financial Recovery Plan as set out in September 2017
Cause : FRP approved in September 2017 assumes best case that 
Phase 1, KPMG and Four Eyes schemes deliver improvement in 
2017/18. Risk is non delivery
Effect : non delivery may lead to failure to deliver forecast £14.4m 
deficit
Impact FRP assumes Phase 1 savings of £3.7m, KPMG scheme 
savings of £3.5m, Four Eyes scheme savings of c. £2.0m

Oct 2017
16

(4x4)

4 
Extended

to 31 
March 
2018 

from 31 
December

2017

• Plan in place
• FIP Board meets weekly
• Turnaround Director appointment being progressed
• KPMG support business case being progressed
• Monitoring via FPC

17/02/18

Risk 
identified 
through
Audit

Lisa Grant John Foley

ID3965: Unscheduled Care – Urinary Tract
Patient outcomes could be compromised due to cold ischemic 
times for Renal Transplant
Cause: lack of access to flexible elective and emergency theatre 
space
Effect: potential for increased Cold Ischaemic Times (CIT)
Impact: may impact on the Units ability to meet the 8 week 
Standard Shared National Donor Kidney Scheme which potentially 
could impact on the outcomes for some patients

July 16 
escalated
October 

2017

16
4x4
(12)

4 
by

31 January 
2018

• Transplant surgeons to contact the Anaesthetist on call at 
7.30am-8.30am and 8pm to confirm if there is a transplant 
going on ahead and estimated time of arrival of the kidney (s) 
into the trust 

• Prioritisation of patients will happen via verbal communication 
between surgeons and Anaesthetist around clinical priority of 
patients needing to use the emergency theatre 

• Educational sessions commenced in September for all staff 
around the effects on transplants outcomes when patients have 
extended cold Ischaemic times.  Sessions to continue to run 3x 
per year

• Meeting with the Women's held in December, some lists to be 
moved there from April to assist in freeing capacity at the Royal 
site that will help with the CIT. - conversation still ongoing  

• RCA for every breach of 15 hours and  managing action plans -
to be completed jointly with Anaesthetics and presented to 
divisional governance for assurance

15/02/18

Link to a 
strategic
objective

Jim Anson Jim Anson

ID2655 – Liverpool Clinical Laboratories – Cellular Sciences
Turnaround times
Cause: Failure to provide histopathology results against agreed 
turnaround timescales owing to staffing levels within 
histopathology.
Effect: deviations from patients clinical pathway as results not 
available.
Impact: patients safety could be compromised if severe delays are 
experienced, collective delays and impact on patient safety could 
damage the reputation of being a quality service

Sept 
2008
Risk 

Escalated 
July 2017

16
4x4
(12)

4
31 March 

2018

Cancer Alliance has assisted the laboratory with process mapping in 
April 2017 and a number of quick fixes implemented in specimen 
reception and cut up.
RC Path Consulting carried out a review of the service in July.
All additional technical posts (7 in total) across a range of grades 
have been recruited to and staff are either in post or due to start in 
the laboratory in September. 
1.6 wte Consultants commence in September (Breast, Gynae, 
Cytology).
Further adverts to go out in September for Consultant posts, 
received no response from previous adverts.
Appointment of a Clinical Director for Cellular Pathology – out to 
advert with head hunters.
Programme Manager role out to advert.
Tender for additional items of equipment required i.e. cassette 
printers and slide writers.
Utilisation of vacated university space in the Duncan Building.
Laboratory tracking and digital pathology systems being reviewed 
and business case developed.
Divisional Risk  4274  Unscheduled Care links to this risk and has a 
risk rating of 15

18/02/18
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Risk management: Are we mitigating risks effectively? Report owner: Lisa GrantWhat are the biggest risks (15+) on Risk Registers?

* reported on the last board report 
Key: <8 = Low risk (green) 8 - 14 = Moderate risk (amber) 15+ = High risk (red)

Risk Source Exec Lead Risk Owner Risk
Date 

added
Risk * 
rating

Target risk Main Controls
Review 

Date

Risk
Assessment

Peter 
Williams

David 
Simcox

ID4226: Unscheduled Care – Haematology
Non-Malignant Haematology Service - Model of Care & Staffing
Cause: 1) Citywide reconfiguration of Haematology services with 
migration of Haemato-Oncology to CCC. 2)Retirement of AUHT 
Consultant Haematologist (non-malignant haematology)July 2017 
with no contingency to provide specialist non-malignant 
haematology input to AUHT, 3) Aintree part of Citywide 
Transforming Cancer Care and Merge of Haem-Oncology Services 
projected to July 2018. 4) Current RLBUHT medical workforce 
at/beyond capacity with inability to recruit to locum Consultant 
post (multiple vacancies regionally/nationally). 5) Lack of middle-
grade cover (current middle-grade trainees LTFT).
Effect: Loss of AUHT Clinical Haematology capacity (vacancy for 
consultant in haemostasis/thrombosis) with inability to review 
non-malignant (H&T) patients.  Projected AUHT Haem-Oncology 
/CCC migration will result in loss of any AUHT appointed 
Haematologists, and risk to whole system. Lack of clinical resource 
within existing RLBUHT service.
Impact: Potential influx of all H&T activity (projected 8+ new 
patients/week) to RLH from AUHT. Potential addition of whole 
AUHT clinical haematology portfolio to service post-
AUHT/RLBUHT merger with lack of staffing putting existing service 
provision at risk. Business and clinical risk from lack of capacity to 
review patients in timely manner as clinically indicated.

July 2017
16 
4x4

6 
Extended 

to 28
February 

2018
from

31 
December

2017

• Ongoing work with Liverpool CCG and AUHT to develop model 
of care - RLBUHT clinician leading

• Attempt to appoint Locum Consultant to help support service -
unable to recruit.

• Locum SpR post - unable to recruit previously. Planned to re 
advertise for 6/12 locum. Possibility of more potential 
applicants

• Workforce review as part of citywide model of care being 
undertaken - move to build senior non-medical workforce 
capacity, and migrate patients to non-medical follow-up if 
appropriate.

05/02/18

Linked to 
Strategic
Objective

Lisa Grant Jo Henshaw

ID3855:  Schedule Care – Digestive Diseases - Endoscopy
Patient safety compromise due to outpatient demands being 
greater than capacity for clinical appointments for endoscopy
Cause - Lack of physical capacity within the Endoscopy 
Department to meet increasing demand
Effect - Failure to undertake procedures in a timely fashion or 
failure to meet targets
Impact - Risk to patients with delayed diagnostic
Failure to meet diagnostic target
Potential loss of income through loss of JAG accreditation
Loss of reputation
Potential failure of 2 week rule cancer target

March 
2016

16
4 x 4 
(12)

12 
by 31 

January 
2018 

• Prioritising 2 week rule, then urgent, then routine
• Sourcing additional staff through approved business case
• Sourcing contracted services through tender – tender  

applications now  closed . 
• Control measures impacting on waiting times for surveillance 

patients
• Clinical validation underway to ensure that no harm is caused 

through waiting for a routine diagnostic. 
• In – sourcing tender ready to be awarded, but informed that a 

summary of proposal has to be presented to the Executive 
Group – completed and approved (Sept 17).

• Insourcing commenced November
• Met with NHSI  & NHSE revised action plan and trajectory 

submitted incorporating CCG assumptions 

08/02/18

Redevelopm
ent Project
Risk

John 
Graham

John 
Graham

ID 4374: Project Board Risk
Primary/Social care unable to ensure sufficient support and care 
packages for the Ready for Discharge Patients
Cause: Primary/Social care unable to ensure sufficient support 
and care packages for the Ready for Discharge Patients. 
Effect: Delay in discharge of patients
Impact: Patients remain in inpatient beds.

Oct 2017 15
Not yet 

assessed

Ongoing discussion with Primary and Social Care, regarding model 
and funding.  Plans for an alternative location in which to treat 
these patients being sought. 

09/02/18
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Report owner: Lisa GrantRisk management: Are we mitigating risks effectively? What are the biggest risks (15+) on Risk Registers?

Risk Source Exec Lead Risk Owner Risk Date added
Risk * 
rating

Target Risk Main Controls Review Date

Redevelopm
ent Project 
Risk

John Graham
John 
Graham

ID2829:  Project Board Risk                            
Inability to re-provide CSSD service      
Cause: CSSD not included in the original PFI.  The Hospital cannot 
function without a sterilisation and decontamination service, 
although it does not have to be an on site provision.
Effect: Uncertainty for staff which may de-stablise the  
department if the workforce seek employment elsewhere.  The 
closer to decommissioning of the current hospital reduces the 
choices of options for re-provision.  Equipment has not been 
replaced as original plan was to have a new department by 2017.
Impact:  Inability to grant vacant possession  (f the CSSD services 
stays in its current location).  Increase in double running costs (as 
the original plan assumed the CSSD would be resolved ahead of 
the commissioning of the new hospital).  Inability to function as a 
hospital without sterilisation and decontamination service.  

These effects become more acute the closer to commissioning of 
the new hospital.
Potentially delays phase 2 & 3.
Assess operational management of suppliers.

Dec 2012
12 
3x4       
(16)

12

• Staff are briefed in regular face to face meeting with the 
CEO and Director of Operations. Equipment maintenance 
has increased and it continues to be monitored. 
Department business continuity plans in place – tested and 
assessed as robust plans. Options appraisal has been 
discussed at board level.  Preferred option for partnership 
with another public body is being progressed. 
Conversations are progressing well.  Decision being 
pursued by the Director of Finance.

• Monthly review of risk alongside delays in construction of 
the new hospital. Risk reviewed at the Transformation  
Committee. Synopsis produced to NHSi. NHSi have given 
approval for the Trust to proceed with the proposal for a 
scheme in collaboration with the City Council.  The capital 
resource limit implications will impact on 2018/19 financial 
year and will need to be resolved at that time.

• The council has appointed a Design team for the facility on 
a site in Edge Lane and the Trust is working with this team 
to develop the final scope of specification. The council has 
provided indicative lease costs. A Business Case was 
approved at the August 2018 Trust Board. Currently 
working with LCC and their contractor, Willmott Dixon to 
complete a facility by the end of 2018. This will delay 
Phase 2 and 3 of new hospital works. Update Oct 17: 
Enabling works started on site. 

• January 2018 update: In December 2017 the Trust entered 
into a contract with Liverpool City Council for the 
construction of a new CSSD at Broadgreen.  The contractor 
is on site with handover expected in December 2018.  
Service transfer is expected in February 2019.

09/02/18

Risk 
Identified 
through 
External 
Assessment, 
Visit or 
Review

Lisa Grant John Foley

ID4269 Unscheduled Care – Urinary Tract
Network connectivity - E16
Cause: Transfer of staff to NHS Trust from private sector 
contractor; Fresenius at St Helens (Whiston, Warrington and 
Halton dialysis  units.
Effect: Network connectivity unavailable on desk top computers 
and regular loss of connectivity when using portable devices 
policies 
Impact: Staff have limited access to trust communication, policies 
intranet .patients records, datix and other trust systems.

Aug 17
9

3 x 3 
(15)

0 by 
February 

2018
• Portable devices being used at each site 31/01/2018

Key: <8 = Low risk (green) 8 - 14 = Moderate risk (amber) 15+ = High risk (red)

Risks downgraded or closed
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Report owner: Lisa GrantRisk management: Are we mitigating risks effectively?

Key: <8 = Low risk (green) 8 - 14 = Moderate risk (amber) 15+ = High risk (red)

Risks downgraded or closed

Are there any areas requiring Board Attention?

Escalated by Item
Comment ID

Lisa Grant To highlight concerns of a moderate risk which has 

the potential to impact of deliver of safe care

ID4393: Corporate Department – IT

Availability and use of IT Hardware to deliver safe patient care

Cause: Potential that the number of IT hardware mobile devices may drop below the number of devices required to deliver 

safe and effective care within ward areas

Effect: devices not available when clinical care is being delivered at the bedside

Impact: delays due to lack of access to clinical information and systems

Mitigation: IT track and trace devices and return to their base unit, temporary replacements to cover lost or damaged 

devices, red flag process to highlight safety concerns and utilisation of non wifi devices where possible

Risk Source Exec Lead Risk Owner Risk Date added
Risk * 
rating

Target Risk Main Controls
Review Date

Analysis of 
incidents, 
complaints 
and claims

Lisa Grant Jo Henshaw

ID4204: Scheduled Care – Ophthalmology
Patient safety risk of loss of vision following delay in the removal 
of radioactive plaque used for ocular tumours
Cause: Complex nature of brachytherapy treatment for ocular 
tumours requires work with Clatterbridge on radiation dose and 
removal of radioactive plaque with anaesthetic support within a 
set time window after insertion. Sometimes this is required out of 
hours and anaesthetic support is not always available in a timely 
fashion. 
Effect: Risk of plaque being left in the eye longer than permitted 
by IRMER (CQC) regulations 
Impact: Overexposure to ionising radiation, poor outcome, 
serious incidents, CQC inspection. One further incident of this 
nature will result in the closure of the ocular oncology service by 
the CQC. 

June 2017
12

4 x 3
(16)

3 
1 

December 
2017

• 90% of case demonstrate plaque removal on a day list
• Where out of hours list are used, the department has 

robust plans with Anaesthetics to ensure this occurs
01/02/18

Risk 
Assessment

Lisa Grant Jo Henshaw

ID4292 – Scheduled Care - Cardiovascular
Delayed MUSE server upgrade
Cause - delay by IT of approximately 5 years to upgrade MUSE 
which is a server based system for every patients ECG who has 
attended the Trust. Without which ECG's cannot be viewed on 
ICE.
Effect - Very old system currently in place that has now has no 
maintenance contract. The existing system requires manual entry 
of patient details into an ECG machine and results are not 
available in ICE until a further manual process is carried out in 
another system (CVIS). The upgrade to MUSE would no longer 
require manual patient demographic entry and the availability of 
the ECG in ICE would be automatic and instantaneous. This 
upgrade would also allow the removal of paper ECG's.
Impact - the unavailability of ECG's would put patients at serious 
clinical risk both historical ECG's to monitor changes as well as 
current ECG's. 

Septembe
r 2017

9
3x3
(15)

0 
Extended 

to 31 
January 

2018
from 31 

December 
2017

• Muse system upgrade has been completed and a training 
plan is to be put in place to ensure 100% compliance from 
all users

• Training commenced 

Risk reassessed for severity of harm

30/01/2018
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SEVERITY INDEX LIKELIHOOD INDEX*
5 Death(s) caused by an event; ≥£5m loss; May result in Special 

Administration or Suspension of CQC Registration; Hospital 

closure; Total loss of public confidence

An event which impacts on a large number of patients.

Totally unacceptable level of quality of service. 

Ongoing unsafe staffing levels 

5 Very Likely Almost certain to happen – many recent/previous 

occurrences

Over 80 % chance of occurring

4 Severe permanent harm caused by an event; £3m - £5m loss; 

Prolonged adverse publicity; Prolonged disruption to one or 

more Divisions; Extended service closure

Non-compliance with national standards with significant risk to 

patients.

Multiple complaints

Unsafe staffing > 5 days 

4 Somewhat 

Likely

More likely to occur than not.  Has occurred 

previously

50 – 80 % chance of occurring

3 Moderate harm – medical treatment required up to 1 year; 

£100k – £3m loss; Temporary disruption to one or more 

Divisions; Service closure

Event impacting small number of patients.

Repeated failure to meet internal standards

3 Possible More likely not to occur, but happened previously.  

20 – 50% chance of occurring

2 Minor harm – first aid treatment required up to 1 month; £50k -

£100K loss; or Temporary service restriction

Single failure to meet internal standards

Low staffing level reducing service quality 

2 Unlikely Unlikely to occur, but has in the past. mall chance 

now.

5 – 20% chance of occurring

1 No harm; 0 - £50K loss; or No disruption – service continues 

without impact

1 Extremely 

Unlikely

Rarely occurs

<5% chance of occurring

*Use of relative frequency can be helpful in quantifying risk, but a judgment may be needed in circumstances where relative frequency measurement is 

not appropriate or limited by data.

Grading Matrix – Feb 2017 Risk Management Policy
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Clinical Audit

% Statutory audits on track 80% 82%

# locally agreed mandatory audits N/A 141

# on programme following SUIs N/A 35

# on programme following Complaints N/A 4

# on programme following mortality alerts (internal/external) N/A 0

Findings & impact: # audit returns with red RAG for quality assurance N/A 6

Mortality review

% of peer reviews taken place in appropriate time frame 90% 0%

# of action plans reviewed by MAPS 0 0

Evidence Based Medicine Adherence

# NICE guidelines considered applicable to the Trust N/A 828

# NICE guidance RAG rated Green 0 717

YTD 

target

YTD 

actual

Month 

v. R3m

Item

Clinical Audit Clinical Audit Programme
The following data is based on the 2017/18 clinical audit programme and is as at 3rd January 2018.

82% of statutory audits (National Clinical Audit and Patient Outcome Programme (NCAPOP) and Quality Accounts 
(QA)) are on track on the 2017/18 audit programme. 

There are 171 Trust priority (local) audits currently active on the 2017/18 clinical audit programme with a further 12 
scheduled.

Thirty five audits are on the Trust priority (local) programme with a Serious Incident (SI) driver. A number of SI audits 
now take place on a monthly basis. 

There are four audits with complaint as a driver one of which is a reaudit; none with a mortality alert driver.

Outcome and Findings

The following narrative includes audit outcomes from the 27 audit returns reported following review by the 
Associate Medical Director for Clinical Audit (AMDCA).

Audits with Red assurance

AC04601 National Ophthalmology Database Audit (NOD)

The audit is intended to quality assure NHS cataract surgical services for patients whose vision is adversely affected 
by cataract to the point where they seek surgical intervention. This will be achieved through assessing key indicators 
of cataract surgical quality within the frames of data completeness and access by centre and deprivation. Should 
performance fall short of what can reasonably be expected by NHS patients this will be highlighted.

The two primary indicators of surgical quality assessed are: 

1. Posterior capsular rupture (PCR): a break in the posterior capsule of the lens can be a complication of cataract 
surgery. It allows vitreous (a transparent substance with the consistency of uncooked egg-white which occupies the 
space inside the eye behind the lens) to move forward into the anterior chamber of the eye. PCR is the most 
powerful, and only potentially modifiable, predictor of visual harm from surgery.

Effectiveness & Culture: Are we treating people in the right way? Report owner: Peter Williams
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Item Comment

2. Posterior capsular rupture (PCR): a break in the posterior capsule of the lens can be a complication of cataract 
surgery. It allows vitreous (a transparent substance with the consistency of uncooked egg-white which occupies the 
space inside the eye behind the lens) to move forward into the anterior chamber of the eye. PCR is the most powerful, 
and only potentially modifiable, predictor of visual harm from surgery.

The report refers to the NICE draft guidance Cataracts in adults: Management this has since been published reference 
NG77.

Red assurance has been reported for this audit, as the Trust did not submit data for the time period included in the 
report due to a number of IT issues, it should be noted that approx. 30 other Trusts did not submit. Data has not been 
submitted for the subsequent year and therefore will not be included in the 2018 report either. However it is expected 
that issue will be resolved and data will be submitted during 2018 for inclusion in the 2019 report.

It should also be noted that Post-operative refractive data collection requires support from High Street Optometrists as 
patients undergoing routine surgery and with no comorbidity are discharged to the care of their high street 
optometrists for refraction. The Clinical Director has liaised with the local optometry community and it has been agreed 
that High Street Optometrists will enter post-operative refractive data via a secure portal from January 2018.

Action: A paper highlighting none submission has been submitted to both the Clinical Audit Group (CAG) and Clinical 
and Cost Effectiveness Sub Committee (CCE). An action plan has been developed to ensure data is submitted during 
2018 (AC04308) full implementation of the action plan is expected to take place by the end of March 2018.

AC03671 Consultant Sign-off in the Emergency Department CEM (Royal College of Emergency Medicine)

‘The purpose of the audit is to monitor documented care against the standards published in June 2016. The audit is 
designed to drive clinical practice forward by helping clinicians examine the work they do day-to-day and benchmark 
against their peers but also recognise excellence. There is much good practice occurring and it is believed that this audit 
is an important component in sharing this and ensuring patient safety.’

Four key standards were assessed within this audit, the trust did not achieve any of the standards the following 
summary has been provided; “The audit shows an average rate of consultant review of 14% across the 4 standards. This 
remains well short of the 3 developmental and 1 fundamental aim of 100%. 81% of the 180 departments contributing 
did however report that they felt the standards have an effect on clinical management and 79% an effect on admission 
or discharge decisions. The standards are valued but the ability to deliver and demonstrate them remains a challenge. 
The current problems encountered by EDs and the state of consultant staffing and recruitment are likely significant 
impediments to higher performance. There may also be a significant challenge for departments to evidence senior 
reviews. Significant numbers of departments reported some difficulty collecting data for the audit Clinical IT systems 
may not capture all care providers for a patient and consultants may be unable to document their reviews during 
pressured, crowded shifts. Despite some increase, only 4% of departments described their data collection as “fully 
automated”. The further findings of the report have demonstrated the extent to which departments are able to 
ameliorate the risk. The seniority of doctors with whom cases are discussed and the rate of subsequent case note 
review. Despite the challenges in achieving consultant review, the results for ST4 and above show the majority of 
patients benefit from at least middle grade expertise. When including these staff, the average review rate was 43%.”

Action: No action plan has been submitted it is felt by the clinical lead that the targets are unrealistic with the number 
of consultants cover. Gaps have been identified and work is on-going with work force planning. The AMDCA has 
requested the clinical lead attend the Clinical and Cost Effectiveness Sub Committee to provide an overview, date is 
awaited.

AC03499 An audit of prescribing of Dental cone beam computed tomography (CBCT) examinations for third molar 
assessments

The aim of this audit was to improve understanding of prescribing habits and reduce the number of unnecessary 
exposures, with the standard that all (100% of CBCT examinations for routine third molar assessments will conform to 
guidance developed by Department of Maxillofacial Radiology.

45% of exposures confirmed to guidance.

Action: No action plan has been received, although it has been requested

Statutory Clinical Audits 

AC04601 National Ophthalmology Database Audit (NOD), Assurance: Red
Refer to information above

Effectiveness & Culture: Are we treating people in the right way? Report owner: Peter Williams
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Item Comment

AC03671 Consultant Sign-off in the Emergency Department CEM (Royal College of Emergency Medicine), Assurance: 
Red

Refer to information above

AC02989 National Heart Failure Audit (NHFA), Assurance: Amber

National Heart Failure Audit provides information on heart failure treatment across the UK, including patient profiles, 
length of hospital admission, interventions, medication and outcomes.

Areas identified as lower than the national average are:

Received discharge planning – a third hospital based Heart Failure (HF) Specialist nurse has been recruited and it is 
hoped this will improve this standard.
Referral to cardiac rehabilitation ( HF specialist nurse (SN)) - The figures generally are low and partly reflects the fact 
that some hospitals don’t offer it to HF patients (we do) and the point at which people are referred (we tend to refer 
once inpatients have been reviewed by the HFSN’s as an outpatient).

Action: An action plan has been received and is fully implemented.

AC03659 National Diabetes Footcare Audit (NDFA), Assurance: Amber

The NDFA looks at the following key areas, using NICE guidance NG19 – Diabetic foot problems: prevention and 
management:

Structures: are the nationally recommended care structures in place for the management of diabetic foot disease?
Processes: does the treatment of active diabetic foot disease comply with nationally recommended guidance?
Outcomes: are the outcomes of diabetic foot disease optimised?

The following key findings were provided:
Key findings;
• 12 (3.6%) of the ulcer episodes were self-presented to the specialist foot care service. (RLBUHT 1 
(1.5%) (Nationally 29.9%)
• 14 (4.2%) of ulcer episodes were seen within 2 days of initial presentation to another health 
professional (RLBUHT 2 (3.0%).   (Nationally 13.4%)
• 20 (6.0%) of ulcer episodes were not seen for 2 or more months (RLBUHT 1 (1.5%).  (Nationally 
8.6%)
• 222 (67.1%) had a 12 week outcome recorded. (Nationally 92%)
• 91 (27.5%) of cases, patients were reported as alive and ulcer-free at 12 weeks. (Nationally 44.8%)
• 127 (38.4%) cases were reported to have persistent ulceration at 12 weeks. (Nationally 44.9%)
• 195 (60.7%) had a 24 week outcome recorded (Nationally 88.0%)
• 127 (39.6%) were reported alive and ulcer-free at 24 weeks (Nationally 58.3)
• 54 (16.8%) were reported to have persistent ulceration at 24 weeks (Nationally 23.2%)

Action: An action plan has been developed that focuses on improvement in data collection.

AC03669 Moderate & Acute Severe Asthma (formerly Adult Asthma) CEM, Assurance: Amber
This is the third cycle of this audit; the second cycle (AC02131) took place in 2012 and demonstrated red assurance.

None of the standards were achieved within RLBUHT

Action: The Clinical Lead has been invited to present at CCE, a full action plan has been received that includes the 
introduction of an electronic patient pathway for all patients who attend with acute asthma, this document will 
hyperlink to national guidelines, drug dose calculators and discharged advice. Plans are also in place to refer all patients 
who attend ED with asthma to the asthma team for planning of appropriate specialist follow up.

AC04314 Serious Hazards of Transfusion (SHOT) National haemovigilance scheme, Assurance: Green
‘SHOT is the United Kingdom’s independent, professionally-led haemovigilance scheme. Since 1996 SHOT has been 
collecting and analysing anonymised information on adverse events and reactions in blood transfusion from all 
healthcare organisations that are involved in the transfusion of blood and blood components in the United 
Kingdom. Where risks and problems are identified, SHOT produces recommendations to improve patient safety. The 
recommendations are put into its annual report which is then circulated to all the relevant organisations including the 
four UK Blood Services, the Departments of Health in England, Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland and all the relevant 
professional bodies as well as circulating it to all of the reporting hospitals. As haemovigilance is an on-going exercise, 
SHOT can also monitor the effect of the implementation of its recommendations.

Effectiveness & Culture: Are we treating people in the right way? Report owner: Peter Williams
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Item Comment

SHOT and the MHRA are working closely together to improve and facilitate haemovigilance reporting. Phases 1 and 2 
have now been completed and reporters have been surveyed for their opinions on the changes and this will be 
repeated in six months’ time i.e. January 2018.’
This is the first year that it has been included on the Quality Account list for Clinical Audit and therefore submission and 
review of the report is deemed mandatory and details must be included in the Trusts Quality Account publication.

The key recommendations were:
A checklist must be used at the patient’s side as a final administration check prior to transfusion as standard of care.

Formal checklist being built into new Trust transfusion pathway – aim to roll out by end of year.
Patients should be formally assessed for the risk of transfusion-associated circulatory overload (TACO) whenever 
possible …

TACO checklist/assessment built into new Transfusion pathway.

Action: Key actions from the report have been incorporated into the Transfusion teams forward plan which has been 
submitted to the patient Safety Sub Committee and will be monitored there.

AC03028 Patient Related Outcome Measures (PROMs) Hernia, Assurance: Green

Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs) assess the quality of care delivered to NHS patients from the patient 
perspective. Currently covering four clinical procedures, PROMs calculate the health gains after surgical treatment using 
pre- and post-operative surveys.

PROMs measure a patient’s health status or health-related quality of life at a single point in time, and are collected 
through short, self-completed questionnaires. This health status information is collected before and after a 
procedure and provides an indication of the outcomes or quality of care delivered to NHS patients.
The DoH target is for 80% participation from patients for the 1st questionnaire, the trust achieved 58.3%.
The table below demonstrate that patients experiencing an improved outcomes is in line with the national outcome.

Action: NHS England wrote to all trusts in England on 3rd October 2017 and advised that the mandatory varicose vein 
surgery and groin-hernia surgery national PROM collections ended on 1 October 2017. The rationale is given as 

“Groin hernia surgery is offered mainly to reduce the risk of requiring emergency surgery, rather than to relieve 
symptoms, which are often relatively minimal. This, along with the fact that there is no condition-specific PROM for 
groin-hernia surgery, means that the existing PROM has limited value.”

AC02990 National Joint Registry (NJR), Assurance: Green

‘The National Joint Registry’s maturing dataset, now in its 14th year of reporting, offers the orthopaedic community the 
invaluable ability to see important determinants that influence the outcome and longevity of joint replacement 
procedures. Monitoring and reporting high quality, robust data suitable for decision-making remains the registry’s core 
mission and I’m delighted to present this year’s findings.’

The clinical lead provided the following: 

There were few issues that were highlighted in the Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen NJR Trust report for 2016.  
We did 305 primary hip replacement, 311 primary knee replacements, 36 Hip revisions, 37 knee revisions, 80 shoulder 
replacements, 33 revision shoulders, 14 Elbow replacements. 12 revision elbow replacements and 1 ankle replacement. 
The likability was excellent. Consent rate for Broadgreen was good but needs improving for the Royal. As most joint 
replacements are done at Broadgreen, the overall consent rate was still acceptable. 
Action: A comprehensive set of actions have been received, however no implementation dates were included so 
currently CET are unable to monitor these actions. It should be noted that the following years audit return AC03661 for 
the 2017 annual report demonstrated red assurance, details of this will be included in the next Trust Board report, an 
action plan has been received but as per AC02990 no implementation dates included.

Effectiveness & Culture: Are we treating people in the right way? Report owner: Peter Williams
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  Improved Unchanged Worsened 

  RLBUHT England RLBUHT England RLBUHT England 

EQ-5D Index 59.5% (25) 50.9% 19.0%(8) 31.8% 21.4% (9) 17.4% 

EQ VAS 38.5% (15) 37.6% 33.3% (13) 20.0% 28.2% (11) 42.4% 
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Item Comment

Clinical Audits instigated due to SI 
Twenty SI audits were reported, it must be noted that a number of these were delayed reporting through the clinical 
audit reporting structure. However they had been reported via the divisional and speciality effectiveness packs and to 
Patient Safety Subcommittee via a quarterly overview report.

AC04689 and AC04565 WHO Checklist and Team Brief Dental, Assurance: Green

AC04680 WHO checklist Audit - Interventional Theatre, Assurance Green

AC04710 and AC04720 WHO Safer Surgery Checklist & Team Brief Audit - Theatres & Anaesthetics, Assurance: Amber

Clinical Audits instigated due to a complaint
None reported

Clinical Audits instigated due to NPSA alert this month
None reported

Clinical Audits instigated due to a Mortality Alert 
None reported

Clinical Audits of NICE Guidance

AC04325 Re-Audit CG74 surgical site infection – antibiotic prohphylaxis, Assurance: Amber

NICE published National Guidance in 2008 (CG74 “prevention and treatment of surgical site infection”) to reduce 
morbidity post operatively. One specific area targeted was antibiotic prophylaxis administered by the anaesthetist prior 
to surgery. The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen NHS Trust issued Local guidance in 2009 (‘antimicrobial prescribing 
guidelines’) to help promote adherence to this. These guidelines have been updated in 2012.

This is the 5th audit, with the last audit AC03722 also demonstrating amber assurance.

Of the four standards audited three were achieved with the failure being 92 % of patients, rising to 98% if formulary had 
been updated with new guidelines and there hadn't been an Augmentin shortage within pharmacy as opposed to the 
standard of 100% of patients are given the correct antibiotic prophylaxis (drug/dose/timing/MRSA status).

Action: Changes to the formulary have been confirmed with Microbiology and online formulary amended to reflect this. 
A reaudit AC04725 is scheduled for May 2018.

AC04376 NICE Quality Standard (QS) 49 Surgical site infection. Audit of compliance in Vascular Surgery, Assurance: 
Green
This is the third audit cycle and uses QS49, the previous audit AC03473 provided amber assurance.
All standards were achieved with the exception of one patient not being able to recall being advised not to remove hair 
prior to surgery.

Action: No action is required; however a reaudit has been suggested for November 2019.

AC04601 National Ophthalmology Database Audit (NOD), Assurance: Red

This audit refers to NG77 Cataracts in adults: Management, refer to detail included under statutory audit heading.

AC02989 National Heart Failure Audit (NHFA), Assurance: Amber

This audit refers to QS103 Acute heart failure, CG108 Chronic heart failure in adults: management, QS9 Chronic heart 
failure in adults and CG187 Acute heart failure: diagnosis and management, refer to detail included under statutory 
audit heading.

AC03659 National Diabetes Footcare Audit (NDFA), Assurance: Amber

This audit refers to NG19 Diabetic foot problems: prevention and management refer to detail included under statutory 
audit heading.

AC03669 Moderate & Acute Severe Asthma (formerly Adult Asthma) CEM Assurance: Amber

This audit refers to CG160 Feverish illness in children; refer to detail included under statutory audit heading.

Effectiveness & Culture: Are we treating people in the right way? Report owner: Peter Williams

EF
FE

C
TI

V
EN

ES
S

C
lin

ic
al

 E
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s

Page 93 of 218



Item Comment

AC04314 Serious Hazards of Transfusion (SHOT) National haemovigilance scheme, Assurance: Green
This audit refers to NG24 blood transfusions and QS138 Blood Transfusion; refer to detail included under statutory audit 
heading.

Other Items of Note

NICE

Position as at end December 2017

828 – Potentially applicable
717 – Green (Assurance and evidence that standards are met and/or are being worked towards via a robust action 
plan. Communication with CET in place).
107 - Amber (Action plan is not detailed/communication with CET is limited).
2 – Red (baseline assessment deadline breached/no action plan is developed/no communication with CET made).
0 – Yellow (barriers to implementation exist outside the Trust’s direct control)
2 – White (newly published, deadline for base assessment not breached).
(please note some guidance may be cross speciality and therefore number of guidance listed below may not correspond 
with total figures).

NICE guidance with red status this month:-
NG38 Fractures (non complex): assessment and management – Response date breached, no level of compliance 
assurance supplied
QS5 Chronic Kidney Disease – response date breached following updated guidance in July 2017. Escalated to care group.

Advancing Quality (AQ)

Benchmarking and performance is monitored using the Composite Process Score (CPS). 

Data period = January – September 2017

• The Trust is currently achieving the CPS target for 6 of the 8 applicable focus areas. 
• NHS Arden & GEM Clinical Support Unit have now taken over data processing for AQ from the previous provider 

Clarity.
• Following successful first meeting, Pneumonia nurse is to visit counterpart team at the Warrington Trust in January 

18 and peer data review is planned to take place in March 18.
• Issues with clinical coding of September 17 discharges (due to sickness and vacancies) were discussed. This has 

affected data collection for the AQ programme. AQ Chair wanted further assurance that this would not occur again 
and has contacted Head of Coding.

• Preliminary mortality data for AKI patients has shown a decrease from 18% to 8%.
• ARLD team hopeful of securing a band 3 nurse to work on delivering the Alcohol CQUIN in A&E. This person should 

be able to help identify decompensated liver disease patients.
• Performance against foot inspection measure has increased. The foot inspection documentation is now included on 

the PENS Waterlow form and it is hoped that this will continue to improve.
• North-west mortality rate for pneumonia patients was reported to have reduced 15% to 9% between January and 

August 2017.

Effectiveness & Culture: Are we treating people in the right way? Report owner: Peter Williams
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Pathway        Regional 

Position 

YTD Composite Process Score  No of measures achieving target 

AKI 2 83.3% 5 of 6 

ARLD 2 78.1% 6 of 8 

COPD 3 58.2% 2 of 5 

Diabetes 3 68.8% 8 of 10 

Hip & Knee 7 90.3% 4 of 6 

Hip Fracture 4 72.1% 3 of 8 

Pneumonia 5 89.5% 3 of 5 

Sepsis 1 89.9% 5 of 8 
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Quality Performance Overview - Trust - May 2015 (Month 2 2015-2016)

Indicator
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Inpatient Experience Surveys >=91%  qt

Friends and Family Test CQUIN >=75 - -  qt

Outpatient Surveys - CRT (% +ve 

performance)
>=90%  qt

Complaints (Response rates level 1) >=98%  nt

Complaints (Response rates level 2) >=90%  nt

Staff attitude complaints - -  t

Ward Quality Indicators (NQI audit data) >=90%  t

Ward Quality Assessment Tool (Inpatient 

Assessment) - overall % green / amber 

green

>=90%  t

Service Quality Assessment - % rated 

green or amber green
>=90%  t

Health Records Performance (casenote 

availability)
>=100%  t

Stroke Care >=80% 112 126 88.8%  nmq

Advancing Quality CQUIN - AMI >=95.00%  q

Advancing Quality CQUIN - Heart Failure >=77.60%  q

Advancing Quality CQUIN - Hip & Knee >=95.00%  q

Advancing Quality CQUIN - Pneumonia >=84.90% 77 120 64.16%  q

Advancing Quality CQUIN - Stroke >=89.81% No Data  q

Preferred Place of Care assessed 

[HSPCT patients]
>=95%  q

Personalised care plan for patients 

known to HSPCT
>=98% 

Patients known to HSPCT letter faxed to 

GP on discharge 
>=80% 

Preferred Place of Care achieved 

[HSPCT patients]
>=70% q

CODG records pain managed >=80%  q

CODG other symptom managed >=80%  q

Assessment using MUST >=95%  q

Plan of care in place for at risk patients >=100%  q

At risk patients refer to dietician >=100%  q

Patient Experience and Quality of Care

Patient Experience Measures

Quality of Care

Advancing Quality CQUIN (For 2013/14 now based on Appropriate Care Score)

Where to die when the time comes

Currently under review

Keeping Nourished getting better (Clinical Gerontology / Gastroenterology)

Indicator
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Emergency admissions dementia 

screening (inpatients aged 75+, LOS 

72hrs+)

>=90%  q

Dementia diagnostics for at risk patients >=90%  q

Referral for specialist diagnosis 

following positive diagnostic 

assessment

>=90%  q

Full monthly submission of audit data >=100% - - 

 % of patients receiving harm free care >=90%  t

Catheter Associated Urinary Tract 

Infections CQUIN [30% reduction]
<=2%  q

VTE risk assessments >=95% 7,834 8,884 88.1%  nq

QualityTrustOverview >=98%  q

Grade 2 or above PU per 1,000 bed days <=0.34  q

Grade 3/4 PU per 1,000 bed days <=0.00  q

Unhealed pressure ulcers on discharge 

reported to GP
>=100%  q

Adult patients risk assessed (NQI audit 

based on 50% sample of patients)
>=98%  q

Care plan in place if at risk (NQI audit 

based on 50% sample of patients)
>=98%  q

Falls per 1,000 bed days <=3.33 453 68,273 6.64  q

Smoking status recorded (inpatients) >=90% 13,009 18,005 72.2%  q

Ratio of MRSA Screens: Elective 

Admissions
>=1.0:1 8,489 1,020 8.3:1  n

MRSA zero tolerance (in month) <=0 - - 0  nmq

MRSA - Rate per 1,000 bed days YTD <=0.005 2  t

Clostridium difficile toxin - Number YTD <=33 - - 24  nmq

Clostridium difficile - Rate per 1,000 bed 

days YTD
24  t

Falls

Brief Interventions

Infection Control (change arrow on avg cases per month)

Venous Thrombo-embolism (VTE) CQUIN

Hospital Acquired Pressure Ulcers CQUIN

Dementia CQUIN Quarter to Date. Data to Nov-17

Patient Safety

Patient Safety Thermometer CQUIN

Indicator

T
a

rg
e

t

N
u

m
e

ra
to

r

D
e

n
o

m
in

a
to

r

In
d

ic
a

to
r

C
h

a
n

g
e

M
o

n
it

o
re

d

MSSA - Number YTD - - 15  t

E. coli - Number YTD - - 48  qt

VRE - Number YTD - - 10  qt

ESBL - Number YTD - - 0  qt

Mortality (HSMR) <=100  nt

Mortality (All diagnoses) <=100  nt

Discharge summary <= 24 hours 

(inpatient ward areas)
>=95% 1,849 2,633 70.2%  q

Discharge summary <= 24 hours 

(assess/obs areas)
>=80% 265 314 84.3%  q

Outpatient correspondance plan, pilot 

and deployment
- q

Outpatient correspondence <= 2 weeks 

(Gastroenterology, Cardiology and 

Diabetes)

TBC q

Nursing Sickness Absence (rolling 12 

month)
<=5%  qt

Nursing Turnover (rolling 12 month)  qt

Mandatory Training (composite, attended 

& booked)
>=100% 86.7%  t

Number of vacancies WTE - -  t

Vacancies recruited waiting to start - -  t

Average time from offer to start date - -  t

Recruitment in Nursing [for recruitment currently]

Clinical Indicators

Productivity

Communication CQUIN

People

Workforce
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Corporate Performance Overview - Month 2 2015/16 (April 2015 to May 2015)

Indicator
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Cancelled Operations <=0.6%  n

Cancelled Operations 28d breach <=0%  n

RTT: admitted >=90% 795 1,063 74.7%  n

RTT: non-admitted >=95% 4,236 5,184 81.7%  n

RTT: active pathways >=92% 23,310 27,814 83.8%  n

Diagnostic waiting times <=1%  t

A&E Waiting Times ( RLBUHT) >=95%  nm

Unplanned reattendances < 7 days <=5%  n

Left without being seen <=5%  n

Time to initial assessment 95th 

percentile

<=15 

mins
- -  n

Time to treatment decision median
<=60 

mins
- -  n

Delayed transfers of care <=2.1%  n

Two Week Waits (urgent suspect. ca) >=93% 2,381 2,465 96.5%  nm

Two Week Waits (breast symptoms) >=93% 367 376 97.6%  nm

31 day diag to treat (first treatment) >=96% 259 267 97.0%  nm

31 day second / subsequent (surg) >=94% 50 52 96.1%  nm

31 day second / subseq. (anti ca drug) >=98% 2 2 100.0%  nm

62 day ref to treat (urgent GP) >=85% 87 101 86.1%  nm

62 day ref to treat (upgrades) >=85% 53 54 98.1%  nm

62 day ref to treat (screening) >=90% 44 50 87.0%  nm

RACPC waiting time (Quarter to date) >=98%  q

MINAP audit data completeness >=90%  q

Stroke care >=80% 112 126 88.8%  nm

Data Quality on Ethnic Group >=85% 96.5%  n

PATIENT EXPERIENCE & QUALITY

Cancelled Operations

18 Week Maximum Wait

Emergency Access / Services

National Service Frameworks & other national indicators

Indicator
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MRSA zero tolerance (in month) <=0 - - 0  nmq

MRSA bacteraemia - Rate per 1,000 bed 

days YTD
<=0.005 2  t

Ratio MRSA Screens: Elective 

Admissions
>=1.0:1 8,489 1,020 8.3:1  n

Clostridium difficile YTD <=33 - - 24  nmq

Clostridium difficile - Rate per 1,000 bed 

days YTD
24  t

VTE Assessment >=95% 7,834 8,884 88.1%  q

Activity against plan t

Daycase Rate >=80% 29,030 34,936 83.0%  t

Day Case Basket Procedures % >=80%  t

Av. Length of Spell (Elective) <=4.9 31,661 5,906 5.4  t

Av. Length of Spell (Non Elective) <=5.0 158,766 26,586 6.0  t

New to Follow Up Ratio <=2.23 309,665 144,177 2.15  t

DNA Rates <=10% 46,811 500,653 9.4%  t

Emergency Readmissions following non 

elective
5,200 35,652 14.6%  t

Emergency Readmissions rate following 

elect/dc
1,116 52,557 2.2%  t

Theatre Utilisation >=79%  t

PATIENT SAFETY

Infection Control

VTE

PRODUCTIVITY

Activity Performance

Activity reported in Section 8

Productivity Indicators

Indicator
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Sickness Absence (Rolling 12 mth)% <=4.5% 107,397 2,275,537 4.8%  t

Sickness Absence (In month)% <=5% 7,826 188,204 4.2%  t

Turnover (monthly)  t

EBITDA achieved >=5 nm

EBITDA margin >=3 nm

Return on assets >=3 nm

I&E surplus margin >=3 nm

Liquidity Ratio >=3 nm

CQUIN Indicators q

Compliance Framework (Governance 

Risk Rating)
- -  m

Financial Risk Rating - -  m

PEOPLE

See Section 10

RISK RATING/PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK

Workforce

FINANCIAL HEALTH

Finance

Financial Health information 

included in Section 9

Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUINs)

On Plan Improved  National n

Below Plan No Change  Monitored m

Failing Deteriorated  CQUIN/CCG q

Not Applicable Not Applicable  Trust t

KEY

Indicator Change Monitored

For details on how individual indicators are RAG rated, please see the 

Glossary in Appendix B
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FOCUSED REVIEW: REFERENCE INFORMATION 

Purpose of paper Key facts 
☒ For assurance 

 
Sponsor: Dr Peter Williams – Medical Director 

☒ To note 
☐ For decision (insert funding source if financial 

implications).  
Service line affected: Trust 

  Date of board meeting to discuss this paper:  30/01/2018 

  Security marking:  None 
  Please note, this report could be subject to FoI disclosure 

   
 

Has this paper considered the following?                                                                                                           [Please tick all that apply] 

Key stakeholders: Our compliance with: 
☒ Patients ☒ Regulators (CCG/TDA, Monitor, CQC etc) 

☒ Staff ☒ Legal frameworks (HSE, NHS Constitution etc.) 

☐ Other (Students, Community, other HCPs) ☒ Equality, diversity & human rights 
 

Have we considered opportunity & risk in the following areas?                       

☒ Clinical ☐ Financial  ☒ Reputation  
   

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

1. STRATEGIC CONTEXT                    

 

This paper forms the regular report to update and provide assurance to Trust Board with regards to Mortality 

and Patient Safety 

 

2. QUESTION(S) ADDRESSED IN THIS REPORT                                        

 

• Trust mortality performance benchmarked against national standardised mortality indices 

•  Developments and performance in key patient safety areas – Venous Thrombolembolism and Sepsis  

•  Trust response to National Patient Safety  Agency CAS Alerts  

 

 

3. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION                                   

 

The board is asked to receive this report and note that: 

• Crude Mortality, HSMR and SHMI lie within the expected range for the reporting period 

• Implementation of e-sepsis has been accompanied by a reduction in excess deaths from sepsis 

• VTE performance has improved with further developments to be delivered in February 

• The Trust has an effective process to respond to NPSA CAS alerts with a recent MIAA assessment 

reporting significant assurance  
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MAIN REPORT:  

1 MORTALITY 

1.1 Crude Mortality 

(The number of in-hospital deaths divided by the total number of discharges over the period) 

 

 
 

1.2 HSMR 

(Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio - The HSMR is a ratio of the observed number of in-hospital 

deaths in a inpatient spell to the expected number of in-hospital deaths multiplied by 100) 
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1.3 SHMI 

(Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator - SHMI is a hospital-level indicator which reports 30 day 

mortality at trust level across the acute care trusts in England.) 

 

All Trust Mortality Indices remain within the expected range with no mortality alerts having been 

received in the reporting period 

2. SEPSIS MORTALITY 

 

Sepsis remains the diagnostic group associated with the largest variance between expected and 

observed deaths predicted by SHMI with an increase in numbers of sepsis deaths in Q2 

 
There are several  drivers for this increase in deaths from sepsis: 

 

1. National coding rules changed in Q2 17/18.  Following these changes sepsis has become the 

primary coding group displacing all other co-diagnosis to the secondary diagnosis position. This 
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has meant that cases that would have previously received an alternative primary diagnosis are 

now coded as sepsis. 

2. Increased awareness of sepsis on the Emergency Floor (a core component of the Trust’s Sepsis 

Strategy) has increased the proportion of very unwell patients (appropriately) receiving initial 

emergency treatment for sepsis, before a later revision of their diagnosis. As SHMI is calculated 

on admission diagnosis coding, this has resulted in an increased proportion of the sickest 

patients attending the trust being coded as having died of sepsis. 

3. Changes in the clinical criteria for the diagnosis of sepsis have lowered the threshold at which a 

patient with an infective proces is  deemed clinically to have sepsis. 

 

Despite the increase in number of sepsis deaths, the risk of a patient dying from sepsis as measured 

by SHMI and HSMR has decreased in Q2 17/18 : 

 

 
This reduction coincided with the introduction of e-sepsis alerts which has significantly improved the 

treatment of sepsis in the Emergency Department with: 

• Improved compliance against the ‘sepsis 6’ through the Advancing Quality work programme 

resulting in an average 85% of patients receiving  appropriate care 

• 80% of sepsis patients receiving antibiotics within an hour of admission to the ED 

 

The next stage of e-sepsis implementation will be the development of an automated e-sepsis mobile 

alert to ensure patients on inpatient wards receive the same rapid treatment as those diagnosed 

with sepsis in the ED 

 

3. VTE PERFORMANCE  

 

The November 2017 Patient Safety Subcommittee noted with concern that the Trust’s VTE risk 

assesment performance had deteriorated and was signifcantly below the 95% national standard 

(year to November 2017 84%). A two stage recovery plan was agreed and presented to December’s 

Quality Governance Committee: 
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Stage 1 – End December 2017 – Achieve 90% VTE assessment compliance  

This has been delivered by : 

• Engagement with the MAU clinical team and implementation of a RCA process for VTE 

• Letter from the Medical Director to all medical staff regarding the clinical and medico-legal 

importance of VTE risk assessment 

• Weekly ward level performance reporting and performance review by Deputy MD 

 

Stage 2 – End February 2018 – Achieve compliance with the national 95% gold standard 

This will be delivered by adopting a trustwide standardised electronic medical clerking process. 

Which includes a ‘forcing function’  for medical VTE assessment at the point of admission 

 

Performance has improved in line with the recovery plan, as illustrated below, with the VTE forcing 

function fully developed, tested and due for roll out in February  2018. 
 

       Weekly VTE Performance (Last 12 Weeks) 

 

     Week 

Commencing 

VTE
 

Assessments
 

Total 

Admissions
 

% VTE 

Assessed 

 30/10/2017 1,856 2,260 82.1% 

 06/11/2017 1,939 2,254 84.0% 

 13/11/2017 2,024 2,347 82.2% 

 20/11/2017 2,017 2,329 86.6% 

 27/11/2017 2,023 2,332 86.7% 

 04/12/2017 2,018 2,300 87.7% 

 11/12/2017 2,031 2,297 88.4% 

 18/12/2017 1,961 2,154 91.0% 

 25/12/2017 1,300 1,481 87.8% 

 01/01/2018 1,696 1,885 90.0% 

 08/01/2018 2,035 2,258 90.1% 
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4. PATIENT SAFETY ALERTS – CENTRAL ALERTING SYSTEM ALERTS 

 

Patient Safety Alerts (PSA) are issued by NHS Improvement via the Central Alerting System (CAS), a 

web-based cascading system for issuing alerts, important public health messages and other safety 

critical information and guidance to the NHS. 

 

The Trust has a responsibility to effectively undertake actions mandated by NHS Improvement within 

the timeframe specified in each PSA.  

 

To date in 2017/18 the Trust has received 6 alerts , 4 of which have been relevant to the Trust’s 
clinical activities. All have been completed, or are on target to be completed, within the mandated 
timeframe. 

 

Reference Alert Title Issue Date Response Deadline 

NHS/PSA/RE/2017/002 

Resources to support the 
safety of girls and women 
treated with valproate 06-Apr-17 Completed in full 

06-Oct-
17 

NHS/PSA/W/2017/003 

Risk of death and severe harm 
from ingestion of 
superabsorbent granules 05-Jul-17 Action Not Required 

16-Aug-
17 

NHS/PSA/RE/2017/004 

Resources to support safe 
transition from the Luer 
connector to NRFit™ for 
intrathecal and epidural 
procedures 11-Aug-17 Completed in full 

11-Dec-
17 

NHS/PSA/W/2017/005 

Risk of severe harm and death 
from infusing TPN too rapidly 
in babies 27-Sep-17 Action Not Required 

08-Nov-
17 

NHS/PSA/D/2017/006 

Confirming removal or 
flushing of lines and cannulae 
after procedures 09-Nov-17 

Action Required: 
Ongoing 

09-Aug-
18 

NHS/PSA/W/2018/001 

Risk of death and severe harm 
from failure to obtain and 
continue flow from oxygen 
cylinders 09-Jan-18 

Action Required: 
Ongoing 

20-Feb-
18 
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The processes used within the Trust to respond to CAS alerts has recently been the subject of an 

independant audit by Mersey Internal Audit Authority.  

 

This MIAA audit has demonstrated “Significant Assurance” and concluded that “The Royal Liverpool 

and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust operate a robust system which has built on 

Department of Health (DoH) requirements and developed additional systems and processes to 

protect patient safety and reduce risk » 

  

 

5. CONCLUSION & RECOMMENDATION                                       

 

The Trust Board is asked to note the contents of this report and 

• Receive assurance that Trust mortality remains within the expected range 

• Note improvement in Sepsis mortality in Q2 2017/18 with the introduction of e-sepsis. With 

further enhancements to e-sepsis alerts to be delivered in 2018/19 

• Note an improvement in VTE risk assessment performance in December 2017, with a plan to 

achieve the national gold standard of 95% compliance by end February 2018. 

• Note progress against the NHS Improvement CAS alerts in 2017/18 

• Receive assurance from the recent MIAA audit of the Trust’s response to CAS Patient safety 

alerts 
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FOCUSED REVIEW: REFERENCE INFORMATION 

Purpose of paper Key facts 
☐ For assurance 

 
Sponsor: Peter Williams Medical Director 

x To note 
☐ For decision (insert funding source if financial 

implications).  
Service line affected: Corporate 

  Date of board meeting to discuss this paper:  30/01/2018 

  Security marking:  None 
  Please note, this report could be subject to FOI disclosure 

Other forums where this has/will be discussed:  Junior Doctor Forum and LNC 
(Please see appendix for details of full audit trail of this paper) 

Has this paper considered the following?                                                                                                           [Please tick all that apply] 

Key stakeholders: Our compliance with: 
☐ Patients x Regulators (CCG/TDA, Monitor, CQC etc) 

x Staff x Legal frameworks (HSE, NHS Constitution etc.) 

☐ Other (Students, Community, other HCPs) x Equality, diversity & human rights 
 

Have we considered opportunity & risk in the following areas?                       

x Clinical x Financial  x Reputation  
State: Quality of postgraduate  
medical training 
Safe working hours of junior doctors 

State: Medical Education is one of the 
largest commissioned services and 
associated  Income is at risk if LDA 
requirements not met. This includes safe 
working hours as well as quality of 
medical education 
  

State: Employer and education provider  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

1. STRATEGIC CONTEXT                    

Contractual requirement of Junior Doctor New Contract (2016) to provide a quarterly report by the Guardian of Safe 

Working Hours to the Board. 

 

The Board, under the Terms and Conditions are responsible for providing these and an annual report by the Director of 

Medical Education to external bodies including HEENW, CQC, GMC and GDC 

 

Trust impact: 

To develop a world-class workforce, recognised for its skills and level of engagement and founded on a culture of 

achievement, education, training and development.  

 

2. QUESTION(S) ADDRESSED IN THIS REPORT                                        

The report highlights issues in relation to junior doctor’s hours and safe working. 

 

3. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION                                   

To note the content of the report 
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MAIN REPORT:  

QUARTERLY REPORT ON SAFE WORKING HOURS:  
DOCTORS AND DENTISTS IN TRAINING  
 
Introduction 
It is a contractual requirement of Junior Doctor New Contract (2016) for employers to provide a quarterly 
report by the Guardian of Safe Working Hours to the Board. The guardian is a senior appointment and the 
appointee should not hold any other role within the management structure of the employer.  
 
The guardian shall ensure that issues of compliance with safe working hours are addressed by the doctor 
and/or employer, as appropriate. The guardian shall provide assurance to the Board that doctors' working 
hours are safe. 
 
The Trust developed its own in house electronic exception reporting tool which is managed via medical HR 
and Education 
  
High level data 
Number of doctors / dentists in training (total):    456 
Number of doctors / dentists in training on 2016 TCS (total):  237 
Amount of time available in job plan for guardian to do the role:  1 PA / 4 hours per week 
Admin support provided to the guardian (if any):   Via Medical HR 
Amount of job-planned time for educational supervisors:  Currently included in Core SPAs or as 
additional to contract i.e. unpaid but noted 
 
Exception reports (with regard to working hours) 

 
Currently only 237 of 456 juniors have transitioned to the new contract terms and only these doctors may 
raise exception reports 
 

Exception reports by department 

Specialty No. exceptions 
carried over from 
last report 

No. exceptions 
raised since 1st 
Sept 2017 

No. exceptions 
closed 

No. exceptions 
outstanding* 

Scheduled Care 0 148 98 50 

Unscheduled 
Care 

0 59 35 24 

Education 0 4 0 4 

Total 0 211 133 78 

 

 

Exception reports by grade 

Specialty No. exceptions 
carried over from 
last report 

No. exceptions 
raised 

No. exceptions 
closed 

No. exceptions 
outstanding* 
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F1 0 186 114 72 

F2 0 6 1 5 

CT 1/2 0 6 5 1 

ST3+ 0 13 13 0 

Total 0 211 133 78 

 

Exception reports by rota 

Specialty No. exceptions 
carried over 
from last report 

No. exceptions 
raised 

No. exceptions 
closed 

No. exceptions 
outstanding* 

F1 Surgery 0 98 62 36 

F1 Medicine 0 88 52 36 

F2/CT Surgery 0 6 1 5 

F2/CT Medicine 0 6 5 1 

ST Ophthalmology 0 10 10 0 

ST3+ Haematology  3 3 0 

Total 0 211 133  78 

 

Exception reports (response time) 

 Addressed within 
48 hours  

Addressed within 
7 days 

Addressed in 
longer than 7 
days 

Still open* 

Scheduled Care 15 9 27 50 

Unscheduled 
Care 

10 14 54 24 

Education 0 0 4 4 

Total 25 23 85 78 

• Educational and Clinical Supervisors are being prompted to close these reports- the reports are being 

addressed but have not yet closed  

 

a) Work schedule reviews 

 

Work Schedule reviews may occur as a result of a serious breach of hours regulations or multiple similar 

breaches of hours regulations.  

 

The work schedule review carried out to date was in relation to the ST Ophthalmology Rota, which has 

resulted in a work schedule change.  

 

Work schedule reviews by grade 

F1 0 

F2 0 

CT1-2 / ST1-2 0 

ST3+ 1 
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Work schedule reviews by department 

General  medicine 0 

General surgery 0 

Ophthalmology 1 

 

 

b) Fines 

 

No fines have been levied in the last quarter 

Guardian Report 

With regular meetings with junior doctors (particularly the F1s) and with educational supervisors the 

confidence with the exception reporting system has grown. 

The number of exception reports has declined, as is to be expected, from August 2017 but continues at a 

steady rate as documented in the report. With the ability to review all exception reports a number of notable 

‘successes’ have been possible: 

• The F1 numbers in vascular surgery were increased allowing the F1s to comply with the terms and 

conditions of their contract 

• A restructuring of the ophthalmology ST timetables ensuring it reflected accurately their working 

hours so allowing them to work within their work schedule 

• A restructuring of the Orthopaedic F1 working day with the support of advanced nurse practitioners 

allowing the F1s to comply with the terms and conditions of their contract 

• Identifying the departments most likely to benefit from the new physician associate posts and to 

support their applications for these new roles 

• A review of the F1 teaching programme to allow support for emergency cover on the wards without 

jeopardizing the educational content of the F1 posts 

• The identification of areas where junior doctors regularly work over the terms and conditions of their 

contract and highlighting this to the departments in a timely fashion so they can look at changes to the junior 

doctor work schedules 

• An overall significant improvement since August 2017 in the F1 feeling of support from the trust and, 

in particular, from their educational supervisors and the consultant body as a whole. 

There are still issues to be addressed. Anecdotally, some F1s are not exception reporting and some raise 

concerns about their educational supervisors not supporting the process. When specific examples are asked 

for they are hard to come by but if individual departments/consultants are mentioned they are contacted 

directly. 
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FOCUSED REVIEW: REFERENCE INFORMATION 

Purpose of paper Key facts 
☐ For assurance 

 
Sponsor: [N/A] 

X To note 
☐ For decision (insert funding source if financial 

implications).  
Service line affected: Corporate 

  Date of board meeting to discuss this paper:  30th January 2018 
  Security marking:  None 
  Please note, this report could be subject to FoI disclosure 

Other forums where this has/will be discussed:  [DH R&D/NIHR CRN CC/CRN NWC Partnership Group/CRN NWC 
Executive/CRN NWC Host Executive/CRN NWC R&D Managers/CRN 

NWC Partner Trust] 
(Please see appendix for details of full audit trail of this paper) 

Has this paper considered the following?                                                                                                           [Please tick all that apply] 

Key stakeholders: Our compliance with: 
X Patients X Regulators (CCG/TDA, Monitor, CQC etc) 

X Staff X Legal frameworks (HSE, NHS Constitution etc.) 

X Other (Students, Community, other HCPs) X Equality, diversity & human rights 
 

Have we considered opportunity & risk in the following areas?                       

X Clinical X Financial  X Reputation  
State: Opportunity Patients to participate in research 

with improved care delivery. Risk of  
under performing: Reduced opportunity for patients to 
participate in studies across CRN NWC 

State: Opportunity: Brings resources to  

the region to support delivery of research. 

Risk: NIHR CRN’s receive funding in part  
based on Activity i.e. Patients recruited  
into research studies. 

State: Opportunity: Attract investment to the 

CRN NWC region from research funders & life 

Sciences sectors. Risk: Not achieving targets, 
NWC may be seen as a less attractive place to 
undertake NIHR Research. Funders may consider 
this when Placing studies in the NWC region. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

1. STRATEGIC CONTEXT                     

RLBUHT is the Host Trust for the regional National Institute of Health Research Clinical Research Network (NIHR CRN 

NWC). The CRN NWC is required to report its activity against 7 nationally agreed High Level Objectives (HLO’s – Table 1). 

 

 

2. QUESTION (S) ADDRESSED IN THIS REPORT                                       

This report provides a brief Trust Board summary of the networks performance in Quarter 3 of 2017/18 in meeting the 
nationally agreed High Level Objectives for the region 1. CRN NWC has the following comments to supplement this report: 
 
HLO 1 = Patient recruitment shown is end of December 2017. To date overall recruitment is 32,606, CRN NWC have met the 
local patient recruitment targets set for 2017/18 and are on track to meet the ‘stretched’ targets set by NIHR CRN CC/DH. 
 
HLO 2A/B = Recruitment to time and target for CRN studies has improved due to considerable efforts by all stakeholders 
across the region. It is expected targets set for HLO 2A/B will be achieved by year-end.  

                                                           
1 The full performance report for CRN NWC for Q3 (October – December) is out of scope for this brief report but is attached for further 

information. Rank relates to the position of NWC in relation to the x15 LCRNs across England. LCRN funding from DH varies based on a 
number of parameters including (but not limited to) recruitment activity in previous years across all partners within a region. A full 
performance report is reported to the Host Trust Executive every 2 months and also to NIHR CRN CC/DH and can be provided to the 
Trust Board on request.  
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HLO 3 = of concern is the decline in commercial research delivery across CRN NWC. As per plans CRN NWC has now appointed 
a new senior clinical lead for industry who commenced the role in December 2017 (Dr Richard Fitzgerald – CRF Director 
RLBUHT). Dr Fitzgerald and other newly appointed CRN Senior Leads/Local Specialty Leads will work with the CRN and 
partners to establish and agree a strategy to halt this decline in commercial performance in the future.  
 
HLO 4&5 = this data relates to performance in efficiency of set up of studies and speed of recruiting the first patient into 
research. This data is an aggregation of performance overall, individual site performance varies across the region considerably. 
Where poor performance is noted CRN are working with partners to address this. Local CEO’s are sent organisation reports, 
sites specific activity data etc. The system to collate this data is relatively new and is currently being embedded in sites (Local 
Portfolio Management Systems/LPMS). In addition a new national system ‘CPMS (Central PMS) has highlighted some ‘data 
transfer’ issues between systems due to problems with ODS codes being incorrectly merged. CRN NWC are working with 
national and local teams to address these issues and improve performance and data quality in these HLO’s.  
 
HLO 6 = GP engagement with delivery of research is low across NWC with performance in the main taking place in the 
Lancashire part of the region. Three key studies which were open across numerous sites have ended. This may have inflated 
previous figures as these studies recruited one participant per study, per site. CRN are unlikely to meet the target for delivery 
of this HLO in 2017/18. Teams are working to address this; reasons for poor uptake of research are complex. CRN are advised 
this is mainly due to service pressures across primary care along with a reduction in the number of available studies to deliver.  
 
HLO 7 = Recruitment to Dementia research is unlikely to meet targets this year due to the end of the ‘Tonic study’ in 2016/17 
and a decline in the number of available studies across NWC, to date there are 915 participants recruited. CRN NWC are 
reviewing and refreshing their Dementia plans for 2017/18 in light of this challenge. The network have appointed a new SRG 
Lead for Ageing research Dr Asan Akpan and will link existing Dementia Clinical Leads to form a strategic group to agree how 
to improve Dementia research performance in particular across CRN NWC.  
 
 (Performance table included in Appendix 1) 

 

3. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION                                   

 

CRN NWC overall has improved recruitment numbers of patients into studies and also recruitment to time and target (HLO2). 

Achievement across a number of other HLO’s is a cause for concern. CRN NWC continues to work with partners/other 

stakeholders to improve in its overall performance in relation to delivery of research for the year 2017/18. The Board is asked 

to note this Q3 performance report for the CRN NWC2.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
2 NB: The recent funding announcement for LCRN’s for 2018/19 is attached in Appendix 2 – the Board are asked to note this. For the 

first time in 3 years this shows a rise in funding to CRN NWC of 5% (The maximum possible rise as funding fluctuations are capped at 

+/- 5%. This increase is due in part to an overall improvement in performance over recent years in NWC despite previous finance 

reductions, as well as some changes to the model to take account of social deprivation across regions.   
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Appendix 1 – Performance Table CRN NWC December 2017 (Data cut off for Q3 reports to DH is at month end December 2017 and so is not reflective of ‘actual’ current position) 

Objective Measure Target RAG Rank 

1 

Increase the number of participants recruited into NIHR CRN 

Portfolio studies Number of participants recruited in a reporting year into NIHR CRN Portfolio studies 

28,000 

(34,306) 32,387 6 

2 

Increase the proportion of studies in the NIHR CRN Portfolio 

delivering to recruitment target and time 

A. Proportion of commercial contract studies achieving or surpassing their recruitment target during their 

planned recruitment period, at confirmed Network sites 80% 78% 4 

B. Proportion of non-commercial studies achieving or surpassing their recruitment target during their 

planned recruitment period 80% 72% 15 

3 

Increase the number of commercial contract studies 

delivered through the NIHR CRN 

A. Number of new commercial contract studies entering the NIHR CRN Portfolio 170* 109 

 
B. Number of new commercial contract studies entering the NIHR CRN Portfolio as a percentage of the 

total commercial MHRA CTA approvals for Phase II–IV studies   

  

4 

Reduce the time taken for eligible studies to achieve set up in 

the NHS 

Proportion of eligible studies achieving NHS set up at all sites within 40 calendar days (from “Date Site 

Selected” to “Date Site Confirmed”) 80% 49% 

 

5 

Reduce the time taken to recruit first participant into NIHR 

CRN Portfolio studies 

A. Proportion of commercial contract studies achieving first participant recruited within 30 days at 

confirmed Network sites (from “Date Site Confirmed” to “Date First Participant Recruited”) 80% 35% 

 
B. Proportion of non-commercial contract studies achieving first participant recruited within 30 days at 

confirmed Network sites (from “Date Site Confirmed” to “Date First Participant Recruited ”) 80% 48% 

 

6 Increase NHS participation in NIHR CRN Portfolio Studies 

A. Proportion of NHS Trusts recruiting each year into NIHR CRN Portfolio studies 99% 96% 

 

B. Proportion of NHS Trusts recruiting each year into NIHR CRN Portfolio commercial contract studies 70% 82% 

 

C. Proportion of General Medical Practices recruiting each year into NIHR CRN Portfolio studies 45% 24% 

 

7 

Increase the number of participants recruited into Dementias 

and Neurodegeneration (DeNDRoN) studies on the NIHR CRN 

Portfolio 

Number of participants recruited into Dementias and Neurodegeneration (DeNDRoN) studies on the NIHR 

CRN Portfolio 3,630 915 9 

C
R

N
 N

W
C

 Q
3

Page 110 of 218



RLBUHT BOARD PACK

TITLE: National Institute of Health Research Clinical Research Network (CRN NWC) 
LCRN Performance Review Quarter 3 2017/18 
 

  
 

2 

AUTHOR: Jacqueline A Pirmohamed – Chief Operating Officer 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 – Funding allocations to LCRNs 2018/19 
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Clinical Research Network 

North West Coast 

Performance of CRN: NW 

Coast 
Jan 2018 
(Data cut 31/12/2017) 
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  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 

Performance Summary 

Objective Measure Target RAG Rank 

1 

Increase the number of participants recruited into NIHR CRN 

Portfolio studies Number of participants recruited in a reporting year into NIHR CRN Portfolio studies 

28,000 

(34,306) 32,387 6 

2 

Increase the proportion of studies in the NIHR CRN Portfolio 

delivering to recruitment target and time 

A. Proportion of commercial contract studies achieving or surpassing their recruitment target during their 

planned recruitment period, at confirmed Network sites 80% 78% 4 

B. Proportion of non-commercial studies achieving or surpassing their recruitment target during their 

planned recruitment period 80% 72% 15 

3 

Increase the number of commercial contract studies delivered 

through the NIHR CRN 

A. Number of new commercial contract studies entering the NIHR CRN Portfolio 170* 109 

B. Number of new commercial contract studies entering the NIHR CRN Portfolio as a percentage of the 

total commercial MHRA CTA approvals for Phase II–IV studies   

4 

Reduce the time taken for eligible studies to achieve set up in 

the NHS 

Proportion of eligible studies achieving NHS set up at all sites within 40 calendar days (from “Date Site 

Selected” to “Date Site Confirmed”) 80% 49% 

5 

Reduce the time taken to recruit first participant into NIHR CRN 

Portfolio studies 

A. Proportion of commercial contract studies achieving first participant recruited within 30 days at 

confirmed Network sites (from “Date Site Confirmed” to “Date First Participant Recruited”) 80% 35% 

B. Proportion of non-commercial contract studies achieving first participant recruited within 30 days at 

confirmed Network sites (from “Date Site Confirmed” to “Date First Participant Recruited ”) 80% 48% 

6 Increase NHS participation in NIHR CRN Portfolio Studies 

A. Proportion of NHS Trusts recruiting each year into NIHR CRN Portfolio studies 99% 96% 

B. Proportion of NHS Trusts recruiting each year into NIHR CRN Portfolio commercial contract studies 70% 82% 

C. Proportion of General Medical Practices recruiting each year into NIHR CRN Portfolio studies 40% 24% 

7 

Increase the number of participants recruited into Dementias 

and Neurodegeneration (DeNDRoN) studies on the NIHR CRN 

Portfolio 

Number of participants recruited into Dementias and Neurodegeneration (DeNDRoN) studies on the 

NIHR CRN Portfolio 3,630 915 10 
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  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 

HLO 1: Increase the number of participants 

recruited into NIHR CRN Portfolio studies C
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  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 
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  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 

HLO 1: Increase the number of participants 
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  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 

HLO 2: Increase the proportion of studies in the NIHR 

CRN Portfolio delivering to recruitment target and time 

(Commercial Closed) 

C
R

N
 N

W
C

 Q
3

Page 120 of 218



  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 

HLO 2: Increase the proportion of studies in the 

NIHR CRN Portfolio delivering to recruitment target 

and time (Non-Commercial Closed) 
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  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 

HLO 3: Increase the number of commercial contract 

studies delivered through the NIHR CRN C
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  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 

HLO 4: Reduce the time taken for eligible studies to 

achieve set up in the NHS 

(Data taken from LPMS) 
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  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 

HLO 5: Proportion of studies achieving first participant 

recruited within 30 days at confirmed Network sites (from 

“Date Site Confirmed” to “Date First Participant Recruited”) 

- Commercial 
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  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 

HLO 5: Proportion of studies achieving first participant 

recruited within 30 days at confirmed Network sites (from 

“Date Site Confirmed” to “Date First Participant Recruited”) 

– Non-Commercial 
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  Clinical Research Network (CRN)  North West Coast 

HLO 7: Increase the number of participants recruited 

into Dementias and Neurodegeneration (DeNDRoN) 

studies on the NIHR CRN Portfolio 
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2016-17 RL&BUHT Charitable Funds Annual Report & Financial 

Accounts  
 

COVER SHEET: REFERENCE INFORMATION 

Purpose of paper Key facts 
x For assurance 

 
Sponsor: John Graham, Deputy Chief Executive and Executive 
Director of Finance 

      To note 
X For decision Service line affected: Trust 
  Date of board meeting to discuss this paper:  30/01/2018 

  Security marking:  None 
  Please note, this report could be subject to FoI disclosure 

Other forums where this has/will be discussed:  Charitable Funds Committee 
(Please see appendix for details of full audit trail of this paper) 

Has this paper considered the following?                                                                                                           [Please tick all that apply] 

Key stakeholders: Our compliance with: 
x Patients x Regulators (PCT/SHA, Monitor, CQC etc) 

x Staff x Legal frameworks (HSE, NHS Constitution etc.) 

x Other (Students, Community, other HCPs)       Equality, diversity & human rights 
 

Have we considered opportunity & risk in the following areas?                       

x Clinical x Financial  x Reputation  
State: Charitable Support (financial) State: Statutory Financial Reporting  State: Accounts and Report published 

 by Charity Commission 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

1. STRATEGIC CONTEXT          

The audit of the Trust’s Charitable Funds Annual Report & Accounts for 2016-17 has been completed and has been 

reviewed with the Auditors by the Charitable Funds Committee on 18th January 2018. The Charitable Funds Committee  

has agreed the accounts and request that the Trust Board  approve and adopt the 2016-17 Charity Annual Report and 

Accounts.  

 

2. QUESTION(S) ADDRESSED IN THIS REPORT             

The following paragraphs provide a summary of the draft financial position of the Charity for 2016-17: 

 

Incoming resources to the Trust’s charitable funds totalled £1,541,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017, a rise of 

£77,000 on the previous twelve months total of £1,464,000. The small increase in income from last year is due to a rise 

of £95,000 in legacies, while donations fell by £19,000 to £609,000.  

 

Direct charitable expenditure for the year was £388,000, a fall of £3,006,000 on the 2015-16 spend total of £3,394,000. 

The significant drop in 2016-17 spend being due to 2015-16 figures including the future commitment to contribute over 

£2.5m of expenditure towards equipping the new Hospital development. Expenditure accounted for in 2016-17 

included contributions to NHS Capital of £239,000; Patients’ Welfare of £43,000; Research and Education grants of 

£41,000 and Staff welfare of £65,000. Support costs attributable to the grants of £38,000 brought the total grants figure 

to £426,000. A further £551,000 (including £26,000 support costs) was incurred in the costs of generating funds for the 

charity, comprising £466,000 spent on generating voluntary income; £82,000 on investment management costs and 

£3,000 in fundraising trading activities. Governance costs, the central running costs of the charity that are not 

attributable out as support costs, totalled £38,100. This included salary costs of £27,600; 2016-17 Audit fees of £5,000 

and establishment/other expenses of £5,500. This was an overall fall of £1,300 on last year’s governance costs of 

£39,400. The charity spend in 2016-17 was consequently £1,015,000 in total (£3,910,000 in 2015-16). 
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2016-17 RL&BUHT Charitable Funds Annual Report & Financial 

Accounts  
 

The total net assets of the Trust’s Charitable Funds as at 31st March 2017 were £6,620,000, a rise of £1,682,000 on the 

previous year’s balance of £4,938,000. Overall income received totalled £526,000 higher than the resources expended 

through charitable grants and administration, and together with a valuation rise in investments of £1,156,000 during 

the year resulted in the large rise in net assets of almost £1.7m. 

 The charity’s total net assets at 31st March 2017 comprised of:- 

Total fixed assets (Investment Portfolio)   £9,155,000  
Total current assets    £1,389,000 
Total current Liabilities    (£3,924,000)  
Total Net Assets    £6,620,000  

 

The 2016-17 Charitable Funds Annual Report and accounts are shown in Appendix A. The Audit report from Grant 

Thornton is also enclosed (Appendix B), as is a letter of representation (Appendix C). 

 

3. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION        

The Trust Board is asked to approve and adopt the 2016-17 Charity annual Report and Accounts. 
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ROYAL LIVERPOOL & BROADGREEN UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS NHST 

CHARITABLE FUNDS 
 

Registered Charity No 1047988 

 

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2016-17 
 

The accounts of the funds held on trust by the Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University  

Hospitals NHS Trust. 

 

FOREWORD 

 

These financial statements have been prepared by the Trustees in accordance with the Charities Act 

2011 and the Charities Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) (FRS 102) 2015.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

STATUTORY BACKGROUND 

 

The NHS Trust is the corporate trustee of the funds held on trust under paragraph 16c of Schedule 2 

of the NHS and Community Care Act 1990. 

 

 

 

 

MAIN PURPOSE OF THE FUNDS HELD ON TRUST 

 

The main purpose of the charitable funds held on trust is to apply income for any charitable purpose 

relating to the National Health Service wholly or mainly for the services provided by the Royal 

Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals (NHS) Trust 
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CHARITABLE FUNDS 
 

 

 

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEE’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
The Trustee is responsible for: 

 

• Keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 

the financial position of the Charity and enable it to ensure that the financial 

statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the SORP (FRS 102) and the 

provisions of the trust deed; 

 

• establishing and monitoring a system of internal control; and 

 

• establishing arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption. 

 

In preparing these financial statements, the Corporate Trustee is required to:  

 

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;  

• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;  

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  

• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and  

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the Charity will continue to operate.  

 

 

The Trustee confirms that it has met the responsibilities set out above and complied with the 

requirements for preparing the accounts. The financial statements set out on pages 24 to 31 

attached have been compiled from and are in accordance with the financial records 

maintained by the Trustee. 

 

The 2016/17 Annual Report & Accounts have been approved by the Trust Board, at a meeting 

held on 30th January 2018. 

 

By Order of the Trustee 

 

 

Signed : 

 

Chairman ……... ……………..………………… 

 

Dated ….../……/…… 

Financial Trustee ……………………………….. Dated ….../……/…… 
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CHARITABLE FUNDS 
 

 

TRUSTEE REPORT 
  

 
Introduction 

 

It is with pleasure that the Trust presents the twenty-first annual report for the Charitable 

Funds of the Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals (NHS) Trust. 

 

The Trust is the sole corporate trustee for all charitable funds registered under the name of the 

Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Funds, the main 

charity of the Trust. 

 

The main charity, is the charity that has been created with purposes wide enough for all other 

charities administered by its Trustee to be recorded as special trusts in an umbrella 

registration arrangement.  

 

This report and financial statements has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 

applicable law and SORP (FRS 102).  

 

Legal and Administrative Details 

 

In June 1995, the Charity Commission issued an Umbrella Charity Registration Number, 

under which all the individual charitable funds administered by the Trustee have been 

recorded as special trusts. The umbrella charitable fund is held upon trust for “any charitable 

purpose or purposes relating to the National Health Service”. Special trusts are funds (or 

property) held on separate trusts, on behalf of the charity, for any special purposes of that 

charity. These funds are referred to as restricted funds where the donor has imposed a 

restriction on how or where or when the Trustee can apply the funds. A schedule of the 

special trusts is appended (Appendix A).  

  

The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust is the Corporate 

Trustee of the Charitable Funds governed by the law applicable to Trusts, principally the 

Trustee Act 2000 and also the Charities Act 2011, the SORP (FRS 102) and the Trust Deed.  

 

The registered charity number of the Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals 

NHS Trust Charitable Funds is 1047988. The Registered address is: 

 

Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospital 

Prescot Street 

Liverpool L7 8XP 

 

The charity is administered by the Charitable Funds Committee, which consists of 

executive and non-executive directors of the Trust, on behalf of the Trust Board. The 

committee meets quarterly to set and monitor administrative policy and consider spending 

applications. Membership of the Charitable Funds committee is decided by the Trust Board as  
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vacancies arise. Executive members of the Trust Board are subject to recruitment by the 

Board whereas Non-Executive members are appointed by NHS Improvement. Members of 

the Trust Board and the Charitable Funds Committee are not individual trustees under Charity 

Law but act as agents on behalf of the Corporate Trustee. New Charitable Funds Committee 

members are provided with induction literature that includes the committee’s terms of 

reference; Trustee’s Annual report and Accounts; previous committee minutes and the 

Charity Commission booklet CC3, the Essential Trustee. The “charitable funds section” 

within the Trust’s finance department, is responsible to the committee for the day-to-day 

administration of all charitable matters. 

 

In 2016/17 the Charitable Funds Committee comprised of: 
 

Mr M Eastwood  

 

Mr J Graham 

 

 

Non-Executive Director (Committee Chair) 

 

Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director of 

Finance 

 

 

Mrs L Grant  

 

Chief Nurse 

 

 

Dr P S Williams  Medical Director   

 

 

The Trust’s charitable funds are held distinct from the exchequer funds of the Royal 

Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust. The charity’s bank accounts are 

held at: 

 

Natwest      and  Barclays Bank plc 

2nd Floor     48B/50 Lord Street 

280 Bishopsgate    Liverpool L2 1TD 

London EC2M 4RB 

 

The charitable funds investments are held by Bankers Trust, as nominee for the Trustee. The 

investments are managed on behalf of the charity by the following three investment 

managers: 

 

 

Rathbone Investment  Olim Limited     Cazenove Capital 

Management Ltd  Pollen House  12 Moorgate                                      

Port of Liverpool Building 10/12 Cork Street London EC2R 6DA 

Pier Head   London W1S 3NP  

Liverpool L3 1NW    

 

 

Legal advice is provided to the Trustee by: 

 

Hill Dickinson Solicitors 

Pearl Assurance House 

Derby Square 

Liverpool L2 9XL 
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The Trustee responsibilities, which include; the maintenance of financial records appropriate 

to the activities of the funds; the establishment and monitoring of a system of internal control; 

safeguarding the assets of the funds held on trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities; are subject to “internal audit” 

verification by; 

 

Mersey Internal Audit Agency 

Regatta Place 

Brunswick Business Park 

Summers Road 

Liverpool L3 4BL 

 

 

The appointed auditors are; 

 

John Farrar, Senior Statutory Auditor 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Royal Liver Building 

Liverpool L3 1PS 
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Objectives 
 

The Charity’s umbrella fund has NHS wide objectives as follows: 

 

The trustees shall hold the trust fund upon trust to apply the income, and at their 

discretion, so far as may be permissible, the capital, for any charitable purpose or 

purposes relating to the National Health Service. 

 

Within this overall governing framework provided by the umbrella, the charity has 111 

separately registered charitable funds with their own specific objectives, restricting the NHS 

criteria above to particular areas of activity and/or particular services, departments and 

Hospitals that are, primarily, under the management of the organisation (The latter rule 

provides some flexibility to allow individual charities to support activities outside the control 

of the Trust).  

 

The operation of such a large number of individual funds within a complex NHS organisation 

could potentially lead to divergent policies. However, the Charitable Funds Committee 

operates as a unifying force, working closely with delegated fundholders and senior managers 

to ensure that all funds are utilised for the benefit of the organisation as a whole and as part of 

the overall strategic direction of the Trust.  

 

The main aim of the charity is to improve the provision of high quality patient care, working 

with the Trust to develop services throughout the organisation, focusing on areas not covered 

or fully supported by exchequer funds. This will include the improvement of the Hospital 

environment for both patients and staff and supporting better facilities for the Trust. As a 

large acute teaching hospital, the Trust also has significant links with the local universities, 

particularly the University of Liverpool. Another important aim of the charity is therefore to 

provide financial aid to support and encourage our clinicians in new research projects, many 

of which are co-ordinated through the University of Liverpool. However, in the short to 

medium team, the Charity is very much focused on supporting the Hospital Trust in 

delivering the highest possible standards of treatment and care to our patients when the new 

Royal Hospital opens. 
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Annual Report and Accounts  
 

 

Incoming resources to the Trust’s charitable funds totalled £1,541,000 for the year ended 31 

March 2017, a rise of £77,000 on the previous twelve months total of £1,464,000. The 

increase in income from last year is due to a rise of £95,000 (donations fell by £18,000 from 

the previous year). 

 

Included within these figure are :- 

 

a) Corporate donations of £213,000 of which £212,000 was received through direct 

fundraising (including £176,500 for the New Royal Appeal; £11,000 Forget-Me-

Not (FMN) Cancer Appeal and £24,500 for the Foundation for the Prevention of 

Blindness fund). The largest corporate donations received included:  

 

i) £58,300 from Barclays in support of the New Royal appeal throughout 

2016/17 (both direct donations and the match funding of fundraising 

events). 

 

ii) £27,500 from Carillion in support of the New Royal appeal throughout 

2016/17. 

 

iii) £17,400 from Stella McCartney Ltd in support of both the New Royal 

Appeal and the FMN Cancer appeal. 

 

 

b) Donations from individuals of £396,000, including £345,600 through 

fundraising (£22,600 for the Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness fund; 

£21,400 for the FMN Cancer  Appeal fund; £269,700 for the RLUH New 

Build Appeal and a further £29,400 for sponsored events for other special 

purpose funds). The largest individual donations included: 

 

i) £15,000 donation given anonymously with £10,000 for the New Royal 

Appeal and £1,000 each to the A&E dept; Radiology; Acute Medical 

unit; Ward 8X patient’s welfare and Ward 8X staff welfare funds. 

 

ii) £10,000 donation from Mrs B Flood in memory of  Ronald Townsend 

for the benefit of the FMN Cancer appeal. 

 

iii) £5,000 donation from Mrs P Chesworth for the RLUH 

Gastroenterology fund. 

 

c) Trading income of £2,300 for the New Royal Appeal. 

 

The trust’s donated income policy, which prescribes how donations should be collected and 

recorded, is shown in Appendix B.  

 

Legacies from four bequests were received totalling £162,900. A further six legacies totalling 

£466,400 were also notified and accounted for in the year ended 31st March 2017, bringing 

the total legacies accounted for in 2016/17 to £629,300. The largest single bequests being: 
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i) £300,000 from the estate of Rosalind Dawn Kelly (deceased) for the purchase 

of gastroenterology/surgical equipment and also research into 

gastroenterology. 

 

ii) £140,200 was received from the estate of Valerie Burgess (deceased) for the 

benefit of the Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness Fund. 

 

iii) £115,000 was received from the estate of John Gerrard (deceased) for the 

benefit of the Bone Marrow Transplant Unit. 

 

The other seven legacies accounted for during 2016/17 amounted to £74,100. 

 

Investment income totalling £301,000 was earned during the year, a fall of just £300 on the 

previous year. Dividends from equity stocks and gilts provided £300,250, and £750 was 

earned from interest on cash balances held. 

 

Fundraising 

 

We raise money for the many charitable funds across the Trust. In 2016/17 our focus has 

continued to be on the new Royal appeal, which will raise £10m towards equipping the new 

Royal to be a world class hospital.  

 

Below are some of the highlights of the support we have received this year: 

 

Our first R Charity Ball held at Liverpool FC in September 2016 grossed over £53,000, 

raising a net £32,000 for the New Royal Appeal. 

 

A Sportman’s dinner held in February 2017 raised a net £29,000. 

 

Corporate fundraising has continued to grow this year with several fruitful partnerships 

developing. Barclays have been fantastic partners and have raised over £58,300 this year 

(£26,000 in 2015/16) and are continuing to fundraise for 2017/18. 

Carillion have also helped raise over £27,500 in 2016/17 (£15,000 in 2015/16) and continue 

to be strong partners. 

A corporate Golf Day held in July 2016 proved extremely popular, grossing over £33,000 and 

raising a net £21,500 for the New Royal Appeal.  

As always we are extremely grateful to the individuals and groups who fundraise for R 

Charity, and help to support. 

 

As well as focusing on the new R Appeal, the charity also continues to support fundraising 

for the Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness Fund research charity. In 2016/17 over 

£187,000 was raised for the Foundation, including £140,000 of legacies. 

 

Fundraising for the charity as a whole (excluding legacies and investment returns) raised 

£560,000, a rise of £95,600 on the previous twelve months figure of £464,400. The costs of 

operating the fundraising teams totalled £455,000, including staff costs of £329,400. In 

comparison, fundraising costs totalled £359,000 in 2015/16, including staff costs of 

£262,600. Although this equates to a rise in fundraising costs of £96,000, the additional 

income raised during the year resulted in net fundraising income being stable at £105,000. 

With fundraising appeals also accounting for legacies of £175,800 and dividend returns of 

£54,100, the total net return from fundraising activity totalled £335,000. 
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Resources Expended 

 

Direct charitable expenditure for the year was £388,000, a fall of £3,006,000 on 2015/16 

spend of £3,394,000. This significant fall in 2016/17 spend compared to 2015/16 is primarily 

a result of the £2.4m commitment in 2015/16 towards equipping the new Hospital 

development. Expenditure accounted for in 2016/17 included contributions to NHS Capital of 

£239,000; Patients’ Welfare and Amenity grants totalling £43,000; Research and Education 

grants totalling £41,000 and grants of £65,000 were provided for Staff Welfare and 

Amenities. 

 

Support costs attributable to the grants of £38,000 brought the total grants figure to £426,000. 

A further £551,000 (including £26,000 support costs) was incurred in the costs of generating 

funds for the charity, comprising £466,000 spent on generating voluntary income; £82,000 on 

investment management costs and £3,000 in fundraising trading activities. 

 

Major grants awarded during 2016/17 included:- 

 

a) £70,000 from the Ophthalmology General Purpose fund to purchase an OCT 

machine for the St Paul’s community clinic in Garston. 

  

b) £65,000 from the Anterior Segment fund & Ophthalmology Gen. Purposes to 

support a Clinical Research fellow and a trainee Ophthalmologist, to study 

genetics in glaucoma patients to gain a better understanding of the disease. 

 

c) £59,000 from the Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness fund to provide 

continued support to the Eye Research Bank (Phase 3), for a further twelve 

months. 

 

As part of a strategy to reduce the level of existing charity reserves, an initial contribution of 

£2.69m (including £260,000 of actual spend on dialysis machines) was accounted for in 

2015/16 to support the equipping of the New Royal Liverpool University Hospital.  

As per the agreement made in 2015/16 by the Charitable Funds Committee, future dividend 

streams were also to be applied, and this has led to an additional £180,000 being committed 

in 2016/17.  

 

Governance costs, the central running costs of the charity that are not attributable out as 

support costs totalled £38,100. This included salary costs of £27,600; 2016/17 Audit fees of 

£5,000 and establishment/other expenses of £5,500. This was an overall fall of £1,300 on last 

year’s governance costs of £39,400, due to a drop in the Audit fee. The overall charity spend 

in 2016/17 was consequently £1,015,000 in total (£3,910,000 in 2015/16). 

 

 

Gains/(losses) on Investment Assets 

 

At the start of the 2016/17 financial year (1st April 2016), the market value of the investment 

portfolio stood at £8,710,000. Investment holdings totalling £571,000 were acquired and 

investments with a carrying value of £1,282,000 were disposed of during the year, including 

all the holdings managed by Cazenove. The investment performance of the portfolio was 

strong in 2016/17, with an investment rise of £1,156,000, following a fall of £356,000 in the 
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previous year. This increase represents a 13.27% rise in the value of the portfolio, with a 

closing balance as at 31st March 2017 of £9,155,000.  

 

Realised profits/(losses) on sales; unrealised market revaluations and earned income on 

investments were apportioned to individual funds on a quarterly basis throughout the year.  

 

The investment guidelines operated by the Charitable Funds Investment Committee are 

shown in Appendix C. 

 

Individual fund investment as part of the Investment Pool is reassessed each quarter end. The 

aim is to maximise the potential for investment returns taking into account the short-term 

spending patterns of each fund. The Charitable Funds Investment Committee measure the 

performance of the investment managers on a total return basis against certain benchmarks, 

including one comprising the UK FTSE-ALL SHARE (80%) and FTSE UK GILTS (20%).  

 

Below is a graphical representation highlighting the rise and fall of the portfolio over the last 

four years against the FTSE-All Share index, from the end of 2012/13 (31st March 2013) to 

the end of  2016/17 (31st March 2017): 

 

 

 
 

 

The portfolio has grown over 19% since 31st March 2014, slightly outperforming the FTSE-

All Share index which has risen 18% over the same period.  
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Balance Sheet 
 

The total net assets of the Trust’s Charitable Funds as at 31st March 2017 were £6,620,000, a 

rise of £1,682,000 on the previous year’s balance of £4,938,000. Overall resources expended 

through charitable grants and administration was £526,000 lower than income received, and 

the rise in investments of £1,156,000 during the year increased the surplus between income 

and expenditure further. 

  

The charity’s total net assets comprised:- 

 

a) total fixed assets of £9,155,000 solely representing the value of the investment portfolio 

as at 31st March 2017. 

 

b) total current assets of £1,389,000; including: 

 

i) stocks of £8,700 in respect of fundraising activities, which have been 

valued at cost; 

 

ii) debtors of £556,900, including £484,900 for notified legacies, not yet 

received; £33,900 relating to accrued interest & dividends and £25,200 

for outstanding 2016/17 donations. 

 

iii) cash balances of £823,000 being held to provide cash reserves to each 

of our registered charities to meet commitments as they arise. 

 

c) creditors falling due within one year of £2,468,000;  

 

d) creditors falling due after more than one year of £1,456,000 (primarily the balance 

remaining on the commitment to support equipment for the new Hospital development 

not anticipated to be spent during 2017/18). 

 

Risk Management 

 

The Trustee has drawn up a Risk Management Policy for the Trust as a whole and the 

Charitable Funds Committee have adopted this policy. The policy details the process to be 

used in identifying risk and controls, assessing risks and evaluating the actions required.  

 

The major risks to which the charity is exposed have been identified and considered. They 

have been reviewed and systems established to mitigate those risks.  

The most significant risk identified was possible losses from a fall in the value of the 

investments and the level of reserves available to mitigate the impact of such losses. This has 

been carefully considered and there are procedures in place to review the investment policy 

and ensure that both spending and firm financial commitments remain in line with income. 

The Investment Pool guidelines adopted by the Charitable Funds Committee are shown in 

Appendix D. 
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Reserves 

 

Fund balances as at 31st March 2017 total £6,620,000; of which £85,000 is held as capital in 

perpetuity and as such cannot be freely expended.  

 

There is a further £566,000 of funds held in the form of current assets (stocks £9,000 and 

debtors £557,000) and as such these resources are not immediately available for expenditure. 

 

This leaves a balance of resources of £5,969,000. These resources are currently available to 

be applied in the furtherance of their charitable objectives. Based upon recent levels of 

income (the last two years), this represents 4 years of funds, which is over the 3-year 

parameter target set out in the Charity’s reserves policy which is shown in Appendix E. The 

Trustee accept that fund balances are too high, but it should be noted that reserves at the end 

of 2014-15 represented 8 years of funds, so significant progress has been made recently.  

 

Grant Making Policy 

 

Bids for charitable grants are considered on their individual merits. All grant requests relating 

to restricted funds under direct control of the Charitable Funds Committee (General purpose 

funds), require the completion and submission of a charitable funds application.  

 

Grant requests relating to restricted funds with delegated fundholders (Special funds only) 

will require the completion and submission of a charitable funds application if the grant 

requested is over £2,500. All such applications have to then be approved by the committee. A 

delegated fund-holder is able to authorise bids against their special purpose fund without the 

need for an application if the grant requested is under £2,500. When considering special 

purpose fund bids, the committee will determine whether the bid meets all the criteria of the 

objects of the fund and also supports the development of the particular directorate/department 

concerned. With regards to general purpose bids, the committee has agreed guidelines to 

follow. The guidelines are shown in Appendix F. 

 

Public Benefit 

 

The Trustee ensure that all grants and spending plans contain identifiable public benefits, 

which are clear, understandable and meet the objects of the particular charity concerned 

(under the Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospital NHS Trust Charitable funds 

umbrella).  

 

Section 17 of the Charties Act 2011 explains the duty of Trustee to have due regard to the 

public benefit in the management and decision making of the Charity. The Trustee has 

ensured that the public benefit requirement is strongly embedded within the procedures and 

controls the Charity has in place, through all stages of the grant approval process and also the 

monitoring of grant expenditure after approval has been given (all grant expenditure is 

verified before payment that the spend relates to activity set out and approved in the grant 

application).  
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Future Plans 

 

As has continually been the case year after year, a major proportion of Charitable funds 

expended will be allocated to provide significant support, throughout the Trust, for high 

quality research work amongst our clinicians. The charity will continue to support patient 

amenity and staff welfare, and also look to assist in the development of new initiatives.  

 

The Charity is primarily focusing its efforts towards fundraising for equipment for the New 

Royal Liverpool University Hospital that is currently under construction. 

 

Conclusion 

 

2016/17 has been another strong year for the Charity, with the charity being able to commit 

further significant resources to support the Hospital Trust in improving the patient experience 

through investment in research, staff training, equipment and service developments. The 

Charity benefited from a significant increase in reserves, mainly as a result of a significant 

rise in value of the investment portfolio. Charity income was also up on 2015/16 levels, 

achieving over £1.5m for the first time in a financial year. The Charity committed resources 

of £1,015,000 during 2016/17, of which £388,000 was invested in direct charitable grant 

expenditure in furtherance of the charity’s objectives.  

 

It must be recognised that none of our achievements would be possible without the hard work 

and generous support of volunteers; individual, corporate and trust donors, and sponsors and 

patrons alike. A very warm and heartfelt thanks goes out to all, for their dedication and 

continued support of the Trust’s charities. 

 

 

 

 

………………………………….     ….… / …… / ……...  

 

Mr B Griffiths 

Chairman 
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        Appendix A 

 

Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals (NHS) Trust  
CHARITABLE FUNDS 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF CHARITABLE FUNDS 

  
Main Charity 

Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Funds. 

 

Special Trusts 

 
1.  Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust General Purpose Funds. 

2.  Broadgreen Hospital General Purpose Fund. 

3.  Liverpool Dental Hospital General Purpose Fund. 

4.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Ophthalmology Unit General Purpose Fund. 

5.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital General Purpose Fund. 

6.  Broadgreen Hospital Staff Welfare Fund. 

7.  Liverpool University Dental Hospital Staff Welfare Fund. 

8.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital St Paul’s Eye Unit Staff Welfare Fund. 

9.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Staff Welfare Fund. 

10.  Broadgreen Hospital Patients Welfare Fund. 

11.  Liverpool University Dental Hospital Patients Welfare Fund. 

12.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital St Paul’s Eye Unit Patients Welfare Fund. 

13.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Patients Welfare Fund. 

14.  Broadgreen Hospital Anaesthetics Directorate Fund. 

15.  Broadgreen Hospital Activities and Rehabilitation Unit Fund. 

16.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Virology Fund. 

17.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Urology Fund. 

18.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital St Paul’s Eye Unit Sight Saver Fund. 

19.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Rheumatology Fund. 

20.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Ophthalmology Unit Junior Doctor Education Fund. 

21.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Respiratory Research Fund. 

22.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital St Paul’s Eye Unit Research into Disease of the Eye Fund. 

23.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Renal Transplant Fund. 

24.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Renal Units Amenity Fund. 

25.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Radiopharmacy Fund. 

26.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Radiology Fund. 

27.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Parenteral and Enteral Nutrition Fund. 

28.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Pain Research Fund. 

29.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital St Paul’s Eye Unit Pace Diabetic Fund. 

30.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital St Paul’s Eye Unit Optic Nerve Research Fund. 

31.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Nutrition Research Fund. 

32.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Nursing Professional Development Fund. 

33.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital St Paul’s Eye Unit Nurse Training Fund. 

34.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Nuclear Medicine Fund. 

35.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Movement Disorders in the Elderly Fund. 

36.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Department of Psychiatry Fund. 

37.  Bequest by Dr Jack Bernstein. 

38.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Continuing Care Fund. 

39.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Colorectal Cancer Fund. 
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40.  Sir John Joseph Shute Charity. 

41.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Chemical Pathology Fund. 

42.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Chapel Fund. 

43.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Cardiac Fund. 

44.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Cancer Research Fund. 

45.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Breast Cancer Fund. 

46.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Bacteriology Fund. 

47.  Broadgreen Hospital Training Unit Fund. 

48.  Liverpool University Dental Hospital Dental Surgery Assistants School Fund. 

49.  Liverpool University Dental Hospital Smile Fund. 

50.  Broadgreen Hospital Surgical Directorate Fund. 

51.  Broadgreen Hospital Radiology Fund. 

52.  Broadgreen Hospital Postgraduate Medical Centre Fund. 

53.  Broadgreen Hospital Physiotherapy Education Fund. 

54.  Broadgreen Hospital Pharmacy Fund. 

55.  Broadgreen Hospital Pain Relief Fund. 

56.  Broadgreen Hospital Nurses Recreation Fund. 

57.  Broadgreen Hospital Minimal Invasive Therapy Fund. 

58.  Broadgreen Hospital Medicine for the Elderly Fund. 

59.  Broadgreen Hospital Medical Unit Fund. 

60.  Broadgreen Hospital Hypertension Fund. 

61.  Broadgreen Hospital Haematology Fund. 

62.  Broadgreen Hospital Gastroenterology Fund. 

63.  Broadgreen Hospital Manx Patient Fund. 

64.  Broadgreen Hospital Broadgreen Dieticians Fund. 

65.  Broadgreen Hospital Diabetic Clinical Research Fund. 

66.  Broadgreen Hospital Continuing Care Fund. 

67.  Broadgreen Hospital Chapel Fund. 

68.  Broadgreen Hospital Cancer Research Fund. 

69.  Broadgreen Hospital Biochemistry Fund. 

70.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Self-Dialysis Unit Fund. 

71.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Minimal Invasive Therapy Fund. 

72.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Microbiology Fund. 

73.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Metabolic Unit Fund. 

74.  Liverpool Regional Dialysis Unit Fund. 

75.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Leukaemia Fund. 

76.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Intensive Therapy Unit Fund. 

77.  John Henry Hampson Deceased. 

78.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital St Paul’s Eye Unit Glaucoma Research Fund. 

79.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Genito-urinary Fund. 

80.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Genital Medicine Fund. 

81.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Gastroenterology Fund. 

82.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Foundation for Genito-urinary Cancer. 

83.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Eye Tumour Research Fund. 

84.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Ear Nose and Throat Department Fund. 

85.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Endocrinology Fund. 

86.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Dialysis Patients Welfare Fund. 

87.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital St Paul’s Eye Unit Diabetic Eye Research Fund. 

88.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Diabetic Fund. 

89.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Diabetes and Metabolism Fund. 

90.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Dermatology Fund. 

91.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Department of Surgery Fund. 

92.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Arthritis and Rheumatism Fund. 

93.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital St Paul’s Eye Unit Anterior Segment Fund. 

94.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Andria Butler Fund. 

95.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Anaesthetic Fund. 
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96.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Anaesthetic and Intensive Care Research and Education 

Fund. 

97.  Royal Liverpool University Hospital Accident and Emergency Fund. 

98.  Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust Clinical Engineering Fund. 

99.  Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals Postgraduate Education Fund. 

100. Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals Histopathology Fund. 

101. Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust Advance Trauma Life Support 

Fund. 

102. Royal Liverpool University Hospital Audiology Fund. 

103. Royal Liverpool University Hospital Stoma Nurse Training Fund. 

104. Broadgreen Hospital Cardiac Rehabilitation Fund. 

105. Liverpool University Dental Hospital School of Dental Hygiene Fund. 

106. Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust Prize Fund. 

107. Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals Elderly Fund 

108. Royal Liverpool University Hospital Forget Me Not Cancer Appeal. 

109. Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospital Trust Common Investment Fund. 

110. Royal Liverpool University Hospital Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness Fund. 

111. Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospital Infectious Disease Unit 

112. Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospital Norman Gibbon Urology Travel Scholarship 

Fund. 
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Appendix B 

  

DONATED INCOME POLICY - GUIDELINES TO STAFF 

 
In recognition of the first rate care given by our medics, nurses and other front line staff, patients and 

their family and friends often wish to make a financial donation to the Hospital to help improve facilities 

and services.  The following guidelines are intended to assist staff in advising potential donors on how 

to go about making a donation to the Hospital’s charitable funds:  

 

1. Due to there being no mechanism in place to receipt income at ward/ departmental levels, it is 

not safe for staff to receive cash/cheques in person on the wards. 

 

2. If staff are unsure how to advise potential donors how hospital donations can be made, please 

refer to the  Fundraising Dept for further assistance and advice (tel. x3153). 

 

3. Any potential donors should be advised that there are two possible options in making a donation 

whilst on hospital premises: - 

 

i) During Office Hours: 

 

 All donations at the Royal Liverpool University Hospital site should be made/brought 

to the Fundraising Office located in the Main Reception area of the Hospital wherever 

possible. Only when the Fundraising Office is unmanned should the alternative option 

of donations being taken to the RLUH  General Office be used.  

 

For the Broadgreen Hospital site, the General Office located in the Surgical Corridor 

should continue to be used to make donations during Office hours. 

     

ii) Out of Hours only: 

 

 Using an official donation envelope, obtainable from the ward  and other locations 

throughout the Trust, and completing the  details on the envelope and depositing the 

envelope in one of the Trust's donation boxes located throughout the Trust. 

   

 

4.  Alternatively, donors can make postal donations.  Staff should advise all potential donors 

wishing to send in a donation to address the envelope directly to the Fundraising Department at 

the Royal Liverpool University Hospital.  

 

5. Staff should also advise potential donors that cheques should be made payable to Royal 

Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals Trust Funds or to the abbreviation RL&BUH 

Trust Funds. The particular charitable fund name can also be shown after the Trust name if 

preferred - e.g. RL&BUH Trust Funds (Leukaemia Fund). 

 

6. Once the initial stocks of envelopes have been used, wards/departments can obtain new stocks 

of the official donation envelopes from either the RLUH or Broadgreen Hospital General 

Office. 

 

7. Any other staff enquiries with regard to the Trust's charitable funds can be made to the 

Charitable Funds Section, 1st Floor, Pembroke House, RLUH (extension 2833 or 2885). 

 

8. With these safeguards in place for dealing with cash, this policy protects members of staff from 

undue risk in handling and taking responsibility for donations. Staff are required to strictly 

adhere to the guidelines. 
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Appendix C 

 

RL&BUHT CHARITABLE INVESTMENT GUIDELINES 
 

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

 

At the outset, to maximise total return through a diversified portfolio of equity, fixed interest and 

cash investments, in compliance with the Trust’s investment powers as interpreted by the Trustee and 

in accordance with the strategy agreed with the Trustee from time to time.  In due course, the Trustee 

may amend the objectives and strategy. 

 

INVESTMENTS 

 

Limits or restrictions on powers and discretions that apply to the Portfolio and in relation to 

transactions for the Portfolio (‘NONE’ stated if that applies) and the circumstances (if any) in which 

the limits may be exceeded: 

 

a) Types of investment (equities, bonds etc): 

 

Restrictions 

 

As defined by the Trust’s investment powers.  No investments to be made in companies 

which derive most of their earnings from tobacco. 

 

b) Markets or Areas: 

 

None subject to the Trust’s investment powers. 

 

c) Currencies: 

 

None. 

 

d) Size of individual investment and proportion of the Portfolio: 

 

10% except for Government securities or pooled vehicles. 

 

e) Size of investment category and proportion of the Portfolio: 

 

Base Guidelines as follows- 

A minimum level for fixed interest/cash investments within the portfolio of £300,000. 

A maximum of 25% of the portfolio is allowed for Overseas Equities. 

Structured products up to a maximum of £100,000 of the portfolio. 

       

f) Units in Collective Investment Schemes including schemes operated by us or Associates: 

 

NONE 
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g) Units in Collective Investment Schemes which are not regulated Collective Investment 

Schemes including Schemes operated by us or Associates: 

 

Not authorised. 

 

h) Securities where their issue was underwritten, managed or arranged by us or Associates in 

the preceding 12 months: 

 

REQUIRE PRIOR PERMISSION 

 

i) Sub-underwriting issues of securities whether or not underwritten, managed or arranged by us 

or Associates: 

NONE 

 

j) Commitments necessitating you to supplement the funds in the portfolio either by borrowing 

on your behalf or committing you to a contract the performance of which requires you to 

supplement the funds: 

 

You are only authorised to incur short term overdrafts in the routine investment process. 

 

k) Investments not readily realisable: 

 

REQUIRE PRIOR PERMISSION 

 

l) (i) Futures, options and contracts for differences, including Contingent Liability Transactions, 

used for hedging against currency risks, whether or not traded on and under the rules of a 

recognised or designated investment exchange. 

 

Not authorised. 

 

l) (ii) Futures, options and contracts for differences, including Contingent Liability Transactions 

other than those used for hedging against currency risks, only traded on and under the rules 

of a recognised or designated investment exchange. 

 

Not authorised. 

 

m) Warrants, including warrants not traded on an exchange. 

NONE 

 

n) Securities which have been subject to Stabilisation: 

 

REQUIRE PRIOR PERMISSION 

 

o) Other: 

 

(Risk Warnings in respect of (k) to (n) above are included at the end of the Agreement and 

must be signed). 
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STOCK BORROWING/LENDING 

 

Any such activity must be authorised specifically (and detailed terms set out) in these 

investment guidelines: 

 

Not authorised. 

 

 

TAX PROFILE:   
 

Fully exempt from UK Taxation. 

 

 

MEASURE OF PERFORMANCE FOR PERIODIC STATEMENTS: 
 

The benchmarks for performance measurement will be composed as follows: 

 

a) 80% FTSE All-Share Index and 20% FTSE UK Gilts over 15 Years Index (total return in each 

case) 

 

b) WM Charity Universe Return. 
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 Appendix D 

 

RL&BUHT Charitable Funds 

Invested Pool Guidelines for Restricted Funds 

 

 

1. A threshold limit of 80% is proposed for each special purpose fund. If, when compared 

against the funds total balance, the proportion of the outstanding commitments remain 

under this threshold, the current policy of investing as much as possible over the short-

term is continued. The 20% buffer of uncommitted balances should ensure that a 

significant fall in investments would still allow the fund to meet its future obligations. 

 

2. A funds committed balance can move above the threshold of 80% through the following:-  

 

a) An application is approved which increases committed expenditure and takes 

the proportion of commitments over the 80% threshold.  

 

b) A fall in the investment pool reduces the total value of the fund and the 

proportion of committed expenditure, although the amount remains constant 

consequently rises over the 80% threshold. 

 

In either case, once the threshold is passed, a transfer of funds from out of the invested 

pool must takes place at the next quarter end to realise sufficient cash reserves to cover 

the outstanding commitment in its entirety.  

 

3. Alternatively, an increase in invested funds could result in a funds committed balance 

falling below the threshold and allow for a  proportion of the fund to be invested. 
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Appendix E 

 

 

RL&BUHT CHARITABLE FUNDS - RESERVES POLICY 
 

 
It is the Trustees’ determination to demonstrate prudent stewardship of the charity and to ensure that 

the level of reserves is appropriate to the charity’s circumstances. 

 

In producing this statement, the Trustees have taken into consideration the Charity Commission 

guidance “Charities Reserves” (CC19). 

 

1. Trustees are under a legal duty to apply charity funds within a reasonable time of receiving 

them.  Reserves held without positive justification could give rise to a breach of this trust. 

 

2. The Trustees of the charity are permitted to establish and maintain reserves where this is in 

the best interest of the charity. 

 

3. The Trustees may establish and maintain reserves: 

 

a) to meet current and anticipated expenses properly payable out of income, 

b) for clearly defined major projects, 

c) to avoid fluctuations in the amount of income distributed, and 

d) to secure the charity’s viability beyond the immediate future. 

 

4. The Trustees would normally expect to spend at the same level as income is received taking 

one year with another. 

 

5. Unrealised gains on investments will be included in the income in (4) above; however 

caution will be exercised over the application of the monies until such time as the gains are 

realised. 

 

6. The charity will not undertake any major fundraising appeals unless a specific need/cause is 

clearly identified and approved by the Trustees. 

 

7. Where it is anticipated that reserves which are freely available to be applied, will rise above a 

level equivalent to 36 months planned expenditure, action will be taken to expend, in 

accordance with charity objectives down to a level below this threshold. 

 

8. Reserves will not be allowed to fall below a level equivalent to 12 months expected 

expenditure. 

 

9. The charity Annual Report will include a brief statement on the current level of reserves and 

why they are held. 

 

10. Reserves will be systematically monitored in light of forecast levels of future income, 

expenditure and assessment of future needs. 

 

11. The Trustees will formally review this policy statement at least every 2 years. 
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Appendix F 
 

 

RL&BUHT Charitable Funds 

 

General Purpose Guidelines 
 
1. An important consideration for the committee is to assess whether or not sufficient consideration 

has been given to identify other sources of financing. Requests for general purpose funding 

should not be made lightly, it is expected by the committee that each applicant make an effort to 

secure funding from other sources before applying to general purpose funds and written evidence 

to support this should be provided with the application itself. These other sources may include 

special purpose charitable funds.  

 

The committee will therefore not normally consider any general purpose fund bids from 

directorates or departments that have adequate special purpose funds at their disposal. 

 

2. General Purpose funds cannot normally be used as a substitute for routine revenue expenditure.  

 

3. Consideration will be given to the purchase of medical equipment. However, the committee’s 

priority will be to provide funding of equipment that develops clinical services and/or improves 

the treatment and care of patients rather than merely the replacement of existing equipment. 

 

4. Capital schemes for the improvement of patient areas and the general environment of the Trusts 

hospitals will be considered by the committee. 

 

5. General purpose funding to “kick-start” service developments involving staff appointments will 

only be considered by the committee after a full evaluation by the executive group. The 

evaluation must result in a commitment from the Trust to provide recurrent funding, if the trial is 

successful, after the charitable funding period. The trial period to evaluate the scheme should be 

kept to a minimum and can last no longer than twelve months. 

 

6. The advancement of education is a charitable purpose and includes funds for medical research 

and the development of such. If medical research is being financed by charitable funds then the 

useful results of the research must be published in such a way that the public will benefit from 

the advancement of medical science to which the research has contributed. The support by a 

charity of private commercial research is not permitted. A large proportion of special purpose 

charitable funding is spent on individual research projects and the charitable funds committee has 

also awarded considerable recurring funds from general purposes towards the Research and 

Development (R & D) Support fund. Researchers without their own funding sources should apply 

for R & D Support funds through the annual bidding cycle and not general purposes directly. 

However, in exceptional circumstances the committee may consider the use of general purpose 

funds. 

 

7. Bids for study and travel expenses relevant to the development or services of the Trust will be 

considered from general purpose charitable funding by the committee upon submission of an 

application. 
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - ROYAL LIVERPOOL BROADGREEN UNIV HOSP TR – 2016/17 

Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2017 
    

              

              

     2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2015-16 

    Note Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment  Total  Total 

     Funds  Funds  Funds  Funds  Funds 

     £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

Income and 

Endowments from:             

           

  Donations & Legacies 2.1 0  1,238  0  1,238  1,162 

                  Other Trading activities 2.2 0  2  0  2  1 

  Investments 2.3 0  301  0  301  301 

             

Total Income & Endowments  0  1,541  0  1,541  1,464 

  

 

            

Expenditure on:           

                  Raising Funds 3 0  551  0  551  439 

                  Charitable Activities 4 0  426  0  426  3,432 

  Governance 5 0  38  0  38  39 

             

Total Expenditure  0  1,015  0  1,015  3,910 

           

 

   

  Net Gains / (Losses) on Investments                                8 0  1,156  0  1,156  (356) 

            

  

   Net Income / (Ependiture)  0  1,682  0  1,682  (2,802) 

             

              

  Transfer between Funds  0  0  0  0  0 

             

  Net Movement in funds 6 0  1,682  0  1,682  (2,802) 

 

             

Reconciliation of funds:           

           

Fund balances brought forward at           

31 March 2016  0  4,853  85  4,938  7,740 

Fund balances carried           

forward at 31 March 2017 
 0  6,535  85  6,620  4,938 

              

The notes at pages 29 to 41 form part of this account.           
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - ROYAL LIVERPOOL BROADGREEN UNIV HOSP TR - 2016/2017   

              

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017 
       

              

   Notes Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment  Total at 31  Total at 31  

    Funds  Funds  Funds  March 2017  March 2016  

    £000  £000  £000  £000  £000  

Fixed Assets             

             

 Investments 8  0  9,070  85  9,155  8,710  

            
 

Total Fixed Assets  0  9,070  85  9,155  8,710 
 

              

Current Assets            

 Stocks  0  9  0  9  10  

 Debtors 9  0  557  0  557  323  

 Cash at bank and in hand  0  823  0  823  540  

 
           

 

Total Current Assets  0  1,389  0  1,389  873 
 

              

 Creditors: Amounts falling due            

 within one year 10.1 0  2,468  0  2,468  1,707  

              

Net Current Assets/(Liabilities)  0  (1,079)  0  (1,079)  (834) 
 

      
 

 
      

 

Total Assets less Current Liabilities  0  7,991  85  8,076  7,876 
 

      

 

        

Creditors: Amounts falling due            

after more than one year 10.2 0  1,456  0  1,456  2,938  

              

Total Net Assets  0  6,535  85  6,620  4,938 
 

   

 

           

Funds of the Charity 

            

Capital Funds:            

 Endowment Funds 11.1 0  0  85  85  85  

              

Income Funds:            

 Restricted 11.3 0  6,535  0  6,535  4,853  

 Unrestricted 11.5 0  0  0  0  0  

              

Total Funds   0  6,535  85  6,620  4,938 
 

              

The notes at pages 29 to 41 form part of this account. 

        

Signed:              

 

Date:              
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - ROYAL LIVERPOOL BROADGREEN UNIV HOSP TR - 2016/2017 

             

 
      

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2017 
 

 

 

Reconciliation of net income / (expenditure) to net cash flow from Operating activities 
 

 

 

 
Net Income / (expenditure)  as per the SOFA  1,682  (2,802) 

 
Dividends and Interest from Investments  (301)  (301) 

 
(Increase) / decrease in Stocks  1  2 

 
(Increase) / decrease in debtors  (234)  (128) 

 
Increase /( decrease) in creditors  (721)  2,617 

 
(Increase) / decrease in Investment Gains / Losses  (1,156)  356 

 Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities  (729)  (256) 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   Total  Total 

   2016-17  2015-16 

   £000  £000 

 Cash flows from Operating Activities:     

      

 Net Cash provided by (used in) operating activities   (729)  (256) 

      

 Cash flows from investing activities:     

 Returns on Investment  301  301 

 Proceeds from sale of Investments  1,282  646 

 Purchase of Investments  (571)  (640) 

 Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  1,012  307 

      

 Change in cash and cash equivalents  283  51 

      

 Cash and Cash equivalents at the start of the year  540  489 

      

 Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year  823  540 
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ROYAL LIVERPOOL & BROADGREEN UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS 

CHARITABLE FUNDS 

 
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 

 

 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
1.1  Basis of preparation 

 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting 

by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their 

accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 

Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015 – (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), 

the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) 

and the Companies Act 2006.  

 

Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals Charitable Funds meets the definition 

of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.  

 

(a) Going Concern 

 

The Trustees are of the view that the charity is a going concern, with no material 

uncertainties about the charity’s ability to continue.  

 

(b) Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates 

 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the application of the charities accounting policies and the reported 

assets, liabilities, income and expenditure and the disclosures made in the financial 

statements. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical 

experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be 

reasonable under the current circumstances.  

 

Assets and liabilities are initially recognised at historical cost or transaction value unless 

otherwise stated in the relevant accounting policy note(s).  

 

 

1.2     Incoming Resources 

 

The policies followed, which deal with income, voluntary assistance and donations, are: 

 

a)  All incoming resources are included in full in the statement of Financial Activities as 

soon as the following three factors can be met: 

 

i) Entitlement - arises when a particular resource is receivable or the charity’s right 

becomes legally enforceable; 

  

ii) Certainty – when there is reasonable certainty that the incoming resource will be 

received; 
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - ROYAL LIVERPOOL BROADGREEN UNIV HOSP TR – 2016/2017         

           

iii) Measurement – when the monetary value of the incoming resources can be 

measured with sufficient reliability. 

 

b)  Gifts in kind 

 

i) Assets given for distribution by the charity are included in the Statement of 

Financial Activities only when distributed. 

 

ii) Assets given for use by the charity (e.g. property for its own occupation) are 

included in the Statement of Financial Activities as incoming resources when 

receivable. 

         

iii) Gifts made in kind but on trust for conversion into cash and subsequent 

application by the charity are included in the accounting period in which the gift 

is sold. 

 

In all cases the amount at which gifts in kind are brought into the account is either a 

reasonable estimate of their value to the charity or the amount actually realised. The basis 

of the valuation is disclosed in the annual report. 

 

c)  Intangible Income including donated services and facilities 

 

Intangible income (e.g. the provision of free accommodation) is included in the accounts 

with an equivalent amount in outgoing resources, if there is a financial cost borne by 

another party. The value placed on such income is the financial cost of the third party 

providing the resources. In accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102), general 

volunteer time is not recognised as income or expenditure.  

 

d)  Legacies 

 

Legacies are accounted for as incoming resources once the receipt of the legacy becomes 

reasonably certain. This will be once confirmation has been received from the 

representatives of the estate that payment of the legacy will be made or property transferred 

and once all conditions attached to the legacy have been fulfilled. 

 

e) Interest receivable and dividend income  

 

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be 

measured reliably by the charity; this is normally upon notification of the interest or 

dividend paid or payable.  

 

1.3 Resources expended 

 

The funds held on trust accounts are prepared in accordance with the accruals concept.  

Expenditure is recognised when a liability is incurred and there is a legal or constructive 

obligation to make a payment to a third party, it is probable that settlement will be 

required and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Grant commitments 

are recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to make a payment to a 

third party. 
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - ROYAL LIVERPOOL BROADGREEN UNIV HOSP TR – 2016/2017         

           

a)  Cost of generating funds 

The cost of generating funds are the costs associated with generating income for 

the funds held on trust.  This will include the costs associated with the Forget-

me-Not Appeal and the Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness funds. It will 

also include Investment management costs which consist of direct fees and a 

proportion of support costs (see note 5). 

 

 b) Grants payable 

Grants payable are payments, made to third parties (including NHS bodies) in the 

furtherance of the funds held on trust’s charitable objectives to relieve those who 

are sick.  They are accounted for on an accruals basis where the conditions for 

their payment have been met or where a third party has a reasonable expectation 

that they will receive the grant.  This includes grants paid to NHS bodies. 

 

 c) Allocation of Overhead and Support costs  

These are accounted for on an accruals basis and have been allocated on an 

appropriate basis (see note 5) between Charitable Activities and Governance 

Costs. Once allocation and/or apportionment of overhead and support costs has 

been made between Charitable Activities and Governance costs, the cost 

attributable to Charitable Activities is apportioned across those activities in 

proportion to total spend. An estimation of the time allocated by the Senior 

Financial Accountant to manage the charitable funds section has been made. 

 

d) Governance Costs 

Governance costs comprise all costs incurred in the governance of the charity. 

These costs include costs related to statutory audit together with an 

apportionment of overhead and support costs. 

 

e) Irrecoverable VAT  

Irrecoverable VAT is charged as a cost against the activity for which the 

expenditure was incurred.  

  

        

1.4 Structure of funds 

 

Where there is a legal restriction on the purpose to which a fund may be put, the fund is 

classified in the accounts as a restricted fund.  Funds where the capital is held to generate 

income for charitable purposes and cannot itself be spent are accounted for as endowment 

funds.  Other funds are classified as unrestricted funds.  Funds which are not legally 

restricted but which the Trustee  has chosen to earmark for set purposes are classified 

funds.  The major funds held within these categories are disclosed on notes 11.4 and 11.5. 

 

 

1.5     Tangible Fixed Assets 

 

The charity has no tangible fixed assets. 
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - ROYAL LIVERPOOL BROADGREEN UNIV HOSP TR – 2016/2017         

 

 

1.6   Investment Fixed Assets 

 

Investment fixed assets are shown at fair value, which is determined by their market 

value. 

 

i) Quoted stocks and shares are included in the balance sheet at mid-market 

price, ex-div. 

 

ii) Other investment fixed assets are included at Trustee’s best estimate 

market value. 

 

 

1.7       Realised gains and losses 

 

All gains and losses are taken to the Statement of Financial Activities as they arise.  

Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between sales 

proceeds and opening market value (or date of purchase if later).  Unrealised gains and 

losses are calculated as the difference between market value at the year-end and opening 

market value (or date of purchase if later). 

 

 

1.8 Intangible Fixed Assets 

 

The charity has no intangible fixed assets. 

 

1.9 Stock  

 

 Stock is included at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  

  

1.10 Debtors  

 

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount due. Prepayments are 

valued at the amount prepaid net.  

 

1.11 Cash at bank and in hand  

 

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash held in the Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen 

University Hospitals Charitable Funds account and the amounts held in the ‘income’ 

accounts within the Charity’s investment portfolios.   

 

1.12 Creditors and provisions 

Creditors and provisions are recognised where the charity has a present obligation 

resulting from a past event that will probably result in the transfer of funds to a third 

party and the amount due to settle the obligation can be measured or estimated reliably. 

Creditors and provisions are normally recognised at their settlement amount.  

 

1.13  Change in the Basis of Accounting 

 

There has been no change in the basis of accounting. 
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - ROYAL LIVERPOOL BROADGREEN UNIV HOSP TR – 2016/2017         

 

1.14     Prior Year Adjustments 

 

  There has been no change to the accounts of prior years. 

 

1.15 Pooling Scheme 

 

An official pooling scheme is operated for investments covering all funds registered 

under the umbrella agreement. The scheme was registered with the Charity Commission 

on 26th March 2002. 

 

1.16     Related Party Transactions 

 

During the year none of the Trust Board or members of the key management staff or 

parties related to them has undertaken any material transactions with the Royal Liverpool 

and Broadgreen University Hospitals Charitable Trust. 

 

The charitable trust has made revenue and capital payments to the Royal Liverpool and 

Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust, whose Trust Board members (whose names 

are listed below) also represent the Corporate Trustee. 

 

 

Trust Board Members 

 

  

   

 

Mr B Griffiths  

 

Trust Chair 

 

Mr N Willcox Non Executive Director  
Mr M Eastwood  Non Executive Director  
Mr D Killworth (to 31/08/16) Non Executive Director  
Mr G Stewart 

Mr R Burgoyne (to 31/08/26) 

Mrs A Phillips (from 01/09/16) 

Prof M Jackson (from 01/09/16) 

Mr A Kehoe 

Mrs R Edwards (up to 30/04/16) 

Mr J Graham 

Dr P S Williams (from 01/05/16) 

Dr J Hobbs (01/04/16 to 20/04/16) 

Ms L Grant  

Mrs S Clayton (from 01/05/16) 

 

 

 

Non Executive Director 

Non Executive Director 

Non Executive Director 

Non Executive Director 

Chief Executive 

Director of Human Resources 

Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director of Finance 

Medical Director 

Medical Director 

Chief Nurse 

Acting Director of Human Resources 
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - ROYAL LIVERPOOL BROADGREEN UNIV HOSP TR – 2016/2017 

        

 

Donations & 

Legacies 2.1         Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment  Total      Total 

    2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2016-17     2015-16 

    Funds  Funds  Funds  Funds       Funds 

    £000  £000  £000  £000       £000 

  Donations 0  609  0  609  628 

  Legacies 0  629  0  629  534 

  Total  0  1,238  0  1,238  1,162 

 

Trading 

Activities 2.2   Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment  Total        Total 

    2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2016-17       2015-16 

    Funds  Funds  Funds  Funds         Funds 

    £000  £000  £000  £000        £000 

  Fundraising 0  2  0  2  1 

  Total  0  2  0  2  1 

 

Investment 

Income 2.3   Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment  Total        Total 

    2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2016-17        2015-16 

    Funds  Funds  Funds  Funds          Funds 

    £000  £000  £000  £000         £000 

  Dividends and Investment Interest 0  300  0  300  300 

  Bank Interest 0  1  0  1  1 

  Total  0  301  0  301  301 

 
           

 

Expenditure on 

Raising Funds 3   Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment  Total        Total 

    2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2016-17        2015-16 

    Funds  Funds  Funds  Funds          Funds 

    £000  £000  £000  £000         £000 

  Fundraising Costs  0  469  0  469  372 

  Investment Management 0  82  0  82  67 

  Total  0  551  0  551  439 

Expenditure on 

Charitable 

Activities 4   Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment  Total        Total 

    2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2016-17        2015-16 

    Funds  Funds  Funds  Funds          Funds 

    £000  £000  £000  £000         £000 

  Patients Welfare 0  47  0  47  146 

  Staff Welfare 0  71  0  71  113 

  Research & Education 0  45  0  45  213 

  Capital 0  263  0  263  2,960 

  Total  0  426  0  426  3,432 
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - ROYAL LIVERPOOL BROADGREEN UNIV HOSP TR – 2016/2017 

 

 

Expenditure 

Other 5   Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment  Total        Total 

    2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2016-17        2015-16 

    Funds  Funds  Funds  Funds          Funds 

    £000  £000  £000  £000         £000 

  Governance 0  38  0  38  39 

  Total  0  38  0  38  39 

 
            

Allocation and 
5.1  Basis of  Allocated  Residual  Total  Total 

Apportion to  Allocation  To  for  2016-17  2015-16 

Governance    Governance  Apportion  Funds  Funds 

Costs     £000  £000  £000  £000 

 

  Salaries Time Spent  28  63  91  89 

  Establishment costs Governance  4  0  4  4 

  Audit fee Governance  5  0  5  6 

  Miscellaneous Governance  1  1  2  3 

     38  64  102  102 

                      

 

 

 

It should be noted that charity does not employ any staff directly. Rather, the salary costs above are for charity administration staff employed by 

the Hospital Trust and then the costs are recharged to the Charity. 

 

 

Apportion of 

Support 5.2            

Costs      Direct  Support  Total costs  Total costs 

      Costs  Costs  2016-17  2015-16 

      £000  £000  £000  £000 

  Expenditure on raising Funds:         

    Fundraising   455  14  469  372 

    Investment Management  70  12  82  67 

    Sub – Total  525  26  551  439 

             

  Expenditure on Charitable Activities:         

    Patients Welfare & amenities  43  5  48  146 

    Staff Welfare & amenities  65  6  71  113 

    Research            41  4  45  213 

    Contributions to NHS Capital  239  24  263  2,960 

    Sub – Total  388  38  426  3,432 

             

  

 

Governance  0  38  38  39 

             

  Total Expenditure  913  102  1,015  3,910 

                 

             

    

It should be noted that charity does not employ any staff directly. Rather, the salary costs of fundraising staff (included in 

the Cost of generating Voluntary Income above) are  employed by the Hospital Trust and then the costs are recharged to the 

Charity. 
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Grants 5.4         Total   

awarded to          2016-17   

institutions          £000   

  

 

           

  

Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals 

NHS Trust        343   

  University of Liverpool        30   

          373   

              

 

 

 

Changes in 6   Unrestricted  Restricted  Endowment  Total  Total 

Resources    2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2015-16 

Available    Funds  Funds  Funds  Funds  Funds 

for Charity Use    £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 

  Net movement in funds for the year 0  1,682  0  1,682  2,802 

  Net movement in tangible fixed assets: 0  0  0  0  0 

  Net movement in funds available 0  0  0  0  0 

    0  1,682  0  1,682  2,802 

              

             

Tangible Fixed 7 There are no fixed assets of the charity         

Assets             

             

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Charity 

 

Grants to  Grants to  Support      

Activities by  Institutions  Individuals  Cost  Total   

Type 5.3 2016-17  2016-17  2016-17  2016-17   

  £000  £000  £000  £000   

 

Patients Welfare & amenities 43 

 

0 

 

4 

 

47 

 

 

 
Staff Welfare & amenities 50 

 
15 

 
6 

 
71 

 
 

 
Research 41 

 
0 

 
4 

 
45 

 
 

 
Contributions to NHS Capital 239 

 
0 

 
24 

 
263 

 
 

 
  

        

         Total 373  15  38  426   
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CHARITABLE TRUST ACCOUNT - ROYAL LIVERPOOL BROADGREEN UNIV HOSP TR – 2016/2017 

  

Analysis of 
8      2016-17  2015-16 

Fixed Asset 8.1 Fixed Asset Investments:     £000  £000 

Investments          

  Market value at 31 March      8,710  9,072 

  Less: Disposals at carrying value     (1,282)  (646) 

  Add: Acquisitions at cost     571  640 

  Net gain on revaluation     1,156  (356) 

  Market value at 31 March      9,155  8,710 

          

  Historic cost at 31 March      6,042  6,448 

                  

          

 8.2 Market value at 31 March : Held  Held  2016-17  2015-16 

   in UK  outside UK  Total  Total 

   £000  £000  £000  £000 

          

          

  Investments listed on Stock Exchange 8,830  0  8,830  8,468 

 

 

 Cash held as part of the        

  investment portfolio 325  0  325  242 

          

   9,155  0  9,155  8,710 

                  

          

 

 

Post Balance 

Events 8.3  

 
 

 

None 

 

. 
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Analysis of 9      

Total as at 31 

March 2017  

Total as at 31 

March 2016 

Debtors 9.1  Amounts falling due within one year:  £000  £000 

         

    Prepayments   1  1 

    Accrued income  556  322 

          

   Total debtors falling due within one year  557  323 

          

 9.2  Amounts falling due over one year:     

        

   Total debtors falling due after more     

   than one year   0  0 

          

   Total debtors   557  323 

              

          

Analysis of 10      

Total as at 31 

March 2017  

Total as at 31 

March 2016 

Creditors 10.1  Amounts falling due within one year:  £000  £000 

         

    Other creditors  159  616 

    Accruals   2,309  1,091 

    Deferred income  0  0 

         

   Total creditors falling due within one year  2,468  1,707 

          

 10.2  Amounts falling due after more than one year:     

         

    Accruals   1,456  2,938 

         

   Total creditors falling due after more     

   than one year  1,456  2,938 

          

   Total creditors   3,924  4,645 
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Analysis of 11          

Funds 11.1 Endowment Funds Balance Incoming Resources Transfers Gains and Balance 

     31 March Resources Expended  Losses 31 March 

     2016     2017 

     £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

   (list individually)       

   A M A Davies 21     21 

   B S I V Cooke 16     16 

   C Dr J Bernstein 3     3 

   D Mr N Gibbon 45     45 

   Others (1)        

   Total  85 0 0 0 0 85 

                   

           

Details of 11.2   Name of fund  Description of the nature and purpose of each fund  

material    A M A Davies  Bed endowment fund for Patients  Welfare   

funds -   B S I V Cooke  Holiday fund for Nurses    

Endowment   C Dr J Bernstein  RLUH Convalescence and recreation fund    

Funds   D Mr N Gibbon  Annual Urology Scholarship    

                   

           

 11.3 Restricted Funds Balance Incoming Resources Transfers Gains and Balance 

     31 March Resources Expended  Losses 31 March 

     2016     2017 

     £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

   Material funds       

   (list individually)       

   A Foundn. for Prev. of Blindness 354 216 (21) 316 116 981 

   B Endocrinology Fund 613 38 (73)  147 725 

   C Forget Me Not Fund 524 52 (31)  74 619 

   D L’pool Reg Dialysis Fund 423 32 (49)  115 521 

   E Gastroenterology Fund 71 310 (3)  18 396 

   F RLUH General Purpose 209 485 (404)  60 350 

   G RLUH Patient Welfare Fund 159 139 (29)  49 318 

   H Dental General Purpose 214 8 (6)  29 245 

   Others (98) 2,286 261 (399) (316) 548 2,380 

   Total  4,853 1,541 (1,015) (0) 1,156 6,535 

           

Details of 11.4   Name of fund  Description of the nature and purpose of each fund  

material    A Foundn. for Prev. of Blindness  For Ophthalmic research at St Paul’s Eye Unit   

funds -   B Endocrinology Fund  Any charitable purpose relating to disease of the gland   

Restricted   C Forget Me Not Fund  Any charitable purpose relating to cancer services  

Funds   D L’pool Reg Dialysis Fund  Any charitable purpose relating to Dialysis services   

   E Gastroenterology Fund  Research (& any charitable purpose) related to liver  & gastro-intestinal disease  

   F RLUH General Purpose  Any charitable purpose relating to RLUH  

   G RLUH Patients Welfare Fund  For the relief of RLUH patients suffering from sickness and disease or its effects  

   H Dental General Purpose  Any charitable purpose relating to the Dental Hospital 

                

           

 11.5  No material designated funds       
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Contingencies 
12  There were no contingent assets or liabilities for the charity included in the accounts:  

                     

            

Commitments, 
13.1  The Charity has no commitments, liabilities or provisions.    

Liabilities and            

Provisions            

            

            

 13.2  The Trustee recognise liabilities in the accounts once they have incurred either a   

   legal or constructive obligation to expend funds.     

            

            

            

 

 

NB:  Amounts entered in the following sections should be rounded to the nearest pound.      

         

Trustee and 14        

Connected         

Persons 14.1  Trustee expenses reimbursed   2016-17  2015-16 

Transactions      £  £ 

   Travel and subsistence   0  0 

   Entertainment   0  0 

   Other (please describe)   0  0 

      0  0 

         

   Total number of  Trust Board Members represting the Trustee   11  11 

         

 14.2  There was no Trustee remuneration      

         

         

         

 14.3  There were no transactions with the Trustee or connected persons      

         

         

         

 14.4  Trustee Indemnity Insurance      

         

   Cover provided under Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust's   

   Litigation Authority Non-clinical risk scheme.      

 

 

   

           

Loans or  

Guarantees 15       None          

Secured 

against assets 

of the charity 
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Connected 16            

Organisations 
   Name, nature of connection,       2016-17 2015-16 

    description of activities     Turnover of Net Profit/ Turnover of Net Profit/ 

    undertaken and details     Connected (Loss) for the Connected Loss for the 

    of any qualifications     Organisation Connected Organisation Connected 

    expressed by their auditors       Organisation   Organisation 

           £ £ £ £ 

   

Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen 

University Hospitals NHS Trust 
528,959,000 4,291,000 534,415,000 21,622,000 

                   

           

 

Related party           

Transactions 
17          

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Trust Board Members  

 

Mr B Griffiths  

 

Trust Chair 

Mr N Willcox Non Executive Director 

Mr M Eastwood  Non Executive Director 

Mr D Killworth (to 31/08/16) Non Executive Director 

Mr G Stewart 

Mr R Burgoyne (to 31/08/16) 

Mrs A Phillips (from 01/09/16) 

Prof M Jackson (from 01/09/16) 

Mr A Kehoe 

Mrs R Edwards ( to 30/04/16) 

Non Executive Director 

Non Executive Director 

Non Executive Director 

Non Executive Director 

Chief Executive 

Director of Human Resources 

Mr J Graham Deputy Chief Executive & Executive Director of Finance 

Dr P S Williams (from 01/05/16) 

Dr J Hobbs (01/04/16 to 20/04/16) 

Medical Director 

Medical Director 

Ms L Grant  

Mrs S Clayton (from 01/05/2016) 

Chief Nurse 

Acting Director of Human Resources  

  

  

 

Related party transactions 

 

During the year none of the Trust Board or members of the key management staff or parties related to them has 

undertaken any material transactions with the Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University Hospitals Charitable Trust. 

 

Mr Robert Burgoyne and Professor Malcolm Jackson, Non-Executive members of the Trust Board during 2016/17, 

were also employees of the University of Liverpool. The Charity is involved in numerous transactions with the 

University of Liverpool, involving staff recharges and other research related costs. The Charity accounted for grant 

activity relating to the University of  Liverpool of  £30,073  (2015/16: £147,616). Total outstanding owed to the 

University of Liverpool at 31st March 2017 stood at £643,271  (2015/16: £1,406,187), although these figures do 

contain planned future grant spend of £455,351 (2015/16 £720,558) that hasn’t been incurred yet. Mr R Burgoyne 

has no part in these transactions.  

 

The charitable trust has made revenue and capital payments to the Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen University 

Hospitals NHS Trust where the members of the Trust Board (whose names are listed below) represent the Corporate 

Trustee.  
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Private and Confidential

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

Private and Confidential

This Audit Findings report presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the 

financial reporting process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. Its contents have been discussed with management. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) ('ISA (UK&I)'), which is directed towards 

forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of 

the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed or the purpose 

of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part 

of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose defalcations or other 

irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any responsibility for 

any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 

other purpose.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team during our audit.

Yours sincerely

John Farrar

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Royal Liver Building

Liverpool

L3 1PS

www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

18th January 2018

Dear Members of the Charitable Funds Committee 

Audit Findings for the Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals Charitable Funds for the year ending 31 March 2017

Corporate Trustee

Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust

Prescot Street

Liverpool

L7 8XO
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Executive Summary

Executive summary

Purpose of this report

This report highlights the key issues affecting the results of Royal Liverpool and 

Broadgreen University Hospitals Charitable Fund (the Charity) and the preparation 

of the Charity's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017. It is also 

used to report our audit findings to management and those charged with 

governance in accordance with the requirements of International Standard on 

Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. 

In accordance with Section 154 of the Charities Act 2011 we are required to report 

whether, in our opinion, the Charity's financial statements give a true and fair view 

of the state of the Charity’s affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its its incoming 

resources and application of resources for the year then ended. 

Introduction

In the conduct of our audit we have not had to alter or change our audit approach, 

which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated 7 November 2017. 

We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the 

commencement of our work, in accordance with the timetable we agreed with you.

Key audit and financial reporting issues

Financial statements opinion

We have identified £27,000 adjustments affecting the Charity's net movement in 

funds (details are recorded in section two of this report).  The draft financial 

statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 recorded a net movement in funds 

of £1,709k; the audited financial statements show an equivalent figure of £1,682k.  

This change is primarily driven by changes made to reflect additional levy 

commitments.  We have also recommended a number of adjustments to improve 

the presentation of the financial statements.

Further details are set out in section two of this report.

Our anticipated audit opinion will be unqualified (see Appendix B).

Controls

Roles and responsibilities

The Charity's management is responsible for the identification, assessment, 

management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating and 

monitoring the system of internal control.

Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of 

control weakness.  However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any 

control weaknesses, we report these to the Charity. 

Findings

Our work has not identified any control weaknesses which we wish to highlight 

for your attention other than the journal control weakness previously identified 

in 2015/16.  

Further details are provided within section two of this report.
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Executive Summary

Executive summary

Our work is substantially complete and there are currently no matters of which we are aware that would require modification of our audit opinion, subject to the outstanding matters 

detailed below.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank Paul Jameson and the wider finance team for their assistance and efforts throughout the audit process.

• Receipt of signed letter of representation

• Completion of our updated subsequent events review prior to signing

Status

 Likely to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the 

financial statements

 Potential to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the 

financial statements

 Not considered likely to result in material adjustment or change to disclosures within 

the financial statements

Status of the audit

The way forward

Matters arising from the financial statements audit have been discussed with Paul Jameson.

We have made a small number of recommendations, which are set out in the action plan at Appendix A. Recommendations have been discussed and agreed with 

management.

Acknowledgement

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team during our audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

January 2018
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Materiality
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of ISA (UK&I) 320: Materiality in planning and performing an audit. The standard 

states that 'misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements'. 

As we reported in our audit plan, we determined overall materiality to be £211,000 (being 2% of total assets. We have considered whether this level remained appropriate 

during the course of the audit and have made no changes to our overall materiality. 

We also set out an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because 

we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. We have defined the amount below which 

misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £10,550. This remains the same as reported in our audit plan.

As we reported in our audit plan, we identified the following items where we decided that separate materiality levels were appropriate. These remain the same as reported in 

our audit plan. 

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation

Related party transactions Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for them to be made.

Cash All transactions have an impact on the cash balance, and it is therefore considered to be material by 

nature. Any errors in excess of trivial would have an impact on the understanding of the users of the 

financial statements.

8

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of the financial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, 

or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial information needs 

of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely, is not considered. (ISA (UK and Ireland) 320)
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Audit findings against significant risks

Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising

1. Improper revenue recognition

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed risk 

that revenue may be misstated due to the 

improper recognition of revenue. 

As part of our audit work we have completed;

 documenting our understanding of management’s controls 

over revenue recognition and the nature of the various 

revenue streams of the Charitable Fund.

 review and testing of revenue recognition policies to ensure 

they are in line with the requirements of the FRS 102 

SORP.

 substantive testing of individually significant income 

transactions and a sample of other items to supporting 

documentation.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

respect of revenue recognition.

2. Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a non-rebuttable

presumed risk that the risk of management 

over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

As part of our audit work we have completed;

 review of entity-level controls

 testing of journal entries

 review of unusual significant transactions

 review of accounting estimates, judgements and decisions 

made by management.

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of 

management override of controls. In particular the 

findings of our review of journal controls and testing 

of journal entries has not identified any significant 

issues other than the issue in regards to a 

weakness within the journals control environment 

that was identified and reported on during the 

2015/16 audit. Further details of this issue and the 

action taken by management are stated within 

page 13 of this report.

We set out later in this section of the report our 

work and findings on key accounting estimates and 

judgements. 

Audit findings

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, there are two 

presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards. C
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Audit findings against significant risks (continued)

Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising

1. Classification of funds and transactions 

between restricted and unrestricted funds

The charity currently classifies all funds other 

than the £85k endowment as restricted funds. 

There is a risk that incorrect classification of 

funds is not compliant with the requirements of 

the Charity SORP.

As part of our audit work we have completed;

 a review of the Charity’s rationale for the classification of funds 

in the context of the requirements of the Charity SORP.

 substantive testing of income and expenditure transactions to 

ensure they are correctly classified and in line with the Charity’s 

objectives.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in 

respect of classification of funds.

Audit findings

In our Audit Plan we also identified the following significant risk of material misstatement from our understanding of the entity.

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or nature, and that therefore 

occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 315) . In making the review 

of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's normal course of business as giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK and 

Ireland) 550)
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Accounting policies, estimates & judgements

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Revenue recognition  All incoming resources are recognised once the 

Charity has entitlement to the resources, it is 

probable (more likely than not) that the 

resources will be received and the monetary 

value of incoming resources can be measured 

with sufficient reliability.

We have reviewed the revenue recognition policy of the Charity and 

confirm that it is in line with standard recognition policies for the NHS 

Charity sector. We have also confirmed that it is in line with the 

requirements of the FRS 102 Charities SORP.



Green

Judgements and estimates  The Charity’s investment valuation is included in 

the accounts at market value. The valuation is 

based on the latest mid closing price quoted on 

the stock market or by the fund manager.

The estimate is in line with the requirements of the FRS 102

Charities SORP. 

Green

Other accounting policies  The Charity has adopted the standard 

accounting policies for NHS charitable funds. 

 We have reviewed the Charity's policies and do not have any 

comments to make. 

Green

Going Concern  Management have a reasonable expectation 

that the services provided by the Charity will 

continue for the foreseeable future. For this 

reason, they continue to adopt the going 

concern basis in preparing the financial 

statements.

 We are satisfied that the going concern basis is appropriate from 

review of the Charity’s reserves. However, management do not 

complete a formal assessment and we have therefore included a 

recommendation on page 22.



Green

Assessment

 Red - Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators  Amber - Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure

 Green - Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

Audit findings

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies,  and key estimates and judgements made and included 

within the Charity's financial statements.  C
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Other communication requirements

Issue Commentary

1. Matters in relation to fraud  We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Charitable Funds Committee. We have not been made aware of any other 

incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

2. Matters in relation to related 

parties

 From the work we carried out, we have not identified any related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

3. Matters in relation to laws and 

regulations

 You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not 

identified any incidences from our audit work.

4. Written representations  A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Charity.

5. Confirmation requests from 

third parties 

 We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to financial institutions which hold the Charity’s cash and 

investments. This permission was granted and the requests were sent. All of these requests were returned with positive confirmation.

6. Disclosures  Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.

Audit findings

We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards to communicate to those charged with governance.
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Internal controls

Audit findings

"The purpose of an audit is for the auditor to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

Our audit included consideration of internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. 

The matters being reported are limited to those deficiencies that the auditor has identified during 

the audit and that the auditor has concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported 

to those charged with governance." (ISA UK and Ireland 265) 

The controls were found to be operating effectively and we have no matters to report to the Charitable Funds Committee other than the weakness in respect of 

the Journal Control Environment, identified and reported during the 2015/16 audit. Management have actioned the necessary recommendation as set out below.

Internal controls – review of  issues raised in prior year

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue

1. 

✓
 The use of a facility within the General Ledger allowing for 

all journals to be extracted from the ledger and re-

uploaded, diminishing the audit trail with key aspects of 

journal postings being overwritten.

 Recommendation made in January 2017 AFR. 

 We confirmed that the facility had not been used for the final quarter of 2016/17, as 

recommended, but had been used prior to this period. Consequently, additional audit 

procedures were required to allow us to obtain sufficient assurance over journal 

postings. We understand that this function will not be used moving forwards.
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Adjusted misstatements

Audit findings

Detail Statement of Financial 

Activities

£'000

Balance Sheet

£'000

Impact on net 

movement in funds

£000

1 Increase in levy commitments not charged on sub-

accounts

34 (34) 34

2 Grant application under/over commitments (5) 5 (5)

3 Reduction in audit fee (2) 2 (2)

Overall impact £27k Increase in 

Expenditure

(£27k) Increase in 

liabilities

£27k decrease in 

net movement in 

funds

A small number of adjustments to the draft accounts have been identified during the audit process. We are required to report all non-trivial misstatements to those 

charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. The table below summarises the adjustments arising from the audit which 

have been processed by management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net movement in funds. 
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Impact of  unadjusted misstatements in the prior year

Audit findings

Detail Statement of Financial 

Activities

£'000

Balance Sheet

£'000

Reason for not adjusting

1 VAT error on Fibroscan Equipment (18) N/A Item is below materiality

Overall impact (18) N/A
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Misclassifications & disclosure changes

Audit findings

Adjustment type Value

£'000

Account balance Impact on the financial statements

1 Disclosure and 

presentation

N/A N/A A number of minor changes have been made to the financial

statements to improve disclosure and presentation, none of which 

require individual reporting to the Charitable Funds Committee.

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 
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Fees, non-audit services and independence

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

Non- audit services

 No non-audit services were provided to the Charity in 2016/17.

Fees for other services

Service Fees £

None Nil

Fees, non-audit services and independence

Fees

Proposed fee £ Final feel £

Charitable fund audit 4,095.00 4,095.00

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 4,095.00 4,095.00

Independence and ethics

• We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that 

impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or 

wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 

Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and confirm that we 

are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on 

the financial statements.

• We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to 

meet the requirement of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical 

Standards.
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Communication of  audit matters to those charged with governance

Our communication plan

Audit 

Plan

Audit 

Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance

✓

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications

✓

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought

✓

Confirmation of independence and objectivity ✓ ✓

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence. 

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged 

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

✓ ✓

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit ✓

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements

✓

Non compliance with laws and regulations ✓

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter ✓

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions ✓

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties ✓

Significant matters in relation to going concern ✓

International Standards on Auditing ISA (UK&I) 260, as well as other ISAs, prescribe 

matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance, and 

which we set out in the table opposite.  

The Audit Plan outlined our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, while this Audit 

Findings outlines those key issues and other matters arising from the audit, which we 

consider should be communicated in writing rather than orally, together with an 

explanation as to how these have been resolved. .

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISAs (UK and 

Ireland), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged 

with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with 

governance of their responsibilities.

The Audit Findings Report has been prepared in the context of the Statement of 

Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited (http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/).

We have been appointed as the Charity's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a broad remit 

covering finance and governance matters. 

Communication of audit matters
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A. Action plan

Priority

Rec no. Recommendation Priority Management response Implementation date and responsibility

1 Management should prepare a formal going 
concern assessment as part of the process of 
preparing and authorising the Charity’s 
financial statements.

Medium A paper will be brought for consideration by the Charitable 

Funds committee in time for the 2017/18 accounts audit.

Prior to the 2017/18 accounts production 

and audit – Paul Jameson

Controls

 High – Significant effect on control system

 Medium – Effect on control system

 Low – Best practice

Appendices
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B: Audit opinion

We anticipate we will provide the Charity with an unmodified audit report.

We have audited the financial statements of Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals 

NHS Trust Charitable Funds for the year ended 31 March 2017 which comprise 

the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related 

notes . The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 

and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 

Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 

Ireland.

This report is made solely to the charity's corporate trustee, as a body, in accordance with Section 154 

of the Charities Act 2011. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity's 

trustee those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 

the charity and its trustee as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 

formed.

Respective responsibilities of the corporate trustee and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustee’s Responsibilities set out on page 3, the corporate 

trustee is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view. 

We have been appointed as auditor under section 149 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in 

accordance with regulations made under section 154 of that Act. Our responsibility is to audit and 

express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International 

Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing 

Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting 

Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

· give a true and fair view of the state of the charity's affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its incoming

resources and application of resources for the year then ended;

· have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice; and

· have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities Act 2011 requires us to 

report to you if, in our opinion:

· the information given in the Trustee Report is inconsistent in any material respect with the

financial statements; or

· the charity has not kept sufficient accounting records; or

· the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

· we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

To be signed

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor

Royal Liver Building                                                                                                                     

Liverpool                                                                                                                    

L3 1PS

To be dated

Grant Thornton UK LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006

Appendices
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C. Sector developments
Charities Code of Governance 

The governance of  charities has been under public scrutiny for some time 
now. As a result of  this, there have been significant changes in what is 
expected of  charities, their practices, and the legal and regulatory framework 
in which they operate.

The Code of  Good Governance Steering Group has developed a new Code 
in order to assist with strengthening the sector's governance. The new Code 
was published in July 2017 and can be found at 
https://www.charitygovernancecode.org/en/pdf

Charity Commission updates key financial guidance

The Charity Commission updated a key piece of  its financial guidance, 

“Charity finances: Trustee essentials (CC25)” in March 2017.  This guidance 

covers  common areas of  managing charity resources, including internal 

financial controls, reserves, staff  and volunteers.  Although trustees’ legal 

duties regarding financial management haven’t changed, the Commission is 

making a conscious drive to ensure trustees understand their basic financial 

responsibility when running a charity and are best placed to protect their 

charity’s assets and resources.  A wider review of  how the Commission 

supports trustees in this area is ongoing.  

Find CC25 at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/managing-

charity-assets-and-resources-cc25

Charity Commission updates guidance on matters of 

material significance

The Charity Commission has published revised guidance on matters of  

material significance that are reportable to UK charity regulators.  

Auditors and independent examiners of  charities in England and Wales have 

always had a common statutory duty to report matters of  material 

significance to charity regulators. The revised guidance adds two new areas 

for reporting and applies from 1 May 2017:

• If  an auditor has concerns regarding a charity’s accounts and issues a 

modified audit opinion report or qualified independent examiner’s report

• Where an auditor has concerns that conflicts of  interests or related party 

transactions have not been properly managed or declared.

The guidance can be found at: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-for-auditors-and-

independent-examiners-of-charities

“Stronger charities for a stronger society”

The House of  Lords’ Select Committee on Charities have also looked at the 

challenges of  charity governance alongside issues related to sustaining the 

charity sector.  In their findings “Stronger Charities for a Stronger Society”, 

published in March 2017, the Committee comment on aspects of  governance 

relating to the role of  trustees, trustee skills and training, board diversity and 

turnover, executive leadership, payment of  trustees, and transparency, 

accountability and impact of  reporting on finances, governance and impact.  

The Committee calls for “new efforts to provide training and development 

for trustees and recommend that charity boards should undertake greater self-

reflection, examining their behaviours, processes and skills.”  The findings 

also express concerns that lack of  diversity among trustees may limit the 

experience and knowledge of  charity boards. To review the findings, visit: 

https://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/ld201617/ldselect/ldchar/133/1

33.pdf

Appendices
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C. Sector developments (continued)
Charity Information Sheet 1: Implementation Issues 

The Charity Commission published Information sheet 1: Implementation in 

April 2017. This information sheet provides some clarification on a number 

of  implementation issues which charities may have encountered on 

transition to FRS 102/Charities SORP (FRS 102). 

The information sheet provides some useful clarification on a number of  

implementation matters  which may be relevant to your charity’s 

circumstances. Some of  the areas where clarification has been provided 

have been noted below:

 the criteria for an exemption from preparing a cash flow statement in the 

individual accounts of  a qualifying entity

 fundraising disclosure requirements 

 treatment of  funding ‘clawed’ back by funders

 exemptions from disclosure of  the names of  related parties under certain 

conditions

 key management personnel remuneration – the inclusion of  employers 

NIC as part of  employee benefits 

For further details please review the information sheet which can be found 

at http://www.charitysorp.org/about-the-sorp/helpsheets/

Triennial review of FRS 102 – FRED 67

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has published its proposals in 

Financial Reporting Exposure Draft (FRED) 67 as a result of  the triennial 

review of  FRS 102. The principal amendments proposed are simplifications 

designed to make it more cost-effective to apply FRS 102. 

The FRC expects to finalise the amendments to FRS 102 in December 2017. 

The proposals are expected to be effective for accounting periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2019. 

For more details on the triennial review of  FRS 102 visit this link: 
https://www.frc.org.uk/News-and-Events/FRC-

Press/Press/2017/March/Triennial-review-results-in-simplifications-propos.aspx

Appendices

C
ha

rit
ab

le
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

-
A

pp
 B

Page 195 of 218



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP / Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Funds / Audit Findings Report 
2016/17

26

C. Sector developments (continued)
New data protection regime

Eleven charities were fined by the Information Commissioner’s Office 

(ICO) in April 2017 for misuse of  donors’ personal data.  The nature of  the 

breaches included screening of  donors to target them for additional funds, 

piecing together personal information of  donors from other sources, and 

trading personal details with other charities.  The charities were investigated 

by the ICO as part of  a wider operation arising from media reports on 

repeated and significant pressure on donors.  

The Charity Commission is assessing whether the trustees of  these charities 

have acted in accordance with their duties under charity law.  The 

Commission’s guidance on fundraising makes it clear that trustees need to 

understand and comply with the relevant data protection laws and 

requirements.  The ICO website has detailed guidance on the rules around 

data sharing and marketing. 

The General Data Protection Regulation will introduce significantly higher 

maximum fines for non-compliance with data protection requirements. All 

organisations will be under greater obligations to provide assurance to their 

board, senior management committees, customers and regulators that their 

data protection processes and procedures are fit for purpose.

We are helping our clients to obtain the assurance they need and to explain 

what good data protection practices look like.  For more information, 

contact your Grant Thornton advisor.

New Charities Act 2016 – impact on fundraising 

The Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Bill received Royal Assent in 

March 2016 and is now an Act of  Parliament ('the Act'). The Act has 

elements which will apply to both registered and exempt charities. The main 

areas of  impact in terms of  fundraising for charities are as follows:

• new terms to be added to written agreements between charities and 

professional fundraisers/commercial participators

• additional reporting about fundraising in a charity’s annual report 

(reporting requirements apply to accounting periods beginning on or after 

1 November 2016).  

The Charity Commission guidance 'Charity fundraising: a guide to trustee 

duties (CC20)' covers the new reporting requirements introduced by the Act. 

See link: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/charities-and-

fundraising-cc20

Appendices

C
ha

rit
ab

le
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

-
A

pp
 B

Page 196 of 218



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP / Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Funds / Audit Findings Report 
2016/17

27

C. Sector developments (continued)

Revised ISAs 

Detailed below is a summary of the key changes impacting the auditor’s report for audits of financial statement for periods commencing on or after 17 June 2016:

Section of the auditor's report Description of the requirements

Additional responsibilities for directors and the auditor Under the revised ISAs we will include the respective responsibilities for directors and us, as auditors, regarding going concern.

Conclusions relating to going concern We will be required to conclude and report whether:

• the charity’s use of going concern basis of accounting is appropriate 

• identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the charity’s ability to continue as a going concern have been disclosed

Material uncertainty related to going concern, which 

replaces conclusions relating to going concern when a 

material uncertainty is identified and disclosed

We will need to include a brief description of the events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the charity's ability to continue 

as a going concern when material uncertainty has been identified and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. This will no longer be 

reported in an Emphasis of Matter section

Other information We will be required to include a section on other information which includes:

• responsibilities of management and auditors regarding other information

• a statement that the opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information unless required by law or regulation

• reporting  whether inconsistencies or misstatements where identified

Format of the report There will be some changes to the format of the auditor’s report and, in particular, the opinion section will appear first, followed by the basis of 

opinion section

This document is prepared solely for Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Funds and should be read in its entirety.  Grant Thornton UK LLP does not owe a duty of care or assume a 

responsibility to any third party who chooses to rely on any of the information contained in this document.  Any third party who relies on this information does so entirely at their own risk.
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grant-thornton.co.uk
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TITLE: Safe Staffing December 2017  AUTHOR: Colin Hont 

FOCUSED REVIEW: REFERENCE INFORMATION 
Purpose of paper Key facts 
y For assurance 

 
Sponsor: Lisa Grant – Chief Nurse / Chief Operations Officer 

      To note 
 For decision (insert funding source if financial 

implications).  
Service line affected: Trust 

  Date of board meeting to discuss this paper: 
30 January 2018 

      

  Security marking:  None 
  Please note, this report could be subject to FoI disclosure 

Other forums where this has/will be discussed:  JCG. Perfect ward meetings.  
(Please see appendix for details of full audit trail of this paper) 

Has this paper considered the following?                                                                                                           [Please tick all that apply] 

Key stakeholders: Our compliance with: 
Yes. ☐ Patients Yes Regulators (CCG/TDA, Monitor, CQC etc) 

Yes. Staff Yes. Legal frameworks (HSE, NHS Constitution etc.) 

☐ Other (Students, Community, other HCPs) ☐ Equality, diversity & human rights 
 

Have we considered opportunity & risk in the following areas?                       

Y. Clinical ☐ Financial  Y Reputation  
State: Safe staffing levels.   State: Published in the public domain. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

1. STRATEGIC CONTEXT                    

Since May 2014 the Trust has been mandated to provide monthly safe staffing reports. These reports must fulfill the 

requirements of the National Quality Board (NQB) recommendations for publishing safe staffing figures. The Trust must 

also provide bi annual acuity reviews to accompany this paper. New guidance was issued by NQB in July 2016 and the 

organization is compliant with the recommendations set out within this.  

 

2. QUESTION(S) ADDRESSED IN THIS REPORT                                      

The purpose of this paper is to provide the board with assurance regarding staffing levels and fill rates in the month of 

December 2017 and to highlight any potential risks associated with nurse staffing. The fill rate is based on the skill mix 

for each ward. The skill mix has been agreed following an acuity studies that take place in February and July of each 

year.  

 

 

3. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION                                  

The Board is asked to note this report and the work taking place, which in turn will improve the overall safe staffing 

position.
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TITLE: Safe Staffing December 2017  AUTHOR: Colin Hont 

 

MAIN REPORT: 

 
1. National Picture and External Reporting 
 
Since the publication of the National Quality Board’s guidance, entitled ‘How to ensure the right people 
with the right skills are in the right place at the right time’, sponsored by Jane Cummings, Chief 
Nursing Officer in England, the Trust have undertaken a significant amount of work to ensure each of the 
expectations set out are met. 
 
The publication provided guidance and structure to Trusts in responding to the recommendations contained 
within the Governments ‘Hard Truths’ report which was a direct response to the Mid Staffordshire NHS 
Foundations Trust Public Inquiry (February 2013). 
 
In July 2016, the National Quality Board (NQB) published further guidance “Supporting NHS providers to 
deliver the right staff, with the right skills, in the right place at the right time: Safe, sustainable and 
productive staffing”. This safe staffing improvement resource provided an updated set of expectations for 
nursing and midwifery care staffing, to help NHS provider boards make local decisions that will support the 
delivery of high quality care for patients within the available staffing resource.  
 
This publication: 
 

• set out the key principles and tools that provider boards should use to measure and improve their use of 
staffing resources to ensure safe, sustainable and productive service, including introducing the new 
metric care hours per patient day (CHPPD) 

• identified three updated NQB expectations that form a ‘triangulated’ approach (‘Right Staff, Right Skills, 
Right Place and Time’) to staffing decisions 

• offered guidance for local providers on using other measures of quality, alongside CHPPD, to 
understand how staff capacity may affect the quality of care. 

 
In December 2017, the Trust received results of an audit undertaken by MIAA, our auditors. 
 
The overall objective of this review was to assess the adequacy of controls in place for the establishment of 
rotas and to ensure staff are only paid for work completed at the Trust. 
 
The specific sub objectives that were covered identified: 
 

• Clear and up to date policies and procedures are in place in relation to the rostering system and 
roles and responsibilities are clearly defined; 

• Appropriate access controls are in place to ensure that all standing data is secure, all amendments 
to data are made by authorised individuals and an audit trail is maintained; 

• Rotas/Rosters are completed on timely basis by appropriate individuals taking into account skill mix, 
annual/study leave, sickness and these are appropriately reviewed and approved; 

• Rotas/Rosters are in place and amendments to rotas are appropriately recorded and approved prior 
to input onto payroll system on a timely basis; and 

• Robust performance monitoring processes are in place and action taken where required. 
 
 

S
af

e 
S

ta
ffi

ng

Page 204 of 218



RLBUHT BOARD PACK

 
 

Page 2 of 10 

 

TITLE: Safe Staffing December 2017  AUTHOR: Colin Hont 

The outcome of this comprehensive audit was SIGNIFICANT ASSURANCE.  
 

2. Results for the month of December 
 

Of the 43 areas reviewed [the remit is for every inpatient designated ward to be included] there were 27 
areas who had less than 80% fill rates identified across at least one shift [Day or Night], which is an 
increase to last month, when we reported 20. Ward 2ADU, an intermediate care and reablement ward, has 
been included in this month’s report.  
 

Site 

 
Day 

 
Night 

 

  
Average fill rate - 
registered nurses  

Average fill rate - 
care staff  

Average fill rate - 
registered nurses  

Average fill rate 
- care staff  

BGH  84.59% 77.40% 92.06% 92.26% 

RLH 84.27% 96.97% 91.08% 121.88% 

Trust total 84.43% 87.18% 91.57% 107.07% 

 
The table overleaf, breaks down the fill rate by grade of staff by day and night duty, as recommended by 
NQB. Quality indicators are included within the Ward Quality Dashboard along with the number of red flags 
raised, staffing incidents reported and the Care Hours Per Patient Day metric. 
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Sickness absence target = 4.52% 

Regis tered 

midwives/nurses
Care Staff

Regis tered 

midwives/nurses
Care Staff

No. Datix 

staffing 

incidents

Total  

monthly 

planned 

s taff hours

Tota l  

monthly 

actual  

s taff hours

Tota l  

monthly 

planned 

s taff hours

Tota l  

monthly 

actual  

s taff hours

Average fi l l  rate - 

regis tered 

nurses/midwives   

(%)

Average 

fi l l  rate - 

care s taff 

(%)

Tota l  

monthly 

planned 

s taff hours

Tota l  

monthly 

actual  

s taff hours

Tota l  

monthly 

planned 

s taff hours

Tota l  

monthly 

actual  

s taff hours

Average fi l l  rate - 

regis tered 

nurses/midwives   

(%)

Average 

fi l l  rate - 

care s taff 

(%)

1627.5 1240.5 1627.5 1985.5 76.2% 122.0% 876.06 605.11 584.04 1038.08 69.1% 177.7% 3.8 2.9 3.4 4.7 7.2 7.5 0 0 1 16.21% 1 0

2092.5 1592.5 1395 1422.5 76.1% 102.0% 1426 1093.5 713 1001.5 76.7% 140.5% 3.7 3.0 2.2 2.7 5.9 5.7 5 5 5 10.52% 1 0

1007.5 978 1007.5 937 97.1% 93.0% 775 775 387.5 387.5 100.0% 100.0% 4.4 4.4 3.5 3.3 7.9 7.7 0 0 1 3.52% 1 0

1395 1030.5 1395 1036.5 73.9% 74.3% 620 690 620 713 111.3% 115.0% 3.4 3.0 3.4 3.1 6.8 6.1 4 4 2 3.96% 0 0

1542.5 1342.5 1132.5 1231 87.0% 108.7% 971.85 651.9 647.9 644.45 67.1% 99.5% 3.5 2.8 2.5 2.6 6.0 5.4 2 2 0 11.44% 2 1.5

2342.5 2142 1886.5 1952.5 91.4% 103.5% 1333 1333 620 1130 100.0% 182.3% 4.0 3.7 2.7 3.3 6.6 7.1 3 3 2 1.26% 0 1.5

1395 1267.5 1395 1380 90.9% 98.9% 620 620 930 920 100.0% 98.9% 5.4 5.1 6.3 6.2 11.7 11.3 3 3 1 9.92% 0 1

2247.5 1915 1550 1182 85.2% 76.3% 1333 1333 666.5 666.5 100.0% 100.0% 4.6 4.3 2.9 2.5 7.5 6.8 0 0 0 9.60% 0 1

2325 1621 2325 2034.5 69.7% 87.5% 876.06 838.38 584.04 725.34 95.7% 124.2% 3.6 2.9 3.2 3.2 6.8 6.1 11 11 10 13.19% 1.5 0.5

2247.5 2079 1162.5 1094 92.5% 94.1% 1302 1259 651 654.5 96.7% 100.5% 4.6 4.5 2.3 2.3 6.9 6.8 0 0 5 7.03% 0 1

1860 1771.5 1627.3 1564.5 95.2% 96.1% 1063.5 724 713 1038 68.1% 145.6% 3.9 3.4 3.1 3.5 7.1 6.9 2 2 0 8.99% 2 0.5

1552.5 1425.5 1162.5 1179 91.8% 101.4% 883.5 713 589 770.5 80.7% 130.8% 4.1 3.6 3.0 3.3 7.1 6.9 0 0 0 8.10% 2 0

1860 1209 1162.5 950 65.0% 81.7% 666.5 719.6 666.5 867.4 108.0% 130.1% 3.9 3.0 2.8 2.8 6.7 5.8 1 1 1 14.23% 1 0

2790 2207.5 1162.5 1268.5 79.1% 109.1% 1767 1524 713 981.5 86.2% 137.7% 5.3 4.3 2.2 2.6 7.4 6.9 3 3 4 4.42% 0 2

1860 1410 1162.5 1169.33 75.8% 100.6% 876.06 734.42 584.04 1068.28 83.8% 182.9% 3.8 2.9 2.4 3.0 6.3 5.9 1 1 1 8.98% 2 0.5

2092.5 1658.5 1627.5 1922.5 79.3% 118.1% 1147 1063.5 573.5 1289 92.7% 224.8% 3.4 2.9 2.3 3.4 5.7 6.2 6 6 4 2.92% 1 2

1302 1216.5 1069.5 1271.5 93.4% 118.9% 1069.5 736 713 1009 68.8% 141.5% 3.1 2.5 2.3 2.9 5.4 5.5 3 3 1 4.93% 1 1.5

930 923 1395 1140 99.2% 81.7% 744 742 744 728.25 99.7% 97.9% na na na na na na 1 1 0 1

2232.5 2104.7 1011 993 94.3% 98.2% 1316 1227 676 700.5 93.2% 103.6% 4.6 4.5 2.2 2.3 6.8 6.8 3 3 3 4.96% 0 1

4185 4042.5 930 802.5 96.6% 86.3% 2929.5 2719.5 651 472.5 92.8% 72.6% 16.4 18.0 3.6 3.4 20.0 21.4 0 0 3 7.29% 0 0

2577.5 2557.5 1570 1690.5 99.2% 107.7% 1596.5 1452.5 976.5 1049.5 91.0% 107.5% 3.7 3.8 2.3 2.6 6.0 6.4 2 2 1 5.14% 2 0

1860 1548 1162.5 1009 83.2% 86.8% 999.75 698.75 665 706 69.9% 106.2% 3.7 3.0 2.4 2.3 6.0 5.2 0 0 0 14.94% 1 2

1552.5 1295.5 465 371 83.4% 79.8% 596.75 713 111 60 119.5% 54.1% 5.0 5.9 1.3 1.3 6.3 7.2 0 0 0 3.19% 1 0

1069.5 1146.5 401.5 409 107.2% 101.9% 713 713 184 253 100.0% 137.5% 11.5 14.1 3.8 5.0 15.3 19.1 0 0 0 0.56% 1 0

1860 1214.25 1395 1975 65.3% 141.6% 1069.5 734.16 713 1203.92 68.6% 168.9% 4.1 3.1 3.0 5.0 7.1 8.1 2 2 1 10.74% 0 0

1417.5 1285 660 527.5 90.7% 79.9% 620 620 310 290 100.0% 93.5% 4.1 4.5 2.0 1.9 6.1 6.5 1 1 0 0.00% 0 1

10230 7800 930 796 76.2% 85.6% 7161 6237 651 262.5 87.1% 40.3% 29.5 27.4 2.7 2.1 32.2 29.5 0 0 2 5.38% 0 0

1350 1500 465 292.5 111.1% 62.9% 976.5 955.5 0 0 97.8% #DIV/0! 18.8 24.3 3.8 2.9 22.5 27.2 0 0 0 3.84% 0 0

1395 1029 930 630 73.8% 67.7% 651 713 325.5 356.5 109.5% 109.5% 4.4 3.7 2.7 2.1 7.1 5.9 0 0 0 3.53% 1 0

5272.5 4088 2325 1998 77.5% 85.9% 2920.2 3280 1168.08 1325.5 112.3% 113.5% 8.5 7.1 3.6 3.2 12.2 10.3 3 3 0 4.74% 1.5 0

8370 6522 2790 1851 77.9% 66.3% 5890 5048 1860 1520 85.7% 81.7% na na na na na na 2 2 1 8.90% 1 3

2495.5 2339.1 713 623 93.7% 87.4% 1782.5 1748 713 632.5 98.1% 88.7% 8.1 8.0 2.7 2.5 10.8 10.4 0 0 0 5.04% 0 1

1170 1074.5 1162.5 990 91.8% 85.2% 620 620 310 288 100.0% 92.9% 3.8 4.1 3.2 3.1 7.0 7.3 0 0 4
0.00%

0 0

547.3 547.3 254.6 254.6 100.0% 100.0% 96.85 96.85 96.85 96.85 100.0% 100.0% 2.6 6.9 1.4 3.8 4.0 10.7 0 0 0
6.90%

0 0

848.5 677.5 593.5 494.5 79.8% 83.3% 420 378 210 115.5 90.0% 55.0% 3.1 5.3 2.0 3.1 5.1 8.4 0 0 0
1.85%

0 0

1972.9 1207 1042.5 781.5 61.2% 75.0% 976.5 688.5 325.5 357 70.5% 109.7% 3.4 4.0 1.6 2.4 5.0 6.4 0 0 0
5.40%

0 0

1395 1207 1627.5 1040.5 86.5% 63.9% 589 589 589 589 100.0% 100.0% 3.0 3.0 3.4 2.7 6.5 5.7 0 0 0
14.01%

0 0

RLU 

Theatres/

Recovery 7524 7146.25 2364.5 1942.75 95.0% 82.2% 1364 1408 341 286 103.2% 83.9% na na na na na na 0 0 4

Average of 

a l l  (4.68%)

BGH 

Theatres/

Recovery 4273.75 5034 1123.5 1253.75 117.8% 111.6% 368 299 0 0 81.3% #DIV/0! na na na na na na 0 0 0

Average of 

a l l  (4.46%)

Ward 3 

BGH 687.5 730 525 503.5 106.2% 95.9% 420 409.5 210 199.5 97.5% 95.0% 2.6 5.5 1.7 3.4 4.2 8.8 0 0 0

7.86%

0 0

Ward 9 

BGH 1395 1325.5 1860 1367 95.0% 73.5% 584.01 584.04 876.06 668.82 100.0% 76.3% 2.7 2.9 3.7 3.1 6.3 6.0 0 0 1

7.90%

0 0

Ward 11 

BGH 1162.5 995.5 1860 1476.5 85.6% 79.4% 581.25 581.25 581.25 636.45 100.0% 109.5% 2.4 2.4 3.4 3.2 5.9 5.6 2 2 2 0.00% 1
Fra i l ty 

Unit 1069.5 1023.5 1069.5 1033 95.7% 96.6% 713 713 713 713 100.0% 100.0% 4.1 4.0 4.1 4.0 8.2 8.0 0 0 0 11.91% 1 1
60 60 60 6.88% 0.5 0.5

Care Hours  Per Patient (CHPPD)

Actual  

Regis tered 

midwives/ 

nurses

Actual  

Care Staff

Actual  

Overa l l

Planned 

Regis tered 

midwives/ 

nurses

Planned 

Care Staff

Planned 

Overa l l

Ward Quality 

Dashboard 

November 

2017

Ward Quality 

Dashboard 

December 

2017

Red Flag 

raised

Red Flag 

responded

Sickness and 

Absence

Day Night Night

Regis tered 

midwives/nurses
Care Staff

Regis tered 

midwives/nurses
Care Staff

Day
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3. Red Flag Process  
In July 2014, NICE published guidance setting out ‘red flag events’ which warn when nurses in 

charge of shifts must act immediately to ensure they have enough staff to meet the needs of 

patients on that ward. 

This process was quickly adopted by the Trust in order to further enhance ways in which staff could 

escalate staffing concerns and a policy was developed along with a range of materials to remind 

staff as to when they ought to raise a red flag. These are the measures used for every member of 

nursing staff to take when a ward/departmental area is deemed unsafe and it is important to 

highlight that the definition of unsafe is made by the registered nurse using the red flag indicators as 

a guideline, alongside their professional judgement.  

For the month of December, 60 red flag incidents were raised, all 60 were responded to, and each 

of the events that occurred were regarding night duty or weekends shifts. Out of the 60 calls, 100% 

were in relation to any situation where, based on professional judgment, patient care was deemed 

unsafe, for example unfilled close observations, or patient acuity and dependency were high. Each 

of the nurse staffing red flags responded to, led to a clinical review of the area by the Duty Manager 

and staff were redeployed if deemed necessary.  

It is to be noted, that there has been an increase in the number of red flags raised this month. 
However, significant work has taken place to promote this process, in order to ensure any staff 
concerns in relation to staffing can be addressed in a prompt manner and appropriate support 
offered if deemed necessary. Equally, responses and actions taken further to red flags being raised 
are captured to ensure appropriate measures were taken to determine clinical areas safe. 
 
Further analysis has confirmed that a high proportion of red flags were raised over the long weekend 
periods during Christmas. This was potentially due to the staffing huddles taking place prior to the 
long weekend in order to address short falls and plan staffing accordingly with the duty managers 
tasked with adjusting staff as gaps were identified, as opposed to using the huddle process in real 
time.  
 
As a result, the senior team have strengthened the matron cover over the weekend periods with a 
plan to undertake a huddle with ward managers / shift coordinators to respond to any staffing 
shortfalls in a prompt manner, without staff having to rely on the red flag process to escalate staffing 
concerns. Bank Holiday planning will also include arrangements for the staffing huddles going 
forward, to ensure appropriate steps are taken in responding to unexpected gaps in a timely 
manner. 
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4. CHPPD (Care Hours Per Patient Day) 
A piece of work has been undertaken to profile CHPPD locally, by setting out an expected CHPPD 

metric / range from which to work for each ward and department and in turn, offer assurance that 

this recommended establishment / level has been realised.  

This way, the dashboard will move away from simply focusing on planned versus actual hours 

worked but provide a more sensitive range of metrics which take bed occupancy and professional 

judgement into consideration. These are now routinely reported within the dashboard (illustrated on 

Page 2)   

5. Datix Staffing Incidents 
 
For the month of December, there were a total of 60 datix incidents reported in relation to staffing, 
which is an increase to last month’s figure of 18. Work is ongoing to ensure that staff complete a 
staffing datix when they raise a red flag call, which may explain the increase of reported incidents for 
December.  
 
One of the areas that reported a higher number of incidents was 2YASU (Stroke Unit). During 
December they had a higher number of patients requiring close observation and patient acuity was 
also higher than usual. Sickness levels for this area for December were also elevated at 13.19%.  
 
Information gathered from the remaining datix incidents indicate that incident themes remained the 
same which were: 
 

• Unfilled close observation requests 

• Shortfall of staffing levels due to short term sickness 
 

In order to triangulate the information relating to patient safety incidents across the organisation, our 
next acuity and dependency audit will examine incidents reported and level of harms, in order to 
determine any linkage between recorded staffing levels and clinical risk. This audit is due to 
commence at the beginning of February and in turn, is expected to be reported to board in April, 
once the analysis of the data has been undertaken.  
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It is important to outline, however, that staffing provision is always considered with each root cause 
analysis investigation undertaken as part of our clinical risk processes, to determine / inform future 
plans. All incidents / root cause analyses findings are also shared at the weekly patient safety 
meeting or patient safety sub-committee (if serious in nature). 
 
6. Exception Report 
 
The following areas have been highlighted due to falling below the 80% staffing trajectory set 
internally by the trust, whilst also falling beneath the requirements set out in the Ward Quality 
Dashboard (a score of 2.5 or more). The Chief Nurse will monitor these areas with the senior team, 
although routinely meets with Ward Managers to discuss performance and provide additional 
support as required.  
 
Emergency Department 

The unit has reported a low fill rate for both registered and unregistered staff on day duty, although 

sickness is higher than trajectory at 8.9% and is being managed with HR support. The department 

does have a number of vacancies and there has been a recruitment event held recently with new 

staff awaiting start dates. The department reported x2 red flags calls for December and both of 

these calls were responded to with staff being sent to the department for support from other areas. 

There was only 1 reported staffing datix incident completed during this time. The Quality score has 

increased to 3 for the month of December; the unit reported 1 fall and a route cause analysis is 

being completed and support given by the specialist team regarding training. For their Quality 

Indicator check the unit scored Red, with improvements needed in the daily resuscitation and 

medication fridge checks. 

 

7. Financial Impact  
The senior team recently introduced a new approach to review nursing provision within each clinical 
area, so as to understand how staffing shortfalls may impact on ward / departmental budgets as a 
result of bank, agency or overtime being utilised to back fill gaps.  
 
In conjunction with finance and HR, the senior management team facilitate regular scrutiny meetings 
to discuss nurse staffing spend with managers and identify ways in which this can be managed 
within budget. Additionally, review of bank and agency useage now routinely takes place at regular 
intervals. 
 
These meetings provide an opportunity to engage with ward / departmental managers and use a 
standardised data set to present a position in relation to the following areas: 
 

• Advance roster completion 

• Sickness 

• Annual Leave allocation 

• Study Leave allocation 

• Special and Maternity Leave allocation 

• Overtime use and reasons 

• Additional / Plain time use and reasons 

• Bank usage 

• Agency usage 
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• Vacancies and recruitment plans 

• Budget allocation and impact  

• Timeliness of roster production and verification 
 
One to one specials continue to be the most common reason for additional monies being spent on 
nurse staffing and further to a new process being introduced, to authorise specials in a different way 
and adopt a tool to determine what resource is required, a reduction in agency nursing spend for this 
purpose has been recognised. 
 
To ensure a standardised approach to reviewing nursing workforce utilisation, the senior team have 
engaged with the Operational Productivity team at NHSI, to take part in the ‘Nursing Deep Dive 
Improvement Programme’, focusing on optimising rosters and therefore supporting the delivery of a 
reduction in cost per care hours.  
 
This project offers a six month programme of support to improve rostering processes and to 
integrate principles of NHS Improvements Good Rostering Guide, published in 2016, whilst also 
supporting the implementation of The Carter Recommendations. 
 
KPI metrics for trained nursing and health care assistants will be submitted to NHSI on a monthly 
basis and NHSI will, in turn, send the Trust a refreshed monthly dashboard to illustrate strengths 
and areas for improvement. As part of the staffing report, this dashboard will be included in order to 
demonstrate the staffing position and any progress made.  
 
From the nursing scrutiny meetings established however, it is important to note that outside of this 
project a ‘deep dive’ approach is currently being adopted locally with action taken where processes 
can be strengthened or improved within each ward or departmental area. Areas of best practice are 
also shared in order to support managers accordingly. 
 
 

8. Leadership development  

 
Effective nursing leadership is considered to be essential in being able to deliver high quality care 
and the Trust have supported a range of initiatives and programmes to ensure our nurse leaders are 
supported and offered development as required. 
 
Regular Ward Manager Time Out sessions are planned throughout the year to focus on the nursing 
agendas, both locally and nationally, in order to discuss approaches and ways of introducing the 
latest recommendations or guidance. 
 
Each manager also now attends a regular nursing scrutiny meeting, to understand the reasons for 
local budget pressures and an opportunity to develop plans in a supportive manner with the senior 
nursing team, finance and HR. 
 
The Chief Nurse has recently offered a nurse to represent the organisation at the Chief Nursing 
Officer conference in the spring, to participate in discussions as a local leader but to also understand 
the wider nursing agenda and the impact this may have in future. 
 
All managers are invited to a one to one with the chief nurse to discuss a wide range of factors, 
including current staffing establishments, acuity and dependency and approaches to promoting 
quality within their particular area. The senior team will ofter provide enhanced input to clinical areas 
if quality assessments or patient / staff feedback suggests improvement can be made and listening 
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weeks are often held in order to understand any challenges or positive work which could be 
disseminated further. 
 
  
9. Therapies Staffing Pressures 
Recruitment 
 
Physiotherapy 
 Estab 

wte 
wte 
Vacancies 

wte 
Maternity 

wte LT 
sick 

Recruitment Vacancy Rate 

B5 37.00      

B6 46.11 2.5 4.0  1post recruited into 
start date tbc 
1 post submitted for 
approval to recruit 

 

B7 35.45 2.24 2.1  Reviewing vacancy 
with LCH 

 

B8a 14.79 3.94   Recruitment declined 
(2.94) 

 

Total 133.35 8.64 6.1   6.5% 

 
Occupational Therapy 
 Estab 

wte 
wte 
vacancies 

Wte 
maternity 

Wte LT 
sick 

Recruitment Vacancy Rate 

B5 23.0      

B6 18.40 1.1 1.0    

B7 16.69 1.0 1.8  Reviewing vacancy 
with LCH 

 

B8A 2.31      

Total 60.40 2.1 2.8   3.5% 

 
Speech and Language Therapy 
 Estab 

wte 
Wte 
vacancies 

Wte 
maternity 

Wte LT 
sick 

Recruitment Vacancy Rate 

B3 1.0      

B4 2.0 1.0   Recruited start date 
tbc 

 

B5 3.0 1.0   Recruited start date 
tbc 

 

B6 4.2      

B7 4.2  3.6    

B8a 1.93 0.5 0.4  Under review  

Total 15.33 2.5 4.0   16.3% 

 
Dietetics 
 Estab 

wte 
Wte 
vacancies 

Wte 
maternity 

Wte LT 
sick 

Recruitment Vacancy Rate 

B3 2.17      

B5 5.0 1.0   Recruiting 
commenced 

 

B6 8.55 0.8 0.9 1.0 Waiting for approval 
to recruit into 
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B7 13.76      

B8a 1.0      

Total 30.48 1.8 0.9 1.0  5.9% 

 
Podiatry 
 Estab 

wte 
Wte 
Vacancies 

Wte 
Maternity 

Wte LT 
sick 

Recruitment  Vacancy Rate 

B3 1.0   1.0   

B6 1.0      

B7 2.1      

B8A 1.0      

Total 4.0   1.0  0% 

 
Therapy Assistants 
 Estab  

wte 
Wte vacancies Wte 

maternity 
Wte LT 
sick 

Recruitment Vacancy Rate 

B2 1.0      

B2 
(Housekee
per) 

2.0 2.0   Recruited into awaiting 
pre employment checks 

 

B3 31.35      

B4 12.8      

Total 47.15 2.0    4.24% 

  
Admin and Clerical 
 Estab 

wte 
Wte 
vacancies 

Wte 
maternity 

Wte LT  
sick 

Recruitment  Vacancy Rate 

B2 17.26 0.75   Under review  

B3 4.36      

B4 9.8      

B5 0.43      

Total 31.85 0.75    2.3% 

 
There were 3.6 wte Band 3 therapy assistants’ vacancies, but this service has since been reviewed, 
and approval has been given to recruit at Band 2, which have been filled and currently all 
employment checks are being completed.  
 
Due to the Band 8a Physiotherapists posts being vacant, there is added pressure within the MCAS 
service. Therefore, funding is currently being sought from the CCG and an update will be given in 
next months’ staffing report.  
 
There is long term sickness within the podiatry team (band 3); work within this department is being 
outsourced leading to increased cost and time. 
 
As within nursing, monthly recruitment events are taking place and a recruitment strategy has been 
introduced to use a wide range of initiatives to promote working within the Trust. Attendance at Job 
Fayres has been undertaken in recent months and the communications team are currently 
supporting the senior nursing team to refresh the initiative adopted at the start of the year, to 
promote working in the new hospital and the opportunities this brings.  
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BOARD ETIQUETTE & CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

• Mutual trust & respect 

• Honesty 

• Commitment to: 
➢ Attending meetings 
➢ Reading briefings & papers 
➢ Arriving on time 
➢ Participating wholeheartedly 
➢ Submitting papers of high quality and uniformity for 

consideration before deadlines expire 
 

• Determination, tolerance & sensitivity 

• Rigorous & challenging questioning, tempered by respect 

• Tolerance of diverse points of view, new ideas, different perspectives, 
embrace diversity  
 

• Remember, you too were inexperienced in Board process & procedures at 
one time, therefore, help, assist & embrace new members of the Board, or 
persons in attendance or supporting the Board, to establish their role for the 
mutual benefit of the Trust 
 

• Avoid giving offence – ready to apologise 
 

• Avoid taking offence – stay open to discussion 
 

• Group support – sensitive to colleagues’ need for support when challenging or 
being challenged 
 

• Group to ensure no one becomes isolated in expressing their view 
 

• All ideas treated with respect 
 

• Confidentiality – candid, not secret 
 

• Making the most of time, support the Chair, colleagues and guests in making 
best use of time to maximise scope & variety of viewpoints heard  
 

• Ensure time is well used and individual points are relevant and short 
 

• Allow time for review of performance of each session; did we use our 
resources well; who else should have been here? 
 

• Strive to continuously improve the quality of paperwork, content of papers, 
administration of Board meetings 
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Acronym Term Definition 

 95th percentile The 95th percentile shows the result for 95% of patients. 

 Absenteeism % working days lost due to staff sickness. 

A&E Accident & Emergency 
Department 

Assesses and treats patients with serious injuries or illnesses. 

 Accountability The requirement to report and explain performance 

 Active pathway  

AMI Acute myocardial infarctions Commonly known as a heart attack. 

AEDB Accident & Emergency 
Delivery Board 

 

AHP Allied health professionals  

 Block patients  

BAF Board Assurance 
Framework 

A register of the major strategic risks to the Trust and what is being 
done to manage them. 

BMT Bone marrow 
transplantation 

A bone marrow transplant is a procedure that involves replacing 
damaged bone marrow with healthy bone marrow stem cells. 

CAS Central Alerting System Provides safety alerts. 

CAUTIs Catheter Associated Urinary 
Tract Infections 

Urinary tract infections (UTIs) which are associated with the use of a 
urinary catheter. 

CCG Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

CCGs are groups of GPs that will, from April 2013, be responsible for 
commissioning/buying local health and care services. 

CCSS Core Clinical Support 
Services 

CPE is the name given to a group of bacteria that have become very 
resistant to antibiotics. Many of these bacteria usually live harmlessly 
in the gut of humans or that of animals and help to digest food. 
However, if they get into the wrong place such as the bladder or 
bloodstream they can cause infection. 

CDT Clostridium Difficile Toxin 
infection 

Clostridium difficile infection is reported, based on detection of CDT 
that includes all samples except those where the patient has already 
been diagnosed in the previous four weeks. Measured as an absolute 
number of trust-attributable cases against an agreed trajectory. 

CLRN Comprehensive Local 
Research Network 

25 CLRNs cover the whole of England by region. They coordinate and 
facilitate the conduct of clinical research. 

CPE Carbapenemase-producing 
Enterobacteriaceae 

 

CQC Care Quality Commission The Care Quality Commission (CQC) regulates all health and adult social 
care services in England. 

CQUIN Commissioning for Quality 
and Innovation 

 

 Day cases An elective patient admitted during the course of a day for treatment 
that does not require the use of a hospital bed overnight. 

DNAs Did Not Attends Outpatient appointments where the patient failed to attend. 

DoH Department of Health  

DVT Deep Vein Thrombosis Deep vein thrombosis (DVT) is a blood clot in a major vein that usually 
develops in the legs and/or pelvis. 

EBITDA Earnings before interest, 
tax, depreciation and 
amortisation 

A measure of the performance of the “underlying business” ie 
surplus/deficit from day to day operations. 

 EBITDA margin This compares the actual EBITDA to the income achieved. 

   

 Elective patients Patients for whom a procedure is performed by choice and planned. 

ECIST Emergency Care Intensive  
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Support Team 

EDMS Electronic Document 
Management System 

 

EPS Electronic Prescription 
Service 

 

ESBL Extended Spectrum Beta-
Lactamase 

The number of Trust attributes ESBL (Extended Spectrum Beta-
Lactamase) bloodstream infections reported, measured as an absolute 
number against an agreed trajectory. 
 

FT Foundation Trust  

FY Full Year  

GMC General Medical Council A body to protect promote and maintain the health and safety of the 
public by ensuring proper standards in the practice of medicine. 
 

 Global trigger tool  

H&S Health & Safety  

HCA Health Care Assistant  

HRG Healthcare Resource Groups  

HSMR Hospital standardised 
mortality ratio 

This gives the case-mix adjusted mortality rate of the “HSMR basket of 
diagnoses” (the diagnoses that account for 80% of all in-hospital deaths 
relative to the national average). 

ICB Intermediate Care Bed  

ICRAS Integrated Community Re-
ablement and Assessment 
Service 

 

 I&E surplus This is the retained surplus as a percentage of revised income. 

 Inpatients A patient who occupies a bed for at least one night. 

LCRN Local Clinical Research 
Network 

 

LOS Length of Stay The period of time a patient remains in a hospital or other health care 
facility as an inpatient 

 Level 1 complaints Concerns and issues. 0-5 day working day response time. RLBUHT 
respond to all in 24hrs. 

 Level 2 complaints More formal complaints. 0-25 working day response time. 

 Level 3 complaints  

 Liquidity ratio A measure of the ability of the Trust to pay its bills from liquid (i.e. 
easily realisable) assets. 

 Locums A person who temporarily fulfils the duties of another.  

 Mandatory Training A requirement based upon the responsibility for nursing staff to work 
in a safe manner. 

 Mentors Person shares knowledge, skills, information and perspective to foster 
the personal and professional growth of someone else.  

MHA Mental Health Act  

MRSA Methicillin-resistant 
staphylococcus aureus 

The number of MRSA bloodstream infections reported measured as an 
absolute number against an agreed trajectory. 

MSSA Methicillin-sensitive 
staphylococcus aureus 

The number of Trust attributable MSSA bloodstream infections 
reported, measured as an absolute number against an agreed 
trajectory. 

MINAP Myocardial Infarction 
National Audit Programme 

Audits data completeness and validity. 

NICE National institute for health A special health authority of the English National Health Service (NHS), 
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and clinical excellence serving both English NHS and the Welsh NHS. 

NIHR 
league 

National institute for health 
research league 

The league table looks at the number of studies undertaken by each 
individual Trust, and the number of patients they recruit into those 
studies. 

NPSA National patient safety 
agency 

 

NSS National Student Survey  

 Never events  

 Non-elective patients Patients for whom a procedure is performed as an emergency. 

 Non-referred patients Patients who have come to the hospital without a referral from a GP or 
another hospital. 

NTDA National Trust Development 
Authority 

 

NQA Nursing Quality 
Assessments 

Aggregate rating of 11 standards within Nursing Quality Assessments 
audits. 

NQI Nursing quality indicators Monthly Audit programme across wards collecting information in 
relation to falls, medication, observation, pressure area care, infection 
control, nutrition, pain, nurse cleaning elements, discharge & transfer. 

 Outpatient A non-residential hospital patient i.e. a patient who visits a hospital, 
clinic or associated facility for diagnosis or treatment but does not stay 
for over 24hrs. 

PAS Patient Administration 
System 

 

PEMS Patient evaluation 
management system 

Patient satisfaction survey response rates for patients included within 
the Advancing Quality Programme denominator. 

PET Patient Experience Tracker Performance indicator based on the results of questions from the 
National Inpatients Survey selected by the Care Quality Commission. 

PDSA Plan, Do, Study, Act (Cycle) Methodology for Quality improvement. 

PROMS Patient reported outcomes 
measures 

Patient Reported Outcomes Measures, based on questionnaires which 
collect health status information from patients before and after an 
intervention. 

 Patient safety thermometer An internal survey or inpatients on a particular day each month to 
identify incidents of VTE, falls, pressure ulcers & CAUTIs. It does not 
include MRSA, CDT, MSSA, VRE or ESBL infections, or medication 
incidents, as they are not required by the DoH operating framework. 

PbR Payment by results Payment by results is the rules-based payment system under which 
commissioners pay healthcare providers for each patient treated, 
taking into account the complexity of the patient’s healthcare needs. 

PCT Primary Care Trust PCTs previously commissioned primary, community and secondary care 
from providers but are scheduled for abolition on 31.03.13. 

 Primary coding  
 

PFI Private finance initiative A way of funding public infrastructure projects with private capital. 

 Prophylaxis Any medical or public health procedure whose purpose is to prevent, 
rather than treat or cure a disease. 

QEP Quality Efficiency 
Programme 

 

QOF Quality and outcomes 
framework 

The Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) is a system for the 
performance management and payment of GPs. 

UAC Urgent Access Clinic  

RAG Red, Amber, Green (ratings)  
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 Referred patients  Patients referred by a GP or another hospital. 

RIDDOR Reporting of Injuries, 
Diseases and Dangerous 
Occurrences Regulations  

Workplace incidents that cause more than 7 day’s inability to carry out 
normal duties. Work related diseases and dangerous occurrences. 

 Responsibility The duty to deal with something 

ROA Return on Assets An indicator of how profitable a company is relative to its total assets. 
Calculated by dividing a company’s annual earnings by its total assets. 

ROI Return on Investments A performance measure used to evaluate the efficiency of an 
investment or to compare the efficiency of a number of different 
investments. To calculate ROI, the benefit (return) of an investment is 
divided by the cost of the investment. 

RCA Route Cause Analysis   

RFD Ready for Discharge  

RLBUHT Royal Liverpool & 
Broadgreen University 
Hospitals Trust  

 

R3m Rolling 3 months Looks at the average of the last 3 months. 

 Secondary coding  

 Spells A continuous period of inpatient care within the hospital. 

SUIs Serious untoward incidents This includes those incidents that occur on NHS premises, in the 
provision of NHS commissioned services or when an NHS employee is 
carrying out a work-related task on non NHS premises. 

SQA  Service quality assessment  

SHA Strategic Health Authority Each SHA is responsible for enacting the directives and implementing 
fiscal policy as dictated by the Dept of Health at a regional level. 

SHMI Summary hospital-level 
Mortality indicators 

SHMI is a hospital-level indicator which reports on mortality at trust 
level across the NHS in England. 

TARN Trauma Audit and Research 
Network 

TARN monitors and publishes percentage of CORE data fields 
completed by each Trust in the form of an accreditation percentage. 

 U’perf ward/dir Shows the number of underperforming wards or directorates. 

TTO To Take Out  

VRE Vancomycin-Resistant 
Enterococci 

The number of Trust attributable VRE (Vancomycin Resistant 
Enterococci) bloodstream infections reported, measured as an absolute 
number against an agreed local trajectory. 

VTE 
assessment 

Venous thromboembolism The rate of admissions where an assessment for VTE (Venous 
thromboembolism) has been carried out based on the clinical criteria of 
the national tool, including those patient sets assessed using an agreed 
cohort approach. 

YTD Year to date Year-to-date is a period, starting from the beginning of the current 
year, and continuing up to the present day. The year usually starts on 
January 1 (calendar year), but depending on purpose, can start also on 
July 1, April 1 (UK corporation tax and government financial 
statements), and April 6 (UK fiscal year for personal tax and benefits). 
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RISK APPETITE STATEMENT   

 

“The Trust's vision is to deliver the highest quality healthcare driven by world class research 

for the health and wellbeing of the population.   Our appetite for risk will vary according to 

the presenting issues and particular contexts but will be governed by the following 

principles: 

We place an absolute priority on the patient safety.  The Trust has a low appetite for risk on 

patient safety and this principle will override all other considerations at all times.  

We will always seek to ensure the best possible experience for all our patients and thus 

have a low appetite for risk which impacts on our patients’ experiences. However, we may 

at times reduce our investment into the patients experience due to balancing the demand 

for services, providing operational efficiencies and maintaining our commitment to safe 

services at all times. We understand the reputational risks this approach may bring due to 

the desires and expectations of patients and their families. 

The Trust has a low appetite for financial risk in respect of meeting its statutory duties of 

maintaining expenditure within the allocated resource limits and adherence to internal 

expenditure and financial controls, including the demonstration of value for money in 

spending decisions.  However, we recognise the need to innovate.  This will require a high 

appetite for risk as we balance investments in the present to ensure on-going high quality 

services and investment in the future to achieve both incremental and step change 

improvements, working collaboratively across health care economy in the best interests of 

the population.  

The Trust has a moderate risk appetite for actions and decisions that whilst taken in the 

interests of ensuring quality and sustainability of the Trust may affect the reputation of the 

Trust and its employees.” 
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